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MarkWest Energy Pariners

Financial and Operating Summary

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA Year ended December 31,
(5000, except per anit data) 2005 2006 2007
Revenue $ 541,090 $ 629911 $ 602,879
Net income: $ 2,355 $ 70,084 $ 17,199
Interest in :1et income
General partner $ 2.13 $ (843} $ 12,821
Limited partners b 242 $ 70,927 $ 4378
Net incoms: per limited partner unit
Basic 3 0.m $ 245 $ 0.12
Diluted $ 0.1 $ 2.44 $ 0.12
Weighted zverage units outstanding
Basic 21,790 28.966 35496
Diluted 21.858 29.098 35,657
Declarzd distibutions per limited partieer unit 3 1.60 $ 1.79 $ 2.09
Cash Flow Data
Net cash flow provided by (used in):
Operaling activities $ 42,090 $ 150,977 $ 149,399
Investing activities $  (469308) $§ (119.338) $ (312,085
Financing activities 5 423,060 $ (17.342) $ 154,789

Other Financial Data
Distritutable cash Alow* 3 44041 $ 117,911 3 162,611

Balance Sheet Data

Working capital $ 11,944 $ 4.258 5 (19.734)
Total assets $ 1,046,093 $ 1,114,780 $ 1,392,834
Total debt ] 601,262 b 526,865 $ 552,695
Pantners” capital $ 307,173 $ 452,649 $ 611,323
Total debt-to-book capitalization 66% 54% 47%
OPERATING DATA
Southwest
East Texas
Gathering systems throughput (Mcf/d) 321,000 378,100 413,700
NGL product sales (gallons) 126,476,000 161 437,000 179,601,000
Okiahoma
Foss Lake gathering system throughput (Mecf/d) 75.800 87.500 104,000
Woodford gathering system throughput (Mci/d) N/A 34,000 114,000
Grimes gathering system throughput (Mcf/d) N/A N/A 12,500
Arapaho NGL product sales (gallons) 60,903,000 79,093,000 87,522,000
Other Southwest
Appleby gathering system throughput (Mcf/d) 33,400 34,200 58,700
Other yathering systems throughput {Mcf/d) 16,500 18,300 8,700
Northeast
Appalachic
Natural gas processed for a fee (Mcf/d) 197,000 203,000 200,200
NGLs fractionated for a fee (Gal/d) 430,000 454,800 452,200
NGL product sales (gallons) 41,700,000 43,271,000 43,815,100
Michigan
Natural gas processed for a fee (Mcf/d) 6,600 6,500 5,200
NGL product sales (gallons) 5,697,000 5,643,000 3,898,600
Crude il transported for a fee (Bbl/d) 14,200 14,500 14,000
Gulf Coast
Javelina
Natural gas processed for a fee (Mcf/d} L15.000 124,300 114,500
Liquid; fractionated for a fee (Bbl/d) 19,400 26,200 25,000

*See table below for reconciliation of distributable cash Mow, a non-GAAP measure, (o net income,

Netincomg o 70.084 17,199

46,142 37313

on of deferred financing costs ) 9.094 27

sh earnings from unconsolidated affiliates (3316 (53.309)

cithutions from (contributions to) unconsolidated

i pnsion capital expenditures 1.849 942 10.84)

RA R 15471 12,960

2 657 (6 62,376

Other (28} 553

Loss (gain) on dispasal of property, plant, and equipment (24} 7.564

Maintenance capital expenditures (2,181} 12,291 (3.602)
Distributable cash How 44,0151 117.911
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Company Profile

We are a growth-oriented master limited partnership engaged in
the gathering, transportation, and processing of natural gas; the
transportation, fractionation, marketing, and storage of natural gas
liquids, or NGLs; and the gathering and transportation of crude oil.
We have extensive natural gas gathering, processing, and
transmission operations in the southwestern and Gulf Coast regions
of the United States and are the largest natural gas processor in the
Appalachian region.

Our primary business strategy is to provide outstanding customer
service at competitive rates and to expand our assets and cash
flow available for distribution through a balanced combination
of organic growth projects and selective acquisitions.
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Disclaimer

The statements contained in this Annual Report contain “forward-looking statements.” These forward-looking statements (which in many instances can be identified by words like
“may,” "will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,” “believes.” and cther comparable words), are based on the Partnership’s current expectations and beliefs concerning future developments and
their potential effects on the Partnership, but are not guaraniees of future performance and involve risks and uncertainties. You are urged to carefully review and consider the cautiorary
statements and other disclosures made in the Partnership’s enclosed Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2007, including under the heading *Risk Factors,” which identify and
discuss significant risks, uncertainties, and various other factors that could cause actual results 10 vary significantly from those expected or implied in the forward-looking statements.




MarkWast Energy Partners

Letter to Unitholders

MarkWest Energy Partners completed
an exceptional year in 2007. We
delivered strong financial performance,
rzturned record distributions to our
unitholders, and further strengthened
our balance sheet. Operationatly,

we successfully executed a very
aggressive capital expenditure
program while continuing our
rzputation for delivering exceptional
customer service. We expanded
existing facilities and identified
significant growth opportunities in
our key operating areas. Our success
in 2007 — ccupled with the merger
with MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc.,
in early 2008 - positions us to deliver
long-term value in this very dynamic
and unique market. Highlights of our
2007 financial performance include
record Distributable Cash Flow (DCF)
of approximately $163 million, an

Distributable Cash Flow

200 -

150 -

increase of nearly 40 percent
compared to 2006. While a portion
of these increases are attributable
to higher prices in 2007, more than
60 percent of the increase is due

to higher volumes resulting from
significant organic growth.

Excluding non-cash costs associated
with the mark-to-market of
derivative instruments, non-cash
compensation expense, and the loss
(gain) on disposal of property, plant,
and equipment, net income for 2007
was $100 million, an increase of

27 percent compared to $79 million
in 2006. Our balance sheet remains
very strong, with $1.4 billion in
assets at year-end, total debt of
$553 million, and a debi-to-
capitalization ratio of 47 percent.

These strong financial results
allowed us to increase annual
distributions to our unitholders for
the fifth consecutive year in 2007.
Cash distributions for 2007 were
$2.16 per unit, a 15 percent increase
from 2006. Since going public

in May 2002, MarkWest Energy
Partners has delivered compound
annual growth of distributions per
unit of 16 percent.

% in millions

-

o

o
1

2006

2007

We continue our
proactive strategy to
maintain and enhance
future cash flows and
distributions by hedging
the commodity components of
our business. Virtually all of our
hedge transactions are with our

bank group, which enhances our
financial flexibility and liquidity.

The comprehensive hedge program
extends through the end of 2011,
with approximately 75 percent of our
2008 commedity exposure hedged
through a combination of fixed-price
swaps, costless collars, and puts.

In early 2007, we completed a two-
for-one stock split and subsequentdy
listed MarkWest Energy Partners

on the New York Stock Exchange.
We believe these actions will further
increase liquidity and improve our
position in the financial markets.
Additionally, we completed two
private-equity transactions in 2007 for
a total of $225 million, not including
the general-partner contribution.
These placements funded a significant
portion of our 2007 capital program
and will also be used to fund our
2008 capital budget.
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¥ In 2007, we spent
B approximately $309
P million on growth capital
to improve and expand
existing facilities to accommaodate
the continued growth of our producer
customers. Our recent focus on
utilizing capital primarily to fund
organic growth projects is strategic
by design, and demonstrates the
quality of our assets and operational
performance. Key projects in 2007
include the continued build-out
of the Woodford gathering system
in southeast Oklahoma, where
volumes grew by over 425 percent
in 2007, a 20 percent expansion
of our gathering system and an 11
percent expansion of our processing
plant in western Oklahoma, and the
commencement of a $100 million
expansion of our Javelina facility in
Corpus Christi, Texas.

For 2008, our growth capital forecast
represents a significant increase
over the growth capital in 2007

and will fund a broad range of
high-quality growth projects in our
Oklahoma, East Texas, Appalachia,
and Gulf Coast operating segments.
The midstream business remains
very strong, and we see excellent
opportunities for future expansion in
the years ahead.

FFrom a strategic perspective, in
early 2008 we completed the merger
between MarkWest Hydrocarbon
and Mark West Energy Partners.
The merger eliminated the burden
of paying a higher percentage of
incremental distributions to the
general partner; lowered our equity
cost of capital by over 2.5 percent
as a direct result of the elimination
of the incentive distribution rights
associated with the master limited
partnership structure; created a
more focused company whose
interests are aligned with one set of
equity holders; and improved our
efficiency by reducing the costs and
distractions of running two public

companies. Our people, assets, and
focus on customer service have
been the key to our success, and the
positive attributes of the merger will
further enhance the long-term value
for our unitholders.

As we look ahead, we will continue
to reinforce the qualities that have
led to our success: great people,
strong operations, a healthy balance
sheet, and a continued emphasis

on providing best-of-class service
for our customers. The demand in
the United States for clean-burning
natural gas remains very strong, and
we intend to be a significant long-
term participant in providing gas

to the marketplace. | want to thank
our employees for their unwavering
dedication and hard work as we
continue to deliver timely and
quality midstream services to our
customers that we believe will
continue to result in superior and
sustainable distribution growth for
our unitholders.

Thank you for your continued
support.

Al

Frank M. Semple
President and Chief Executive Officer

May 1, 2008
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MarkWest Energy Bartners

BUSINESS UNIT OVERVIEW

MarkWest has a significant presence
in prolific natural gas producing
basins in the United States, including
the Anadarko, Appalachia, Arkoma,
East Texas, end Gulf Coast basins.
Our customers include major oil
and gas companies, large and small
independent energy companies,

and oil refineries. Our financial and
operational success in 2007 was
largely driven by our commitment
10 exceptional customer service
coupled with a recognized expertise
in midstream gas operations.

The following is a summary of our
operations, vhich are organized
within three primary business units.

Southwest Business Unit

The Southwest Business Unit consists
of the East Texas, Oklahoma, and
Other Southwest operating segments.
Our assets include 15 natural gas
gathering systems with over 1.0
billion cubic feet per day of capacity,
two natural gas processing plants,
and four intrastate gas pipelines.
During 2007 the Southwest Business
Unit contributed 75 percent of our
revenues and 62 percent of our net
operating margin.

East Texas '
Our assets in East Texas
are located in Panola,
Harrison, and Rusk counties
and serve the Carthage Field, one
of Texas’ largest onshore natural gas
fields. Producing formations in Panola
County consist of the Cotton Valley,
Pettit, and Travis Peak formations,
which together form one of the largest
natural gas producing regions in the
United States. Currently, Mark West
gathers approximately 430 million
cubic feet per day (“MMct/d”™) of
natural gas in East Texas, an increase
of over 75 percent since we acquired
the gathering assets in 2004. The
Carthage plant currently processes
approximately 180 MMcf/d.

In 2007, we expanded the East Texas
gathering system capacity to 440
MMcf/d and added a second residue
connection at our Carthage gas plant to
a new interstate pipeline, which allows
our customers access to the Perryville
hub. We also executed new long-term
agreements that will add significant

gas volumes to our East Texas
gathering system and the Carthage
gas processing plant. To accornmodate
the growth, MarkWest will further
expand the gathering system capacity
from 440 MMct/d to 530 MMcf/d and
increase the processing capacity at the
Carthage facility from 200 MMcf/d to
280 MMcf/d. We expect the gathering
expansions will be completed
throughout 2008, with the processing
expansion coming on line in the first
quarter of 2009. Future expansions
are anticipated to accommodate our
new and existing customers’ planned
horizontal drilling programs.

4
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In Oklahoma, we operate in two
distinct locations, including gathering
and processing facilities in both
western and southeast Oklahoma,

In western Oklahoma, our assets
include the Foss Lake gathering
systern and the Arapaho processing
plant, which serve producers in the
Anadarko basin in Roger Mills,
Custer, and Ellis counties. In 2007,
we expanded the capacity of the
Foss Lake gathering system from
100 MMcf/d to 120 MMcf/d and the

Capital Investment

107 S —

VT SN—— | -

200 -

$ in millions

300 g5z

2005
| Acquisitions | Organic Growth

Arapaho gas plant from 90 MMcf/d
to 100 MMcf/d; we also added a new
residue gas connection providing our
customers with a second interstate
pipeline delivery option. Since our
2003 acquisition of the Foss Lake
gathering system, throughput
volumes have increased by more
than 100 percent, surpassing our
existing processing facility capacity.
As a result, we are constructing a
new processing plant adjacent to
our existing Arapaho gas processing
facility, which will be operational
by mid-2008. This expansion will
increase system processing capacity
from 100 MMcf/d to 160 MMcf/d.

In southeast Oklahoma, we recently
constructed a 300 MMcf/d gathering
system (o serve producer customers
in the emerging Woodford Shale
play in the Arkoma Basin, where
our throughput volumes increased
from 34 MMcf/d to 180 MMef/d in
20077. We expect to further expand
our gathering assets in Woodford
Shale over the next several years to
accommodate anticipated growth,
In addition, we recently began
construction of a gathering system in

2006 2007

Pittsburg County, Oklahoma — which
is located adjacent to, and will be
fully integrated with, our existing
Woodford Shale gathering system

— to support a producer customer’s
Hartshorne coal bed methane
initiatives. Finally, in early 2008, we
acquired an interest in Centrahoma
Processing LLC, which owns two
gas plants having a total capacity of
100 MMcf/d, to support customers’
processing needs.

To accommodate the rapidly
expanding Woodford Shale gas
volumes, we announced in early
2008 the construction of the Arkoma
Connector Pipeline. The roughly
600 MMcf/d interstate pipeline is
expected to be completed in the first
half of 2009 and will connect our
Woodford Shale gathering system to
the Midcontinent Express Pipeline
at Bennington, Oklahoma. We also
entered into an option agreement
with Midcontinent Express Pipeline
LLC (“MEP™), a 50/50 joint venture
between Kinder Morgan Partners LP
and Energy Transfer Partners LP,
which provides us the right to acquire
10 percent of the equity of MEP after
construction is completed and the
pipeline is placed into service. The
Midcontinent Express Pipeline is a
500-mile, 1.5 billion cubic feet per
day interstate natural gas pipeline
system that extends from southeast
Oklahoma across northeast Texas,
northern Louisiana, and central
Mississippi to an interconnect with
Transco Pipeline in Butler, Alabama.

5
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MarkWest Energy Partnars

Other Southwest
We own a number of
natural gas gathering
systems located in
Texas, Louisiana,
Mississippi, und
New Mexico,
including the
Appleby gathering
system that gathers
Travis Peak production
in Nacogdoches County,
Texas. Since our acquisition of
the Appleby system in March 2003,
its capacity has expanded from 2(}
MMcf/d to 85 MMecf/d. In addition,
we own four intrastate gas pipelines in
Texas and New Mexico, which serve
utility and inclustrial customers.

Gulf Coast Business Unit

The Guif Coast Business Unit

is comprised of the Javelina gas
processing and fractionation facility
in Corpus Christi, Texas, and a

50 percent ownership in the Starfish
Pipeline Corapany (“Starfish™).
Starfish is accounted for using the
equity method of accounting, and
therefore the reported segment
income for the Guif Coast Business
Unit is derivad entirely from our
Javelina operations. In 2007, the
Gulf Coast Business Unit contributed
12 percent of revenues and

25 percent of
net operating margin.

Acquired in November 2005,
Javelina treats, processes, and
fractionates off-gas from six local
refineries. In October 2007, we
announced plans to expand Javelina
by constructing a steam methane
reformer (“SMR™) facility to deliver
high-purity hydrogen to our refinery
customers beginning in early 2010,
Once operational, the SMR facility,
combined with the existing facitities

" at the Javelina plant, will
produce in excess of 50 MMcf/d
of high-purity hydrogen. The SMR
facility is anchored by a long-term
fee-based supply agreement.

Acquired in early 2005, Starfish
provides gas gathering and
transportation services in the

Gulf of Mexico and southwestern
Louisiana. In 2007, Starfish returned
to full operation following the
completion of repairs related to
Hurricane Rita.
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Northeast Business Unit

The Northeast Business Unit

includes gathering, processing, and
fractionation assets in the Appalachian
Basin, as well as a crude oil pipeline
and natural gas gathering system and
processing plant in Michigan. The
Northeast Business Unit generated 13
percent of revenues and 13 percent of
net operating margin in 2007.

Appalachia

The Appalachian Basin is a large
natural gas producing region
characterized by long-lived

reserves and modest decline rates.
We have operated in the region

since 1988 and continue to be the
region’s largest gas processor. Our
operations include gas processing
and fractionation, natural gas

liquid (“NGL”) transportation,
propane storage, and marketing.

Our Appalachian assets include

the Boldman, Cobb, Kenova, and
Kermit natural gas processing plants,
the Siloam fractionation and propane
storage facility, and a NGL pipeline.

In late 2007, we announced plans to
significantly expand four of our five
plants in the Appalachian region.
The expansion includes replacing
the existing Boldman and Cobb
processing plants with cryogenic
processing facilities.

The new plants will increase the
combined processing capacity at the
two locations from 75 MMcf/d to
95 MMcf/d and will increase the
NGL production capacity to over
180,000 gallons per day (“Gal/d™)
trom 70,000 Gal/d currently.
MarkWest will also modify the Kenova
processing plant to improve propane
recovery and increase production by
approximately 10,000 Gal/d.

To accommodate the additional

NGL production resulting from our
processing plant expansions and
from the increased horizontal drilling
activity by major producer customers
in the region, Mark West is also
expanding the fractionation capacity
at Siloam to 900,000 Gal/d from the
current 600,000 Gal/d.

We expect to complete the Kenova
upgrade in mid-2008, the expansion
of the Siloam facility in the third
quarter of 2008, and the Boldman

and Cobb expansions in early 2009.
These expansions will result in a
substantial increase in operating
income and will allow us to continue
serving the growing needs of

the producers in this prolific basin.

Michigan

We own and operate a crude oil
pipeline in Michigan, which is
subject to regulation by the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission.
The pipeline is the largest crude

oil gathering pipeline in Michigan
supporting the production of

our producer customers. The
pipeline interconnects with a large
downstream pipeline, which transports
crude oil to several refineries in the
Midwest region. We also own a natural
gas gathering system and the Fisk
processing plant in western Michigan.

Net Operating Margin by Segment

B East Texas 30%

B Javelina 25%

B okiahoma 25%

O Appalachia 10%

B other Southwest 7%
(] michigan 3%
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Map of Operations

D SOUTHWEST BUSINESS UNIT

East Texas
*+ 440 MMcf/d gathering capacity
» 200 MMcf/d processing plant

Southeast Oklahoma
+ 300 MMcf/d gathering capacity
+ Centrahoma processing JV

Western Oklahoma
¢ 145 MMecf/d gathering capacity
» 100 MMcf/d processing plant

Other Southwest
» 12 gas gathering systems
v 4 lateral gas pipelines

. GULF COAST BUSINESS UNIT

Javelina
* Gas processing, fractionation, and
transportation facilities

Starfish (50% equity ownership)
* West Cameron dehydration facility
* 1.2 Bef/d interstate pipeline

. NORTHEAST BUSINESS UNIT

Appalachia

* Four processing plants with
combined 295 MMcf/d processing
capacity

* 600,000 Gal/d NGL fractionation
facility

¢ 11 million gallon NGL storage facility

* 80-mile NGL pipeline

Michigan
* 250-mile interstate crude pipeline
* 90-mile gas gathering pipeline
+ 35 MMcfid gas processing plant
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Throughout this document we make statements that are classified as “forward-looking.” Please refer to the
“Forward-l.ooking Staternents” included later in this section for an explanation of these types of assertions. Also, in this
document, unless the context requires otherwise, references to “we,” “us,” “our,” “Mark West Energy” or the “Partnership”
are intended to mean MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., and its consolidated subsidiaries owned as of December 31, 2007,

As explained further in Part I, Itemn 1. Business, on February 21, 2008, MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. closed its
plan of redzmption and merger (the “Merger”) with MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. (the “Company”) and MWEP, L.L.C., a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Partnership, pursuant to which the Company was merged into the Partnership.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K reflects amounts and events related prior to the consummation of the Merger and
includes orly the historical consolidated financial results of MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. on a stand alone basis. The
references made to the entities herein refer to those entities as they existed prior to the consummation of the Merger on
February 21, 2008. The Partnership refers to MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., prior to the consummation of the Merger,
except where specifically noted. The Company refers to MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc., except where specifically noted.




Glossary of Terms
In addition, the following is a list of certain acronyms and terms used throughout the document:

barrels

barrels per day

one billion cubic feet of natural gas

one British thermal unit, an energy measurement
gallons per day

one thousand cubic feet of natural gas

one thousand cubic feet of natural gas per day
one million British thermal uaits, an energy measurement
one million cubic feet of natural gas

one million cubic feet of natural gas per day
methyl tertieary buty] ether

Net operating margin (a non-GAAP financial

$115%: 1101 1) JUUUO OO TR, revenues less purchased product costs
INGLS <t natural gas liquids, such as propane, butanes and natural gasoline
NA et e not applicable

Forward-Looking Statements

Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements.
We use words such as “could,” “may, " o " o

2 i

will,” “predict”, “should,” “expect,” “hope”, “continue™, “potential”, “plan,”
“project,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “intend” and similar expressions to identify forward-looking statements.

These forward-looking statements are made based upon management’s expectations, estimates, assumptions and
beliefs concerning future events impacting us and therefore involve a number of risks and uncertainties. We caution that
forward-looking statements are not guarantees and that actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied
in the forward-looking statements.




PART 1
ITEM 1. Business
General

MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. is a publicly traded Delaware limited partnership formed by MarkWest
Hydrocarbon, Inc. on January 25, 2002, to acquire most of the assets, liabilities and operations of the MarkWest Hydrocarbon
Midstrearr. Business. We are a master limited partnership engaged in the gathering, transportation and processing of natural
gas; the transportation, fractionation and storage of NGLs; and the gathering and transportation of crude oil. We conduct our
operations in three geographical areas: the Southwest, the Northeast, and the Gulf Coast. For more information on these
geographical areas, see the Business Strategy discussion below. Our common units are traded on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol, “MWE.” We are headquartered in Denver, Colorado, and more information about us can be
found at our Internet website, www.markwest.com.

Recent Developments

On February 21, 2008, the Partnership consummated the transactions contemplated by its plan of redemption and
merger with the Company and MWEP, L.1..C., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Partnership. Pursuant to this agreement, the
Company redeemed for cash approximately 3.9 million shares of its common stock, which we refer to as the “redemption,”
followed unmediately by a merger, pursuant to which all remaining shares of the Company commen stock were converted
into Partnership common units, which we refer to as the “merger.” As a result of the merger, the Company is a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Partnership. In connection with the merger and redemption, the incentive distribution rights in the
Partnership, the 2% economic interest in the Partnership of MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C. (the “General Partner™) and the
Partnership common units owned by the Company were exchanged for Partnership Class A Units. Contemporaneously with
the closing of the transactions contemplated by the merger, the Partnership separately acquired 100% of the Class B
membership interests in the General Partner that had been held by current and former management and certain directors of
the Company and the General Partner for approximately $21.0 million in cash and 0.9 million Partnership common units. The
Company paid to its stockholders approximately $240.5 million in cash in the redemption and the Partnership issued to the
Company’s stockholders approximately 15.5 million Partnership common units in the merger. As a result of the merger and
redemptior,, the Company owns approximately 31% of the Partnership. Please refer to Note 22 of the accompanying Notes to
Consolidatzd Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for further information about the merger and
redemptior. and related subsequent events. The following organization chart reflects the structure of the Partnership and
Company both before and after the merger:
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We expect the merger and redemption to offer the following advantages:

e climinates the incentive distribution rights in the Partnership (see Note 16 of the accompanying Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for information on the incentive
distribution rights), which will substantially lower our cost of equity capital;

e enhances the Partnership’s ability to compete for new acquisitions;

e improves the returns to the Partnership unitholders from the Partnership’s expansion projects following the
redemption and merger;

e  will be accretive to the Partnership’s distributable cash flow per common unit; and
 significantly reduces the costly duplication of services required to maintain two public companies.

The elimination of the incentive distribution rights increases available cash to be distributed to common unitholders.
Please refer to “Distributions of Available Cash” in Part 11, Item 5 of this Form 10-K for further information. In addition, the
Partnership will also be able to distribute available cash from the Company after the Company pays taxes on its portion of the
earnings from its ownership of the Partnership Class A Units. Despite the additional interest expense from borrowings needed
to consummate the merger and redemption, we expect the cash available to distribute to common unitholders to increase in
total and on a per common unit basis.

Business Strategy

Qur primary business strategy is to grow our business and increase distributable cash flow per unit and maintain our
financial strength, flexibility and our ability to access capital to fund our growth. We plan to accomplish this through the
following:

e Expanding aperations through internal growth projects. By expanding our existing infrastructure and customer
relationships, we intend to continue growing in our primary areas of operation to meet the anticipated demand
for additional midstream services. During 2007, we spent approximately $308.7 million of growth capital to
expand several of our gathering and processing operations. Projects included the initial construction of the
Woodford gathering system in the Arkoma Basin in eastern Oklahoma, ongoing compressor expansions in East
Texas, and well connection expansion projects in the Southwest Business Unit,

o Increasing utilization of our facilities. We hope to add to, or provide additional services to, our existing
customers, and to provide services to other natural gas and crude oil producers in our areas of operation.
Increased drilling activity in our core areas of operation, particularly within certain fields in the Southwest,
should also produce increasing natural gas and crude oil supplies, and a corresponding increase in utilization of
our transportation, gathering, processing and fractionation facilities. In the meantime, we continue to develop
additional capacity at several of our facilities, which enables us to increase throughput with minimal
incremental costs.

o Expanding operations through strategic acquisitions. We intend to continue pursuing strategic acquisitions of
assets and businesses in our existing areas of operation that leverage our current asset base, personnel and
customer relationships, We will also seek to acquire assets in certain regions outside of our current areas of
operation.

e Maintain our financial strength and flexibility. As a publicly traded partnership, we have access to, and
regularly utilize, both equity and debt capital markets as a source of financing, as well as that provided by our
credit facility and the ability to use common units in connection with acquisitions. Cur limited partnership
structure also provides tax advantages to our unitholders.

e Reducing the sensitivity of our cash flows to commodity price fluctuations. We intend to continue to secure
long-term, fee-based contracts in both our existing operations and strategic acquisitions, in order to further
minimize our exposure to short-term changes in commodity prices.




The Partnership engages in risk management activities in order to reduce the effect of commodity price
volatility related to future sales of natural gas, ethane, propane, butanes, natural gasoline and crude oil. It may
utilize a combination of fixed-price forward contracts, fixed-for-floating price swaps, options available in the
over-the-counter market, and futures contracts traded on the New York Mercantile Exchange. The Partnership
monitors these activities through enforcement of our risk management policy. Please refer to Item 7A.
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk—Commodity Price Risk.

Historically, we have generated revenues by providing gathering, processing, transportation, fractionation, and
storage services. We believe that the largely fee-based nature of our business and the relatively long-term nature
of our contracts provide a relatively stable base of cash flows.

We conduct our operations in three geographical areas: the Southwest, the Northeast and the Gulf Coast. We also
have six segments which are based on geographic area of operation. Our assets and operations in each of these areas are
described helow.

Southwest Business Unit

East Texas. We own the East Texas System, consisting of natural gas gathering system pipelines, centralized
compressor stations, and a natural gas processing facility and NGL pipeline. The East Texas System is located
in Panola, Harrison and Rusk Counties and services the Carthage Field, one of Texas’ largest onshore natural
gas fields, Producing formations in Panola County consist of the Cotton Valley, Pettit and Travis Peak
formations, which together form one of the largest natural gas producing regions in the United States. For
natural gas that is processed in this segment, we purchase the natural gas liquids from the producers primarily
under percent-of-proceeds arrangements or fee-based arrangements. Approximately 90% of our natural gas
volumes in the East Texas System result from contracts with five producers. The resulting NGLs and
condensate make up approximately 85% of our revenues in the East Texas segment. We sell the purchased and
retained NGLs to Targa Resources Partners, L.P. under a long-term contract. Such sales represent 31.8% of the
Partnership’s consolidated revenue in 2007,

Oklahoma. We own the Foss Lake gathering system and the Arapaho gas processing plant, located in Roger
Mills, Custer and Ellis counties of western Oklahoma. The gathering portion consists of a pipeline system that
is connected to natural gas wells and associated compression facilities. All of the gathered gas ultimately is
compressed and delivered to the processing plant. We also own a gathering system in the Woodford Shale play
in the Arkoma Basin of southeastern Oklahoma, and we own the Grimes gathering system, which is located in
Roger Mills and Beckham counties in western Oklahoma. Approximately 80% of our volumes are derived from
gathering contracts; 20% from purchase agreements. Approximately two-thirds of our volumes result from
contracts with three producers. The Oklahoma segment has three customers to which we sell NGLs, condensate
and natural gas which account for a significant portion of its segment revenue. ONEOK, accounting for 14.8%
of consolidated revenue in 2007, was also significant to the Partership’s consolidated revenues.

Other Southwest. We own a number of natural gas-gathering systems located in Texas, Louisiana, Mississippi
and New Mexico, including the Appleby gathering system in the City and County of Nacogdoches, Texas. We
gather a significant portion of the gas produced from fields adjacent to our gathering systems. In many areas, we
are the primary gatherer, and in some of the areas served by our smaller systems we are the sole gatherer. In
addition, we own four lateral pipelines in Texas and New Mexico. The Other Southwest segment does not have
any customers which we consider to be significant to this segment’s revenues. A significant portion of the net
operating margin (as defined in Our Contracts below) in 2007 for the Other Southwest results from contracts
with five customers.

Northeast Business Unit

Appalachia. We are one of the largest processors of natural gas in the Appalachian Basin with fully integrated
processing, fractionation, storage and marketing operations. The Appalachian Basin is a large natural gas
producing region characterized by long-lived reserves and modest decline rates. Our Appalachian assets inctude
the Kenova, Boldman, Cobb and Kermit natural gas-processing plants, an NGL pipeline, an NGL fractionation
plant and two caverns for storing propane. The Appalachia segment has one customer which accounts for a




significant portion of its segment revenue but does not account for a significant portion of the Partnership’s
consolidated revenue.

e  Michigan. We own and operate a crude oil pipeline in Michigan, which we refer to as the Michigan Crude
Pipeline. The Michigan Crude Pipeline is subject to regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
(“FERC”™). We also own a natural gas-gathering system and the Fisk processing plant in Manistee County,
Michigan. The Michigan segment does not have any single customer which is considered to be significant to its
segment revenue.

Gulf Coast Business Unit

e Javelina. We own and operate the Javelina Processing Facility, a natural gas processing facility in Corpus
Christi, Texas, which treats and processes off-gas from six local refineries. The facility processes approximately
125 to 130 MMcf/d of inlet gas out of its 142 MMcf/d capacity. The Gulf Coast segment has five customers
which account for a significant portion of its segment revenue but do not account for a significant portion of the
Partnership’s consolidated revenue.

We own a 50% non-operating membership interest in Starfish, whose assets are located in the Gulf of Mexico and
southwestern Louisiana. The Starfish interest is part of a joint venture with Enbridge Offshore Pipelines LLC, which is
accounted for using the equity method; the financial results for Starfish are included in equity from earnings (losses) from
unconsolidated affiliates and are not included in the Gulf Coast Business Unit results. Starfish owns the FERC-regulated
Stingray natural gas pipeline, and the unregulated Triton natural gas gathering system and West Cameron dehydration
facility. All of the assets are located in the Gulf of Mexico and southwestern Louisiana.

For further information, see Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations included in this Form 10-K, and Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data included in this Form 10-
K.

The following summarizes the percentage of our revenue and net operating margin (a non-GAAP financial measure,
see Our Contracts discussion below) generated by our assets, by geographic region, for the year ended December 31, 2007:

East Texas Oklahoma Other Southwest Appalachia Michigan Gull Coast
Revenue .. 3% 34% 10% 1% 2% 12%
Net operatmg margm e 30% 25% 7% 10% 3% 25%

MarkWest Hydrocarbon was founded in 1988 as a partnership and later incorporated in Delaware. MarkWest
Hydrocarbon is an energy company primarily focused on marketing NGLs. MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s assets consist
primarily of partnership interests in MarkWest Energy Partners and certain processing agreements in Appalachra.

Industry Overview, Competition

MarkWest Energy Partners provides services in most areas of the natural gas gathering, processing and fractionation
industry. The following diagram illustrates the typical natural gas gathering, processing and fractionation process:
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The natural gas gathering process begins with the drilling of wells into gas bearing rock formations. Once
completec, the well is connected to a gathering system. Gathering systems typically consist of a network of small diameter
pipelines ind, if necessary, compression systems, that collect natural gas from points near producing wells, and transport it to
larger pipulines for further transmission.

Matural gas has a widely varying composition, depending on the field, the formation reservoir or facility from which
it is produced. The principal constituents of natural gas are methane and ethane. Most natural gas also contains varying
amounts of heavier components, such as propane, butane, natural gasoline and inert substances that may be removed by any
number of processing methods.

Most natural gas produced at the wellhead is not suitable for long-haul pipeline transportation or commercial use. It
must be gathered, compressed and transported via pipeline to a central facility, and then processed to remove the heavier
hydrocarbon components and other contaminants that interfere with pipeline transportation or the end-use of the gas. Our
business includes providing these services either for a fee or a percentage of the NGLs removed or gas units processed. The
indusiry as a whole is characterized by regional competition, based on the proximity of gathering systems and processing
plants to producing natural gas wells, or to facilities that produce natural gas as a byproduct of refining crude oil.

MarkWest Energy also provides processing and fractionation services to crude oil refineries in the Corpus Christi,
Texas, area through its Javelina Gas Processing and Fractionation facility. While similar to the natural gas industry diagram
outlined above, the following diagram illustrates the significant gas processing and fractionation processes at the Javelina
Facility:
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Natural gas processing and Ireating involves the separation of raw natural gas into pipeline-quality natural gas,
principalty methane, and NGLs, as well as the removal of contaminants. Raw natural gas from the wellhead is gathered ata
processing plant, typically located near the production area, where it is dehydrated and treated, and then processed to recover
a mixed NGL stream. In the case of our Javelina facilities, the natural gas delivered to our processing plant is a byproduct of
the crude oil refining process.

The removal and separation of individual hydrocarbons by processing is possible because of differences in physical
properties. Each component has a distinctive weight, boiling point, vapor pressure and other physical characteristics. Natural
gas may aluo be diluted or contaminated by water, sulfur compounds, carbon dioxide, nitrogen, helium or other components.
We also produce a high quality hydrogen stream that is delivered back to certain refinery customers.

After being separated from natural gas at the processing plant, the mixed NGL stream is typically transported to a
centralized facility for fractionation. Fractionation is the process by which NGLs are further separated into individual, more
marketable components, primarily ethane, propane, normal butane, isobutane and natural gasoline. Fractionation systems
typically exist either as an integral part of a gas processing plant or as a “central fractionator,” often located many miles from
the primary production and processing facility. A central fractionator may receive mixed streams of NGLs from many
processing plants.

Described below are the five basic NGL products and their typical uses:

s Ethane is used primarily as feedstock in the production of ethylene, one of the basic building blocks for a wide
range of plastics and other chemical products. Ethane is not produced at our Siloam fractionator, as there is little




petrochemical demand for ethane in Appalachia. It remains, therefore, in the natural gas stream. Ethane,
however, is produced and sold in our East Texas, Gulf Coast and Oklahoma operations.

e Propane is used for heating, engine and industrial fuels, agricultural burning and drying, and as a petrochemical
feedstock for the production of ethylene and propylene. Propane is principally used as a fuel in our operating
areas.

o  Normal butane is principally used for gasoline blending, as a fuel gas, either alone or in a mixture with propane,
and as a feedstock for the manufacture of ethylene and butadiene, a key ingredient of synthetic rubber.

o [Isobutane is principally used by refiners to enhance the octane content of motor gasoline.
e Natural gasoline is principally used as a motor gasoline blend stock or petrochemical feedstock.

We face competition for natural gas and crude oil transportation and in obtaining natural gas supplies for our
processing and related services operations; in obtaining unprocessed NGLs for fractionation; and in marketing our products
and services. Competition for natural gas supplies is based primarily on the location of gas-gathering facilities and gas-
processing plants, operating efficiency and reliability, and the ability to obtain a satisfactory price for products recovered.
Competitive factors affecting our fractionation services include availability of capacity, proximity to supply and industry
marketing centers, and cost efficiency and reliability of service. Competition for customers is based primarily on price,
delivery capabilities, flexibility and maintenance of high-quality customer relationships.

Our competitors include:

e  other large natural gas gatherers that gather, process and market natural gas and NGLs;

s major integrated oil companies;

e medium and large sized independent exploration and production companies;

e major interstate and intrastate pipelines; and

¢ alarge number of smaller gas gatherers of varying financial resources and experience.

Many of our competitors operate as master limited partnerships and enjoy a cost of capital comparable to and, in
some cases, lower than ours. Other competitors, such as major oil and gas and pipeline companies, have capital resources and
control supplies of natural gas substantially greater than ours. Smaller local distributors may enjoy a marketing advantage in
their immediate service areas.

We believe our competitive strengths include:

o Strategic and growing position with high-quality assets in the Southwest and the Gulf Coast. Our acquisitions
and internal growth projects have allowed us to establish and expand our presence in several long-lived natural
gas supply basins in the Southwest, particularly in Texas and Oklahoma. In late 2006, we began expanding this
strategy through our Newfield agreement by building the largest gathering system to date in the newly emerging
Woodford Shale play in southeastern Oklahoma. Our Gulf Coast assets provide high quality service to six
strategically located gulf coast refineries that we believe will continue to play a key role in supporting US
demand for refined petroleum products in the long term. All of our major acquisitions in these regions have
been characterized by several common critical success factors that include:

e  an existing strong competitive position;

e access to a significant reserve or customer base with a stable or growing production profile;

¢ ample opportunities for long-term continued organic growth;




¢ ready access to markets; and
¢ close proximity to other acquisition or expansion opportunities.

Specifically, our East Texas and Appleby gathering systems are located in the East Texas basin producing from
both the Cotton Valley and Travis Peak reservoirs. Our Foss Lake gathering system and the associated Arapaho gas
processing plant are located in the Anadarko basin in Oklahoma. Additionally, as mentioned above, our Woodford
gathering system is located in the rapidly growing Woodford shale reservoir. We refer to our Foss Lake gathering
system, the Arapaho Plant and the Woodford gathering system as our Oklahoma assets. Finally, our Starfish asset
gathers gas from multiple reservoirs in the Gulf of Mexico. Each of these basins are highly prolific with long lived
reserves and significant growth potential. OQur gathering systems are relatively new and provide producers with low-
pressure and fuel-efficient service, a significant competitive advantage for us over many competing gathering
systems in those areas. We believe this competitive advantage is evidenced by our growing throughput volumes in
our East Texas, Appleby, and Oklahoma operations.

e Leading position in the Appalachian Basin. We are one of the largest processors of natural gas in Appalachia.
We believe our significant presence and asset base provide us with a competitive advantage in capturing and
contracting for new supplies of natural gas. The Appalachian Basin is a large natural gas-producing region
characterized by long-lived reserves with modest decline rates and natural gas with high NGL content. These
reserves provide a stable supply of natural gas for our processing plants and our Siloam NGL fractionation
facility. Our concentrated infrastructure, and available land, storage assets and expansion plans in Appalachia
should continue to provide us with a platform for additional cost-effective expansion, In November 2007, the
Partnership announced a plan to invest approximately $60.0 million to significantly expand nearly all of its
plants in the Appalachia region. The Partnership expects to complete the Kenova upgrade in early 2008, the
expansion of the Siloam facility in the third quarter of 2008, and the Boldman and Cobb expansions in early
2009,

o Stable cash flows. We believe our numerous fee-based contracts and our active commeodity risk management
program provide us with stable cash flows. For the year ended December 31, 2007, we generated approximately
32% of our net operating margin (a non-GAAP financial measure, see Our Contracts discussion below) from
fee-based services. In addition, a portion of our fee-based business is generated by our four laterat pipelines in
the Southwest, which typically provide fixed transportation fees independent of the volumes transported. We
also believe that an active commodity risk management program is a significant component of providing stable
cash flows as our commodity exposure grows with our expanding operations.

*  Long-term Contracts. We believe our long-term contracts, which we define as contracts with remaining terms
of four years or more, lend greater stability to our cash-flow profile. In East Texas, approximately 77% of our
current gathering volumes as of December 31, 2007, are under contract for longer than four years. Two of our
Pinnacle lateral pipelines operate under fixed-fee contracts for the transmission of natural gas that expire in
approximately 15 and 23 years, respectively. Approximately 20% of our daily throughput in the Foss Lake
gathering system and Arapaho processing plant in western Oklahoma is subject to contracts with remaining
terms of four years or more. The majority of our throughput in the Woodford gathering system is subject to
contracts with remaining terms of more than 12 years. In Appalachia, we have natural gas processing and NGL
fractionation contracts with remaining terms from 4 to 6 years. In Michigan, our natural gas transportation,
treating and processing agreements have remaining terms of 9 to 21 years,

*  Experienced management with operational, technical and acquisition expertise. Each member of our executive
management team has substantial experience in the energy industry. Our facility managers have extensive
experience operating our facilities. Our operational and technical expertise has enabled us to upgrade our
existing facilities, as well as to design and build new ones. Since our initial public offering in May 2002, our
management team has utilized a disciplined approach to analyze and evaluate numerous acquisition
opportunities, and has completed nine acquisitions. We intend to continue to use our management’s experience
and disciplined approach in evaluating and acquiring assets to grow through accretive acquisitions—those
acquisitions expected to increase our throughput volumes and cash flow distributable to our unitholders.
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e Financial strength and flexibility. During 2007, we issued approximately $229.6 million of equity. Our goal is
to maintain a capital structure with approximately equal amounts of debt and equity on a long-term basis. We
expect the merger and redemption will substantially lower our cost of equity capital.

As of February 25, 2008, we have available borrowing capacity of approximately $258.5 million under our new
$350.0 million revolving credit facility. See further discussion of our new credit facility in Note 22 of the accompanying
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K. The borrowing capacity is determined on a
quarterly basis and is further adjusted to take into consideration the cash flow contribution of an acquisition at the time of its
closing. The credit facility, together with our ability to issue additional partnership units for financing and acquisition
purposes, should provide us with a flexible financial structure that will facilitate the execution of our business strategy.

To better understand our business and the results of operations discussed in Item 6. Selected Financial Data and
Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation, the following two factors
are important to consider:

e the nature of the contracts from which we derive our revenues; and
» the difficulty in comparing our results of operations across periods because of our acquisition activity.
Our Contracts

We generate the majority of our revenues and net operating margin (a non-GAAP measure, see betow for discussion
and reconciliation of net operating margin) from natural gas gathering, processing and transmission; NGL transportation,
fractionation and storage; and crude oil gathering and transportation. We enter into a variety of contract types. In many cases,
we provide services under contracts that contain a combination of more than one of the arrangements described below. We
provide services under the following different types of arrangements (all of which constitute midstream energy operations):

o  Fee-based arrangements: Under fee-based arrangements, we receive a fee or fees for one or more of the
following services: gathering, processing and transmission of natural gas; transportation, fractionation and
storage of NGLs; and gathering and transportation of crude oil. The revenue we eam from these arrangements is
directly related to the volume of natural gas, NGLs or crude oil that flows through our systems and facilities and
is not directly dependent on commodity prices. In certain cases, our arrangements provide for minimum annual
payments or fixed demand charges. If a sustained decline in commodity prices were to result in a decline in
volumes, however, our revenues from these arrangements would be reduced.

e Percent-of-proceeds arrangements: Under percent-of-proceeds arrangements, we gather and process natural
gas on behalf of producers, sell the resulting residue gas, condensate and NGLs at market prices and remit to
producers an agreed-upon percentage of the proceeds based on an index price. In other cases, instead of
remitting cash payments to the producer, we deliver an agreed-upon percentage of the residue gas and NGLs to
the producer and sell the volumes we keep to third parties at market prices. Generally, under these types of
arrangements our revenues and gross margins increase as natural gas, condensate and NGL prices increase, and
our revenues and net operating margins decrease as natural gas, condensate and NGL prices decrease.

e Percent-of-index arrangements: Under percent-of-index arrangements, we purchase natural gas at either (1) a
percentage discount to a specified index price, (2) a specified index price less a fixed amount or (3} a percentage
discount to a specified index price less an additional fixed amount. We then gather and deliver the natural gas to
pipelines where we resell the natural gas at the index price, or at a different percentage discount to the index
price. With respect to (1) and (3) above, the net operating margins we realize under the arrangements decrease
in periods of low natural gas prices because these net operating margins are based on a percentage of the index
price. Conversely, our net operating margins increase during periods of high natural gas prices.

e Keep-whole arrangements: Under keep-whole arrangements, we gather natural gas from the producer, process
the natural gas and sell the resulting condensate and NGLs to third parties at market prices. Because the
extraction of the condensate and NGLs from the natural gas during processing reduces the Btu content of the
natural gas, we must either purchase natural gas at market prices for return to producers or make cash payment
to the producers equal to the energy content of this natural gas. Accordingly, under these arrangements our
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revenues and net operating margins increase as the price of condensate and NGLs increases relative to the price
of natural gas, and decrease as the price of natural gas increases relative to the price of condensate and NGLs.

o Settlement margin: Typically, we are allowed to retain a fixed percentage of the volume gathered to cover the
compression fuel charges and deemed-line losses. To the extent our gathering systems are operated more
efficiently than specified per contract allowance, we are entitled to retain the difference for our own account.

The terms of our contracts vary based on gas quality conditions, the competitive environment when the contracts are
signed anc. customer requirements. Our contract mix and, accordingly, our exposure 1o natural gas and NGL prices, may
change as a result of changes in producer preferences, our expansion in regions where some types of contracts are more
common and other market factors. Any change in mix will influence our financial results.

As of December 31, 2007, our primary exposure to keep-whole contracts was limited to our Arapaha (Oklahoma)
processing piant and our East Texas processing contracts. At the Arapaho plant inlet, the Btu content of the natural gas meets
the downsiream pipeline specification; however, we have the option of extracting NGLs when the processing margin
environment is favorable. Due to our ability to operate the Arapaho plant in several recovery modes, our overall keep-whole
contract exposure is limited to a small portion of the operating costs of the plant.

Approximately 11% of the gas processed in East Texas for producers was processed under keep-whole terms. Qur
keep-wholz exposure in this area was offset to a great extent because the East Texas agreements provide for the retention of
natural gas as a part of the gathering and compression arrangements with all producers on the system. This excess gas helps
offset the amount of replacement natural gas purchases required to keep our producers whole on an MMbtu basis, thereby
creating a partial natural hedge. The net result is a significant reduction in volatility for these changes in natural gas prices.
The remaining volatility for these contracts results from changes in NGL prices. We have an active commodity risk
management program in place to reduce the impacts of changing NGL prices.

Management evaluates contract performance on the basis of net operating margin (a non-GAAP financial measure),
which is defined as income (loss) from operations, excluding facility expense, selling, general and administrative expense,
depreciaticn, amortization, impairments and accretion of asset retirement obligations. These charges have been excluded for
the purpose of enhancing the understanding by both management and investors of the underlying baseline operating
performance of our contractual arrangements, which management uses to evaluate our financial performance for purposes of
planning and forecasting. Net operating margin does not have any standardized definition and therefore is unlikely to be
comparable to similar measures presented by other reporting companies. Net operating margin results should not be
evaluated in isolation of, or as a substitute for our financial results prepared in accordance with GAAP. Our usage of net
operating raargin and the underlying methodology in excluding certain charges 1s not necessarily an indication of the results
of operations expected in the future, or that we will not, in fact, incur such charges in future periods,

The following is a recongiliation to income from operations, the most comparable GAAP financial measure of this
non-GAAF financial measure {in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
REBVETIUES 1o cee ottt e e e et e sae et e seese s e an e e aaatare s mes e s emteanane e smsesms st st asaninesnssrnenaa $602.879  $629.911 $541,090
Purchased 3rodUCt COSIS ..ot e e 358,720 376,237 408,884
Net OPEIating MATZII ..occecvvviiierereerese et ee st e e beraeas b e s sae et saeat e mnenes 244,159 253,674 132,206
FaClliby €XPEINSES.....cucveccriririerrierecic oo s e saesasessnra e sssceesresasessnsesnnsenconerasennns 75,036 60,112 47,972
Selling, peneral and adminiStrative ......covoreviee et ere e s 51,334 44,377 21,597
BT (Tl A ) o OSSPSR 40,171 29,993 19,534
Amortization of intangible.............c.coiiiiii e 16,672 16,047 9,656
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment............cccoovevvrninniiinenne 7,564 (192) (24)
Accretion of asset retirement obliZation ..........cocooniiiiieiii 114 102 159
TMPAITTIIENTS .ot e s e s s arasae 356 — —
[NCOME TTOIT OPETALLOMS ... cveviieeiuieieves s cesiatt et etes st s be et ebese e st bebe e ene s ensreaes bbb ebsenenins $52912  $103.235 $33,312

Fer the year ended December 31, 2007, we calculated the following approximate percentages of our revenues and
net operating margin from the following types of contracts:
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Fee-Based Percent-of-Proceeds(1) Percent-of-Index(2) Keep-Whole(3)

REVENUE ..voverevieeeeneeercesssesiim st stere e seisss s 15% 38% 28% 19%

Net operating Margin ..........c.ooeeienenrennsescccas 32% 41% TV 20%

(1) Includes other types of arrangements tied to NGL prices.

2) Includes settlement margin, condensate sales and other types of arrangements tied to natural gas prices.

(3) Ing:ludes settlement margin, condensate sales and other types of arrangements tied to both NGL and natural gas
prices.

Our short natural gas positions under our keep-whole contracts are largely offset by our long positions in our other
operating areas. As a result, our net exposure to natural gas price volatility is not significant prior to the merger. While the
percentages in the table above accurately reflect the percentages by contract type, we manage our business by taking into
account the offset described above, required levels of operational flexibility and the fact that our hedge plan is implemented
on this basis. When considered on this basis, the calculated percentages for the net operating margin in the table above for
Percent-of-Proceeds, Percent-of-Index and Keep-Whole contracts change to 61%, 0% and 7%, respectively. As a result of our
acquisition of MarkWest Hydrocarbon and its NGI. marketing business, our exposure to keep-whole contracts will increase
and as a result our exposure to natural gas volatility will increase as well. For further information on our natural gas
volatility, please read Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk—Commodity Price Risk as set
forth in this report.

Acquisitions

A significant part of our business strategy includes acquiring additional businesses and assets that will allow us to
increase distributions to our unitholders. We regularly consider and enter into discussions regarding potential acquisitions.
These transactions may be effectuated quickly, may occur at any time and may be significant in size relative to our existing
assets and operations.

Since our initial public offering, we have completed nine acquisitions for an aggregate purchase price of
approximately $810 million, net of working capital. The acquisitions were individually accounted for as a business
combination. Summary information regarding each of these acquisitions is presented below {consideration in millions}).

Name Assets Location Consideration Closing Date
Sata FE ....ocovveviriscrmsnssseeseneesemeenene GathEring system Oklahoma $15.0 December 29, 2006
Javelina(1) .oovvevvveeereceenesnrnrenenennses (386 processing and Corpus Christi, TX 398.8 November 1, 2005
fractionation facility
SLarfish(2) .......coococeseeesessrencrersrernneenee. Natural gas pipeline, Gulf of Mexico/ 41.7 March 31, 2005
gathering system and Southern Louisiana
dechydration fucility
EASt TEXAS....ccreeruererrrmsremseesesennienmnene. Gathering system and gas East Texas 240.7 July 30, 2004
processing assets
HOBBS ..o eisivarssserssssareeeeeneeeeeeee INATUTA gas pipeline New Mexico 2.3 April 1, 2004
Michigan Crude Pipeline .................... Common carrier crude eil Michigan 21.3 December 18, 2003
pipeline
Western Oklahoma .......o.cooovererriennnn Gathering system Western Oklahoma 38.0 December 1, 2003
Lubbock Pipeline.........ccooecrvevneerernr. Natural gas pipeline West Texas 12.2 September 2, 2003
Pinnacle .......ccoovneens Natural gas pipelines and East Texas 39.9 March 28, 2003

gathering systemns

(1) Consideration includes $35.5 million in cash.

2) Represents a 50% non-controlling interest.
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Regulatory Matters

Qwr operations are subject to extensive regulations, The failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations can
result in substantial penalties. The regulatory burden on our operations increases our cost of doing business and,
consequently, affects our profitability. However, we do not believe that we are affected in a sigmficantly different manner by
these laws and regulations than are our competitors. Due to the myriad of complex federal, state, provincial and local
regulations that may affect us, directly or indirectly, reliance on the following discussion of certain laws and regulations
should not be considered an exhaustive review of all regulatory considerations affecting our operations.

Fipeline and Gathering Regulation

Interstate Gas Pipelines. Our natural gas pipeline operations are subject to federal, state and local regulatory
authorities. Specifically, our Hobbs, New Mexico natural gas pipeline, our proposed Arkoma Connector natural gas pipeline
in Oklahoma, and our Michigan crude oil pipeline facilities and related assets are subject to regulation by the FERC. In
addition, the Midcontinent Express Pipeline connecting Bennington, Oklahoma, and Perryville, Louisiana, in which we have
an option to acquire a 10% interest, will also be subject to regulation by the FERC, Federal regulation extends to such matters
as:

* rate structures;

e return on equity;

s recovery of costs;

o the services that our regulated assets are permitted to perform;
s the acquisition, construction and disposition of assets; and

e to an extent, the level of competition in that regulated industry.

Under the Natural Gas Act (“NGA”), FERC has authority to regulate natural gas companies that provide natural gas
pipeline tremsportation services in interstate commerce, [ts authority to regulate those services includes the rates charged for
the services, terms and conditions of service, certification and construction of new facilities, the extension or abandonment of
services and facilities, the maintenance of accounts and records, the acquisition and disposition of facilities, the initiation and
discontinuation of services, and various other matters. Natural gas companies may not charge rates that have been determined
not to be just and reasonable by FERC. In addition, FERC prohibits natural gas companies from unduly preferring or
unreasonably discriminating against any person with respect to pipeline rates or terms and conditions of service. The rates
and terms and conditions for our service will be found in FERC-approved tariffs. Pursuant to FERC’s jurisdiction over rates,
existing rates may be challenged by complaint and proposed rate increases may be challenged by protest. We cannot assure
you that FERC will continue to pursue its approach of procompetitive policies as it considers matters such as pipeline rates
and rules aad policies that may affect rights of access to natural gas transportation capacity, and transportation facilities. Any
successful complaint or protest against our rates, or loss of market-based rate authority by FERC could have an adverse
impact on our revenues associated with providing interstate gas transportation services.

Energy Policy Act of 2005. On August 8, 2003, President Bush signed into law the Domenici-Barton Energy Policy
Act of 2005 (2005 EP Act™). Under the 2005 EP Act, FERC may impose civil penalties of up to $1,000,000 per day for each
current vio.ation of the NGA or the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978. The 2005 EP Act also amends the NGA to add an anti-
market manipulation provision, which makes it unlawful for any entity to engage in prohibited behavior in contravention of
rules and regulations to be prescribed by FERC. FERC issued Order No. 670 to implement the anti-market manipulation
provision of 2005 EP Act. This order makes it unlawful for gas pipelines and storage companies that provide interstate
services to: {1} in connection with the purchase or sale of natural gas subject to the jurisdiction of FERC, or the purchase or
sale of transportation services subject to the jurisdiction of FERC, for any entity, directly or indirectly, to use or employ any
device, sch2me or artifice to defraud; (2) to make any untrue statement of material fact or omit to make any such statement
necessary to make the statements made not misleading; or (3) to engage in any act or practice that operates as a fraud or
deceit upon any person. The anti-market manipulation rule and enhanced civil penalty authority reflect an expansion of
FERC’s en“orcement authority. Additional proposals and proceedings that might affect the natural gas industry are pending
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before Congress, FERC and the courts. We cannot assure you that present policies pursued by FERC and Congress will
continue.

Affiliate Relationships. Commencing in 2003, FERC issued a series of orders adopting rules for new Standards of
Conduct for Transmission Providers (Order No. 2004) that applied to interstate natural gas pipelines and to certain natural
gas storage companies, which provide storage services in interstate commerce. Among other matters, Order No. 2004
required interstate pipelines to operate independently from their energy affiliates, prohibited interstate pipelines from
providing non-public transportation or shipper information to their energy affiliates, prohibited interstate pipelines from
favoring their energy affiliates in providing service, and obligated interstate pipelines to post on theitr websites a nurnber of
items of information concerning the company, including its organizational structure, facilities shared with energy affiliates,
discounts given for service and instances in which the company has agreed to waive discretionary terms of its tariff.

The United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit vacated and remanded Order No. 2004 in
late 2006, as it relates to natural gas transportation providers. On January 9, 2007, and as clarified on March 21, 2007, FERC
issued an interim rule re-promulgating on an interim basis the standards of conduct that were not challenged before the court.
The interim rule makes the standards of conduct apply to the relationship between natural gas transportation providers and
their marketing affiliates, but not to energy affiliates who are not also marketing affiliates. FERC has now issued a notice of
proposed rulemaking (“NOPR™) that proposes permanent standards of conduct which FERC states will avoid the aspects of
the previous standards of conduct rejected by the court. We have no way to predict with certainty the scope of FERC’s
permanent rules on the standards of conduct.

Market Transparency Rulemakings. In 2007, FERC issued a NOPR on pipeline posting requirements and a final
rule on annual natural gas transaction reporting (Order 704). Under Order No. 704, wholesale buyers and sellers of more than
a minimum volume of natural gas are now required to report, on May 1 of each year, beginning in 2009, aggregate volumes
of natural gas purchased or sold at wholesale in the prior calendar year. Order No. 704 also requires market participants to
indicate whether they report prices to any index publishers, and if so, whether their reporting complies with the
Commission’s Policy Statement on price reporting. Several parties have filed requests for clarification or rehearing that are
currently pending before FERC.

Under the NOPR on pipeline posting requirements, the Commission is proposing to require intrastate pipelines to
post daily actual and scheduled flows on an Internet website. It is also proposing to require that interstate pipelines add actual
daily volumes to their Internet websites. We cannot predict the ultimate impact of these regulatory changes to our natural gas
operations. We do not believe we would be affected by any such FERC action materially different than any other natural gas
company with which we compete.

Gathering and Intrastate Pipeline Regulation. Section 1({b} of the NGA exempts natural gas gathering facilities
from the jurisdiction of FERC. We own a number of facilities that we believe meet the traditional tests FERC has used to
establish a pipeline’s status as a gatherer not subject to FERC jurisdiction. In the states in which we operate, regulation of
gathering facilities and intrastate pipeline facilities generally includes various safety, environmental and, in some
circumstances, open access, nondiscriminatory take requirement and complaint- based rate regulation. For example, some of
our natural gas gathering facilities are subject to state ratable take and common purchaser statutes. Ratable take statutes
generally require gatherers to take, without undue discrimination, natural gas production that may be tendered to the gatherer
for handling. Similarly, common purchaser statutes generally require gatherers to purchase gas without undue discrimination
as to source of supply or producer. These statutes are designed to prohibit discrimination in favor of one producer over
another producer or one source of supply over another source of supply. These statutes have the effect of restricting our right
as an owner of gathering facilities to decide with whom we contract to purchase or transport natural gas.

Natural gas gathering may receive greater regulatory scrutiny at both the state and federal levels now that FERC has
taken a less stringent approach to regulation of the gathering activities of interstate pipeline transmission companies and a
number of such companies have transferred gathering facilities to unregulated affiliates. Our gathering operations could be
adversely affected should they be subject in the future to the application of state or federal regulation of rates and services.
Our gathering operations also may be or become subject to safety and operational regulations relating to the design,
installation, testing, construction, operation, replacement and management of gathering facilities. Additional rules and
legislation pertaining to these matters are considered or adopted from time to time. We cannot predict what effect, if any,
such changes might have on our operations, but the industry could be required to incur additional capital expenditures and
increased costs depending on future legislative and regulatory changes.
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Chur intrastate gas pipeline facilities are subject to various state laws and regulation that affect the rates we charge
and terms of service. Although state regulation is typically less onerous than at FERC, state regulation typically requires
pipelines to charge just and reasonable rates and to provide service on a non-discriminatory basis. The rates and service of an
intrastate pipeline generally are subject to challenge by complaint.

Cwr Appalachian pipeline carries NGLs across state lines. The primary shipper on the pipeline is MarkWest
Hydrocarton, which has entered into agreements with us providing for a fixed transportation charge for the term of the
agreements. They expire on December 31, 2015. We are the only other shipper on the pipeline. We neither operate our
Appalachian pipeline as a common carrier, nor hold it out for service to the public. Generally, there are currently no third-
party shippers on this pipeline and the pipeline is, and will continue to be, operated as a proprietary facility. The likelihood of
other entities seeking to utilize our Appalachian pipeline is remote, so it shonld not be subject to regulation by the FERC in
the future. We cannot provide assurance, however, that FERC will not at some point determine that such transportation is
within its jurisdiction, or that such an assertion would not adversely affect our results of operations. In such a case, we would
be required to file a tariff with FERC and provide a cost justification for the transportation charge.

Crude Common Carrier Pipeline Operations. Our Michigan Crude Pipeline is a crude oil pipeline that is 2 common
carrier and subject to regulation by the FERC under the October 1, 1977 version of the Interstate Commerce Act (“1CA”™) and
the Energy Policy Act of 1992 (“EPAct 19927). The ICA and its implementing regulations give the FERC authority to
regulate the rates charged for service on the interstate common carrier liquids pipelines and generally require the rates and
practices of interstate liquids pipelines to be just and reasonable and nondiscriminatory. The ICA also requires tariffs to be
maintained on file with the FERC that set forth the rates it charges for providing transportation services on tts interstate
common carrier liquids pipelines as well as the rules and regulations governing these services. EPAct 1992 and its
implementing regulations allow interstate common carrier oil pipelines to annually index their rates up to a prescribed ceiling
level. In addition, the FERC retains cost-of-service ratemaking, market-based rates and settlement rates as alternatives to the
indexing ayproach.

With respect to our Michigan Crude Pipeline, we filed a tariff establishing a cost-of-service rate structure to be
effective siarting January 1, 2006, and pursuant to a FERC certified settlement with shippers on the pipeline, the rate
structure is under a moratorium on rate changes or challenges for a three-year period, with limited exceptions.

Environmental Matters
General.

Our processing and fractionation plants, pipelines, and associated facilities are subject to multiple obligations and
potential liabilities under a variety of stringent and comprehensive federal, state and local laws and regulations governing
discharges of materials into the environment or otherwise relating to environmental protection. Such laws and regulations
affect many aspects of our present and future operations, such as requiring the acquisition of permits or other approvals to
conduct regulated activities, restricting the manner in which we handle or dispose of our wastes, limiting or prohibiting
activities in sensitive areas such as wetlands, ecologically-sensitive areas, or areas inhabited by endangered species, incurring
capital cos!s to construct, maintain and upgrade equipment and facilities, and requiring remedial actions to mitigate pollution
caused by our operations or attributable to former operations. Failure to comply with these stringent and comprehensive
requirements may expose us to the assessment of administrative, civil and criminal penalties, the imposition of remedial
requirements and the issuance of orders enjeining or limiting some or all of our operations.

We believe that our operations and facilities are in substantial compliance with applicable environmental laws and
regulations, and that the cost of continued compliance with such laws and regulations will not have a material adverse effect
on our results of operations or financial condition. We cannot ensure, however, that existing environmental laws and
regulations will not be revised or that new laws andl regulations will not be adopted or become applicable to us. The clear
trend in environmental law is to place more restrictions and limitations on activities that may be perceived to affect the
environment, and thus there can be no assurance as to the amount or timing of future expenditures for
environmental-regulation compliance or remediation, and actual future expenditures may be different from the amounts we
currently anticipate. Revised or additional environmental requirements that result in increased compliance costs or additional
operating restrictions, particularly if those costs are not fully recoverable from our customers, could have material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flow. We may not be able to recover some or any of
these costs from insurance.
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Hazardous Substance and Waste.

To a large extent, the environmental laws and regulations affecting our operations relate to the release of hazardous
substances or solid wastes into soils, groundwater, and surface water, and include measures to control environmental
pollution of the environment. For instance, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, as
amended, or CERCLA, also known as the “Superfund” law, and comparable state laws, impose liability without regard to
fault or the legality of the original conduct, on certain classes of persons that contributed to a release of “hazardous
substance™ into the environment. These persons include current and prior owners or operators of a site where a release
occurred and companies that disposed or arranged for the disposal of the hazardous substances found at the site. Under
CERCLA, these persons may be subject to joint and several strict liability for the costs of removing or remediating hazardous
substances that have been released into the environment, for restoration and damages to natural resources, and for the costs of
certain health studies. Additionally, it is not uncommon for neighboring landowners and other third parties to file claims for
personal injury and property damage allegedly caused by hazardous substances or other pollutants released into the
environment, While we generate materials in the course of our operations that are regulated as hazardous substances under
CERCLA or similar state statutes, we have not received any notification that we may be potentially responsible for cleanup
costs under such laws. We also may incur liability under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended, or
RCRA, and comparable state statutes, which impose requirements relating to the handling and disposal of hazardous wastes
and nonhazardous solid wastes. We are not currently required to comply with a substantial portion of the RCRA requirements
because our operations generate minimal quantities of hazardous wastes. However, it is possible that some wastes generated
by us that are currently classified as nonhazardous may in the future be designated as “hazardous wastes,” resulting in the
wastes being subject to more rigorous and costly disposal requirements.

We currently own or lease, and have in the past owned or leased, properties that have been used over the years for
natural gas gathering and processing, for NGL fractionation, transportation and storage or for the storage and gathering and
transportation of crude oil. Although solid waste disposal practices within the NGL industry and other oil and natural gas
related industries have improved over the years, a possibility exists that hydrocarbons and other solid wastes or hazardous
wastes may have been disposed of on or under various properties owned or leased by us during the operating history of those
facilities. In addition, a number of these properties may have been operated by third parties whose treatment and disposal or
release of hydrocarbons or other wastes was not under our control. These properties and wastes disposed thereon may be
subject to CERCLA, RCRA, and analogous state laws. Under these laws, we could be required to remove or remediate
previously disposed wastes or property contamination, including groundwater contamination or to perform remedial
operations to prevent future contamination. We do not believe that there presently exists significant surface and subsurface
contamination of our properties by hydrocarbons or other solid wastes for which we are currently responsible. We do not
believe that there presently exists significant surface and subsurface contamination of our properties by hydrocarbons or other
solid wastes for which we are currently responsible,

Ongoing Remediation and Indemnification from a Third Party.

The previous owner/operator of our Boldman and Cobb facilities has been, or is currently involved in, investigatory
or remedial activities with respect to the real property underlying these facilities. These investigatory and remedial
obligations arise out of a September 1994 “Administrative Order by Consent for Removal Actions”™ with EPA Regions 11, 111,
IV, and V; and an “Agreed Order” entered into by the previous owner/operator with the Kentucky Natural Resources and
Environmental Protection Cabinet in October 1994. The previous owner/operator has accepted sole liability and
responsibility for, and indemnifies MarkWest Hydrocarbon against, any environmental liabilities associated with the EPA
Administrative Order, the Kentucky Agreed Order or any other environmental condition related to the real property prior to
the effective dates of MarkWest Hydrocarbon'’s lease or purchase of the real property. In addition, the previous
owner/operator has agreed to perform all the required response actions at its expense in a manner that minimizes interference
with MarkWest Hydrocarbon's use of the properties. On May 24, 2002, MarkWest Hydrocarbon assigned to us the benefit of
this indemnity from the previous ownet/operator. To date, the previous owner/operator has been performing all actions
required under these agreements and, accordingly, we do not believe that the remediation obligation of these properties will
have a material adverse impact on our financial condition or results of operations. To date, the previous owner/operator has
been performing all actions required under these agreements and, accordingly, we do not believe that the remediation
obligation of these properties will have a material adverse impact on our financial condition or results of operations.
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Air.

The Clean Air Act, as amended, and comparable state laws restrict the emission of air pollutants from many sources,
including -rocessing plants and compressor stations, and also impose various monitoring and reporting requirements. These
laws and any implementing regulations may require us to obtain pre-approval for the construction or medification of certain
projects or facilities expected to produce or significantly increase air emissions, obtain and strictly comply with stringent air
permit requirements, or utilize specific equipment or technologies to control emissions. As the result of changes to the Clean
Air Act, we may be required to incur certain capital expenditures for air pollution control equipment in connection with
maintainirg or obtaining operating permits addressing other air emission-related issues. We do not believe, however, that
such requirements will have a material adverse affect on our operations.

Water.

The Federal Water Pollution Control Act of 1972, as amended, also known as the “Clean Water Act,” and analogous
state laws impose restrictions and controls on the discharge of pollutants into federal and state waters. Such discharges are
prohibited, except in accord with the terms of a permit issued by the EPA or the analogous state agency. Spill prevention,
control and countermeasure requirements under federal law require appropriate containment berms and similar structures to
help prevent the contamination of navigable waters in the event of a hydrocarbon tank spill, rupture or leak. In addition, the
Clean Water Act and analogous state law require individual permits or coverage under general permits for discharges of
stormwate from certain types of facilities. These permits may require us to monitor and sample the stormwater runoff. Any
unpermitted release of pollutants, including oil, natural gas liquids or condensates, could result in penalties, as well as
significant remedial obligations. We believe that we are in substantial compliance with the Clean Water Act.

Global Warming and Climate Control.

Some scientific studies have suggested that emissions of certain gases, commonly referred to as “greenhouse gases”
and including carbon dioxide and methane, may be contributing to warming of the Earth’s atmosphere. In response to such
studies, the U.S. Congress is actively considering legislation to reduce emissions of greenhouse gases, which may include the
implementation of emissions allowances that could be traded or acquired in the open market. This legislation may be subject
to debate and a possible vote by mid-year 2008. In addition, at least 17 states have already taken legal measures to reduce
emissions of greenhouse gases, primarily through the planned development of greenhouse gas emission inventories and/or
regional greenhouse gas cap and trade programs.

Anti-Terrorism Measures.

Our operations and the operations of the natural gas and oil industry in general may be subject to laws and
regulations regarding the security of industrial facilities, including natural gas and oil facilities. The Department of Homeland
Security Appropriations Act of 2007 required the Department of Homeland Security (“DHS”), to issue regulations
establishiny risk-based performance standards for the security of chemical and industrial facilities, including oil and gas
facilities that are deemed to present “high levels of security risk.” The DHS issued an interim firal rule, known as the
Chemical Facility Anti-Terrorism Standards interim rule, in April 2007 regarding risk-based performance standards to be
attained pursuant to the act and on November 20, 2007 further issued an Appendix A to the interim rule that established the
chemicals of interest and their respective threshold quantities that will trigger compliance with these interim rules. Covered
facilities that are determined by DHS to pose a high level of security risk will be required to prepare and submit Security
Vuinerability Assessments and Site Security Plans as well as comply with other regulatory requirements, including those
regarding inspections, audits, recordkeeping, and protection of chemical-terrorism vulnerability information. In January
2008, we prepared and submiited to the DHS initial screening surveys for facilities operated by us that possess regulated
chemicals of interest in excess of the Appendix A threshold levels. Because we are currently awaiting a response from DHS
on the extent to which some or all of our surveyed facilities may be determined to present a high level of security risk, the
associated -osts for complying with this interim rule has not been determined by us, and it is possible that such costs
ultimately could be substantial.

Pipeline Sufety Regulations
Our pipelines are subject to regulation by the U.S. Department of Transportation (“DOT”) under the Natural Gas

Pipeline Safety Act of 1986, as amended (“NGPSA™), with respect to natural gas and the Hazardous Pipeline Safety Act of
1979, as amended (“HLPSA™), with respect to crude oil, NGLs and condensates, The NGPSA and HLPSA govern the design,
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installation, testing, construction, operation, replacement and management of natural gas, oil and NGL pipeline facilities. The
NGPSA and HLPSA require any entity that owns or operates pipeline facilities to comply with the regulations implemented
under these acts, permit access to and allow copying of records, and to make certain reports and provide information as
required by the Secretary of Transportation. We belicve that our pipeline operations are in substantial compliance with
applicable existing NGPSA and HL.PSA requirements; however, due to the possibility of new or amended laws and
regulations or re interpretation of existing laws and regulations, future compliance with the NGPSA and HLPSA could result
in increased costs.

Our pipelines are also subject to regulation by the DOT under the Pipeline Safety Improvement Act of 2002, which
was reauthorized and amended by the Pipeline Inspection, Protection, Enforcement and Safety Act of 2006. The DOT,
through the Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration (“PHMSA”), has established a series of rules under 49
C.F.R. Part 192 that require pipeline operators to develop and implement integrity management programs for gas
transmission pipelines that, in the event of a failure, could affect high consequence areas. “High consequence areas™ are
currently defined to include high population areas, areas unusually sensitive to environmental damage and commercially
navigable waterways. Similar rules are also in place under 49 C.F.R. Part 195 for operators of hazardous liquid pipelines
including lines transporting NGLs and condensates. The DOT also is required by the Pipeline Inspections, Protection,
Enforcement, and Safety Act of 2006 to issue new regulations that set forth safety standards and reporting requirements
applicable to low stress pipelines and gathering lines transporting hazardous liquids, including oil, NGLs and condensate. A
final rule addressing safety standards for hazardous liquid low-stress pipelines and gathering lines is anticipated to be issued
by PHMSA in 2008. Such new hazardous liquid pipeline safety standards may include applicable integrity management
program requirements. While we belicve that our pipeline operations are in substantial compliance with applicable
requirements, due to the possibility of new or amended laws and regulations, or reinterpretation of existing laws and
regulations, there can be no assurance that future compliance with the requirements will not have a material adverse effect on
our results of operations or financial position.

Employee Safety

The workplaces associated with the processing and storage facilities and the pipelines we operate are also subject to
oversight pursuant to the federal Occupational Safety and Health Act, as amended, (“OSHA™), as well as comparable state
statutes that regulate the protection of the health and safety of workers. In addition, the OSHA hazard-communication
standard requires that we maintain information about hazardous materials used or produced in operations, and that this
information be provided to employees, state and local government authorities, and citizens. We believe that we have
conducted our operations in substantial compliance with OSHA Tequirements, including general industry standards,
record-keeping requirements and monitoring of occupational exposure to regulated substances.

In general, we expect industry and regulatory safety standards to become stricter over time, resulting in increased
compliance expenditures. While these expenditures cannot be accurately estimated at this time, we do not expect such
expenditures will have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Employees

We employ through our subsidiary, MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc., 356 individuals to operate our facilities and
provide general and administrative services. The Paper, Allied Industrial, Chemical and Energy Workers International Union
Local 5-372 represents 15 employees at our Siloam fractionation facility in South Shore, Kentucky. The collective bargaining
agreement with this union was renewed on July 11, 2005, for a term of three years. The agreement covers only hourly, non-
supervisory employees. We consider labor relations to be satisfactory at this time.

Available Information

Our principal executive office is located at 1515 Arapahoe Street, Tower 2, Suite 700, Denver, Colorado 80202-
2126. Our telephone number is 303-925-9200. Our common units trade on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol
“MWE.” You can find more information about us at our Internet website, www.markwest.com. Our annual reports on
Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, our current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports are
available free of charge through our Internet website as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file or furnish
such material with the Securities & Exchange Commission.
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ITEM 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information set forth elsewhere in this Form 10-K, you should carefully consider the
Jollowing juctors when evaluating MarkWest Energy Partners.

Risks Inherent in Qur Business

We may not have sufficient cash after the establishment of cash reserves and payment of our expenses to enable
us to pay distributions at the current level.

The amount of cash we can distribute on our units depends principally on the amount of cash we generate from our
operations, which will fluctuate from quarter to quarter based on, among other things:

¢ the fees we charge and the margins we realize for our services and sales;

the prices of, level of production of, and demand for natural gas and NGLs;

the volumes of natural gas we gather, process and transport;

the level of our operating costs, including reimbursement of fees and expenses of our general partner; and

prevailing economic conditions,

In addition, the actual amount of cash we will have available for distribution will depend on other factors, some of
which are beyond cur control, including:

*  our debt service requirements;

o fluctuations in our working capital needs;

*  our ability to borrow funds and access capital markets;
* restrictions contained in our debt agreements;

o the level of capital expenditures we make, including capital expenditures incurred in connection with our
enhancement projects;

» the cost of acquisitions, if any; and

the amount of cash reserves established by our general pariner.

Ur.itholders should be aware that the amount of cash we have available for distribution depends primarily on our
cash flow and not solely on profitability, which is affected by non-cash items. As a result, we may make cash distributions
during periods when we record losses for financial accounting purposes and may not make cash distributions during periods
when we record net earnings for financial accounting purposes.

Growing our business by constructing new pipelines and processing and treating facilities subjects us to
construction risks and risks that natural gas supplies will not be available upon completion of the facilities.

One of the ways we intend to grow our business is through the construction of additions to our existing gathering
systems and construction of new gathering, processing and treating facilities. The construction of gathering, processing and
treating facilities requires the expenditure of significant amounts of capital, which may exceed our expectations, and involves
numerous regulatory, environmental, political, legal and inflationary uncertainties. If we undertake these projects, we may
not be able 1o complete them on schedule or at all or at the budgeted cost. Moreover, our revenues may not increase
immediately upon the expenditure of funds on a particular project. For instance, if we build a new pipeline, the construction
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will occur over an extended period of time, and we will not receive any material increases in revenues until after completion
of the project, if at all.

Furthermore, we may have only limited natural gas supplies committed to these facilities prior to their construction.
Moreover, we may construct facilities to capture anticipated future growth in production in a region in which anticipated
production growth does not materialize. We may also rely on estimates of proved reserves in our decision to construct new
pipelines and facilities, which may prove to be inaccurate because there are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating
quantities of proved reserves. As a result, new facilities may not be able to attract enough natural gas to achieve our expected
investment return, which could adversely affect our operations and cash flows available for distribution to our unitholders.

If we do not make acquisitions on economically acceptable terms, our Sfuture growth may be limited.

Our ability to grow depends in part on our ability to make acquisitions that result in an increase in the cash generated
from operations per unit. [f we are unable to make these accretive acquisitions because we are (1) unable to identify attractive
acquisition candidates or negotiate acceptable purchase contracts with them, (2) unable to obtain financing for these
acquisitions on economically acceptable terms, or (3) outbid by competitors, then our future growth and ability to increase
distributions will be limited.

If we are unable to timely and successfully integrate our future acquisitions, our Sfuture financial performance
may suffer, and we may fail to realize all of the anticipated benefits of the transaction.

Our future growth will depend in part on our ability to integrate our future acquisitions. We cannot guarantee that
we will successfully integrate any acquisitions into our existing operations, or that we will achieve the desired profitability
and anticipated results from such acquisitions. Failure to achieve such planned results could adversely affect our operations
and cash flows available for distribution to our unitholders.

The integration of acquisitions with our existing business involves numerous risks, including:

e  operating a significantly larger combined organization and integrating additional midstream operations into our
existing operations;

e difficulties in the assimilation of the assets and operations of the acquired businesses, especially if the assets
acquired are in a new business segment or geographical area;

o the loss of customers or key employees from the acquired businesses;

o the diversion of management’s attention from other existing business concerns;

o the failure to realize expected synergies and cost savings;

e coordinating geographically disparate organizations, systems and facilities;

e integrating personnel from diverse business backgrounds and organizational cultures; and

» consolidating corporate and administrative functions.

Further, unexpected costs and challenges may arise whenever businesses with different operations or management
are combined, and we may experience unanticipated delays in realizing the benefits of an acquisition. Following an
acquisition, we may discover previously unknown liabilities including those under the same stringent environmental laws and
regulations relating to releases of poliutants into the environment and environmental protection as applicable to our existing
plants, pipelines and facilities. If so, our operation of these new assets could cause us to incur increased costs to address these
liabilities or to attain or maintain compliance with such requirements. If we consummate any future acquisition, our
capitalization and results of operation may change significantly, and unitholders will not have the opportunity to evaluate the

economic, financial and other relevant information that we will consider in determining the application of these funds and
other resources.
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Our acquisition strategy is based in part on our expectation of ongoing divestitures of assets within the midstream
petroleum and natural gas industry, A material decrease in such divestitures could limit our opportunities for future
acquisitions, and could adversely affect our operations and cash flows available for distribution to our unitholders.

Qur substantial debt and other financial obligations could impair our financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows, and our ability to fulfill our debt obligations.

We have substantial indebtedness and other financial obligations. Subject to the restrictions governing our
indebtedness and other financial obligations, including the indentures governing our outstanding notes, we may incur
significant additional indebtedness and other financiat obligations.

Our substantial indebtedness and other financial obligations could have important consequences, For example, they
could:

e make it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to our existing debt;

e impair our ability to obtain additional financings in the future for working capital, capital expenditures,
acquisitions, or general partnership and other purposes;

¢ have a material adverse effect on us if we fail to comply with financial and restrictive covenants in our debt
agreements, and an event of default occurs as a result of that failure that is not cured or waived;

* require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow to payments on our indebtedness and other financial
obligations, thereby reducing the availability of our cash flow to fund working capital, capital expenditures,
distributions and other general partnership requirements;

»  limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry in which we operate;
and

e place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have proportionately less debt.

Furthermore, these consequences could limit our ability, and the ability of our subsidiaries, to obtain future
financings, make needed capital expenditures, withstand a future downturn in our business or the economy in general,
conduct operations or otherwise take advantage of business opportunities that may arise. Our existing credit facility contains
covenants requiring us to maintain specified financial ratios and satisfy other financial conditions, which, if not maintained,
may limit our ability to grant liens on our assets, make or own certain investments, enter into any swap contracts other than in
the ordinary course of business, merge, consolidate, or sell assets, incur indebtedness senior to the credit facility, make
distributions on equity investments, and declare or make, directly or indirectly, any distribution on our common units. Our
obligations under the credit facility are secured by substantially all of our assets and guaranteed by all of our subsidiaries,
other than our operating company, which is the borrower under the credit facility (please read Item 7. Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liguidity and Capital Resources). In particular,
we may be unable to meet those ratios and conditions. Any future breach of any of these covenants or our failure to meet any
of these ratins or conditions could result in a default under the terms of our credit facility, which could result in acceleration
of our debt und other financial obligations. If we were unable to repay those amounts, the lenders could initiate a bankruptcy
or liquidation proceeding, or proceed against the collateral.

A significant decrease in natural gas production in our areas of operation would reduce our ability to make
distributions to our unitholders.

Our gathering systems are connected to natural gas reserves and wells, from which the production will naturally
decline over time, which means that our cash flows associated with these wells will also decline over time. To maintain or
increase throughput fevels on our gathering systems and the utilization 1ate at our processing plants and our treating and
fractionatior. facilities, we must continually obtain new natural gas supplies. Our ability to obtain additional sources of
natural gas depends in part on the level of successful drilling activity near our gathering systems.

We have no control over the level of drilling activity in the areas of our operations, the amount of reserves
associated with the wells or the rate at which production from a well will decline. In addition, we have no control over
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producers or their production decisions, which are affected by, among other things, prevailing and projected energy prices,
demand for hydrocarbons, the level of reserves, geological considerations, governmental regulations and the availability and
cost of capital. Fluctuations in energy prices can greatly affect production rates and investments by third parties in the
development of new oil and natural gas reserves. Drilling activity generally decreases as oil and natural gas prices decrease.
Declines in natural gas prices, if sustained, could lead to a material decrease in such production activity and ultimately to a
decrease in exploration activity.

Because of these factors, even if new natural gas reserves are discovered in areas served by our assets, producers
may choose not to develop those reserves. If we are not able to obtain new supplies of natural gas to replace the natural
decline in volumes from existing wells due to reductions in drilling activity or competition, throughput on our pipelines and
the utilization rates of our treating and processing facilities would decline, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, financial condition and ability to make cash distributions.

We depend on third parties for the natural gas and refinery off-gas we process, and the NGLs we fractionate at
our facilities, and a reduction in these quantities could reduce our revenues and cash flow.

Although we obtain our supply of natural gas, refinery off-gas and NGLs from numerous third-party producers, a
significant portion comes from a limited number of key producers/suppliers who are committed to us under processing
contracts. According to these contracts or other supply arrangements, however, the producers are under no obligation to
deliver a specific quantity of natural gas or NGLs to our facilities. If these key suppliers, or a significant number of other
producers, were to decrease the supply of natural gas or NGLs to our systems and facilities for any reason, we could
experience difficulty in replacing those lost volumes. Because our operating costs are primarily fixed, a reduction in the
volumes of natural gas or NGLs delivered to us would result not only in a reduction of revenues, but also a decline in net
income and cash flow.

The fees charged to third parties under our gathering, processing, transmission, transportation, fractionation and
storage agreements may not escalate sufficiently to cover increases in costs, or the agreements may not be
renewed or may be suspended in some circumstances.

Qur costs may increase at a rate greater than the fees we charge to third parties. Furthermore, third parties may not
renew their contracts with us. Additionally, some third parties’ obligations under their agreements with us may be
permanently or temporarily reduced due to certain events, some of which are beyond our control, including force majeure
events wherein the supply of either natural gas, NGLs or crude oil are curtailed or cut off. Force majeure events include (but
are not limited to): revolutions, wars, acts of enemies, embargoes, import or export restrictions, strikes, lockouts, fires,
storms, floods, acts of God, explosions and mechanical or physical failures of equipment affecting our facilities or facilities
of third parties. If the escalation of fees is insufficient to cover increased costs, if third parties do not renew or extend their
contracts with us or if any third party suspends or terminates its contracts with us, our financial results would suffer.

We are exposed to the credit risks of our key customers, and any material nonpayment or nonperformance by our
key customers could reduce our ability to make distributions to our unitholders.

We are subject to risks of loss resulting from nonpayment or nonperformance by our customers. Any material
nonpayment or nonperformance by our key customers could reduce our ability to make distributions to our unitholders.
Furthermore, some of our customers may be highly leveraged and subject to their own operating and regulatory risks, which
increases the risk that they may default on their obligations to us.

We may not be able to retain existing customers, or acquire new customers, which would reduce our revenues
and limit our future profitability.

The renewal or replacement of existing contracts with our customers at rates sufficient to maintain current revenues
and cash flows depends on a number of factors beyond our control, including competition from other gatherers, processors,
pipelines, fractionators, and the price of, and demand for, natural gas, NGLs and crude oil in the markets we serve. Our
competitors include large oil, natural gas, refining and petrochemical companies, some of which have greater financial
resources, more NUMerous or greater capacity pipelines, processing and other facilities, and greater access to natural gas and
NGL supplies than we do. Additionally, our customers that gather gas through facilities that are not otherwise dedicated to us
may develop their own processing and fractionation facilities in lieu of using our services. Certain of our competitors may
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also have advantages in campeting for acquisitions, or other new business oppartunities, because of their financial resources
and synergies in operations.

As a consequence of the increase in competition in the industry, and the volatility of natural gas prices, end-users
and utilities are reluctant to enter into long-term purchase contracts. Many end-users purchase natural gas from more than one
natural gas company and have the ability to change providers at any time. Some of these end-users also have the ability to
switch betv/een gas and alternative fuels in response to relative price fluctuations in the market. Because there are numerous
companies of greatly varying size and financial capacity that compete with us in the marketing of natural gas, we often
compete in the end-user and utilitics markets primarily on the basis of price. The inability of our management to renew or
replace our current contracts as they expire and to respond appropriately to changing market conditions could affect our
profitability. For more information regarding our competition, please read Item 1, Business—Qverview of Part 1 of this
report.

Our profitability is affected by the volatility of NGL product and natural gas prices.

We are subject to significant risks associated with frequent and often substantial fluctuations in commodity prices.
{n the past, the prices of natural gas and NGLs have been volatile, and we expect this volatility to continue. The New York
Mercantile Exchange (“NYMEX™) daily settlement price of natural gas for the prompt month contract in 2005 ranged from a
high of $15.38 per MMBtu to a low of $5.79 per MMBtu. In 2006, the same index ranged from 2 high of $10.63 per MMBtu
70 a low of $4.20 per MMB1tu. In 2007, the same index ranged from a high of $8.64 per MMBtu to a low of $5.38 per
MMBtu. A composite of the weighted monthly average NGLs price at our Appalachian facilities based on our average NGLs
composition in 2005 ranged from a high of approximately $1.31 per gallon to a low of $0.79 per gallon. In 2006, the same
composite 1anged from approximately $1.29 per gallon to approximately $0.99 per gallon. In 2007, the same composite
ranged from approximately $1.76 per gallon to approximately $0.96 per gallon. The markets and prices for natural gas and
NGLs depead upon factors beyond our control. These factors include demand for oil, natural gas and NGLs, which fluctuate
with changes in market and economic conditions and other factors, including:

s the level of domestic oil, natural gas and NGL production;

demand for natural gas and NGL products in localized markets;

s imports of crude oil, natural gas and NGLs;

¢ seasonality;

» the condition of the U.S. economy;

e political conditions in other oil-producing and natural gas-producing countries; and
+ povernment regulation, legislation and policies.

Qur net operating margins under various types of commodity-based contracts are directly affected by changes in
NGL product prices and natural gas prices, and thus are more sensitive to volatility in commodity prices than our fee-based
contracts. Additionally, our purchase and resale of gas in the ordinary course of business exposes us to significant risk of
volatility in gas prices due to the potential difference in the time of the purchases and sales, and the potential existence of a
difference in the gas price associated with each transaction.

Relative changes in NGL product and natural gas prices may adversely impact our results due to frac spread,
natural gas and liguids exposure.

Under the Partnership’s keep-whole arrangements, its principal cost is delivering dry gas of an equivalent Btu
content to replace Btus extracted from the gas stream in the form of NGLs, or consumed as fuel during processing. The
spread betwzen the NGL product sales price and the purchase price of natural gas with an equivalent Btu content is called the
“frac spread.” Generally, the frac spread and, consequently, the net operating margins are positive under these contracts. In
the event natural gas becomes more expensive on a Btu equivalent basis than NGL products, the cost of keeping the producer
“whole” results in operating losses.
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Due to timing of gas purchases and liquid sales, direct exposure to either gas or liquids can be created because there
is no longer an offsetting purchase or sale that remains exposed to market pricing. Through the Partnership’s marketing and
derivatives activity, direct exposure may occur naturally or the Partnership may choose dircct exposure to either gas or
- liquids when the Partnership favors that exposure over frac spread risk. Given that the Partnership has positions, adverse
movement in prices to the positions the Partnership has taken will negatively impact results.

Our commodity derivative activities may reduce our earnings, profitability and cash flows.

Our operations expose us to fluctuations in commodity prices. We utilize derivative financial instruments related to
the future price of crude oil, natural gas and certain NGLs with the intent of reducing volatility in our cash flows due to
fluctuations in commodity prices.

The extent of our commodity price exposure is related largely to the effectiveness and scope of our derivative
activities. We have a policy to enter into derivative transactions related to only a portion of the volume of our expected
production or fuel requirements and, as a result, we will continue to have direct commodity price exposure to the unhedged
portion, Our actual future production or fuel requirements may be significantly higher or lower than we estimate at the time
we enter into derivative transactions for such period. If the actual amount is higher than we estimate, we will have greater
commodity price exposure than we intended. [f the actual amount is lower than the amount that is subject to our derivative
financial instruments, we might be forced to satisfy all or a portion of our derivative transactions without the benefit of the
cash flow from our sale or purchase of the underlying physical commodity, resulting in a substantial diminution of our
liquidity. As a result of these factors, our hedging activities may not be as effective as we intend in reducing the downside
volatility of our cash flows, and in certain circumstances may actually increase the volatility of our cash flows. In addition,
our hedging activities are subject to the risks that a counterparty may not perform its obligation under the applicable
derivative instrument, the terms of the derivative instruments are imperfect, and our hedging policies and procedures are not
properly followed. It is possible that the steps we take to monitor our derivative financial instruments may not detect and
prevent violations of our risk management policies and procedures, particularly if deception or other intentional misconduct
is involved. For further information about our risk management policies and procedures, please read Item 7A. Quantitative
and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk—Commodity Price Risk as set forth in this report.

Management of the General Partner has discretion in conducting our risk management activities and may not
accurately predict future price fluctuations and therefore expose us 1o Sinancial risks and reduce our
opportunity to benefit from price increases.

We evaluate our exposure to commodity price risk from an overall portfolio basis. Management of the General
Partner has discretion in determining whether and how to manage the commodity price risk associated with our physical and
derivative positions.

To the extent that we do not manage the commodity price risk relating to a position that is subject to commeodity
price risk, and commodity prices move adversely, we could suffer losses. Such losses could be substantial, and could
adversely affect our operations and cash flows available for distribution to our unitholders. In addition, managing the
commodity risk may actually reduce our opportunity to benefit from increases in the market or spot prices.

Changes in commodity prices subject us to margin calls, which may adversely affect our liguidity.

Unfavorable commodity price changes may subject us to margin calls that require us to provide letter of credit
collateral to our counterparties in amounts that may be material. Such funding requirements could exceed our letter of credit
availability on our credit line. If we were unable to meet these margin calls with letters of credit, we would be forced to sell
product to meet the margin calls, or to terminate the corresponding futures contracts. If we are forced to sell product to meet
margin calls, we may have to sell product at prices that are not advantageous, which could adversely affect our operations
and cash flows available for distribution to our unitholders.

Transportation on certain of our pipelines may be subject to federal or state rate and service regulation, and the
imposition and/or cost of compliance with such regulation could adversely affect our operations and cash

flows available for distribution to out unitholders.

Some of our gas, liquids and crude oil transmission operations are subject to rate and service regulations under
FERC or various state regulatory bodies, depending upon jurisdiction, FERC generally regulates the transportation of natural
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gas and oil in interstate commerce, and FERC’s regulatory authority includes: facilities construction, acquisition, extension or
abandonment of services or facilities; accounts and records; and depreciation and amortization policies. Intrastate natural gas
pipeline operations and transportation on proprietary natural gas or petroleum products pipelines are generally not subject to
regulation by FERC, and the Natural Gas Act, which is referred to as “NGA,” specifically exempts some gathering systems.
Yet such oerations may still be subject to regulation by various state agencies. The applicable statutes and regulations
generally rzquire that our rates and terms and conditions of service provide ne more than a fair return on the aggregate value
of the facilitics used to render services. We cannot assure unitholders that FERC will not at some point determine that such
gathering and transportation services are within its jurisdiction, and regulate such services. FERC rate cases can involve
complex and expensive proceedings. For more information regarding regulatory matters that could affect our business, please
read Item 1. Business—Regul/atory Matters as set forth in this report.

If we are unable to obtain new rights-of-way or the cost of renewing existing rights-of-way increases, then we
may be unable to fully execute our growth strategy, which may adversely affect our operations and cash
Hows available for distribution to unitholders.

The construction of additions to our existing gathering assets may require us to obtain new rights-of-way prior to
constructing new pipelines. We may be unable to obtain such rights-of-way to connect new natural gas supplies to our
existing gathering lines or capitalize on other attractive expansion opportunities. Additionally, it may become more expensive
for us to obtain new rights-of-way or to renew existing rights-of-way. If the cost of obtaining new rights-of-way or renewing
existing rights-of-way increases, it may adversely affect our operations and cash flows available for distribution to
unitholders.

Wz are indemnified for liabilities arising from an pngoing remediation of property on which our facilities are
located and our results of operation and our ability to make distributions to our unitholders could be
adversely affected if the indemnifying party fails to perform its indemnification obligation,

Columbia Gas is the previous or current owner of the property on which our Kenova, Boldman, Cobb and Kermit
facilities are located and is the previous aperator of our Boldman and Cobb facilities. Columbia Gas has been or is currently
involved in investigatory or remedial activities with respect to the real property underlying the Boldman and Cobb facilities
pursuant to an “Administrative Order by Consent for Removal Actions” entered into by Colurnbia Gas and the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency and, in the case of the Boldman facility, an “Agreed Order” with the Kentucky Natural
Resources end Environmental Protection Cabinet.

Columbia Gas has agreed to retain sole liability and responsibility for, and to indemnify MarkWest Hydrocarbon
against, any environmental liabilities associated with these regulatory orders or the real property underlying these facilities to
the extent such liabilities arose prior to the effective date of the agreements pursuant to which such properties were acquired
or leased from Columbia Gas. At the ciosing of our initial public offering, MarkWest Hydrocarbon assigned us the benefit of
its indemnity from Columbia Gas with respect to the Cobb, Boldman and Kermit facilities. While we are not a party to the
agreement under which Columbia Gas agreed to indemnify MarkWest Hydrocarbon with respect to the Kenova facility,
MarkWest Hydrocarbon has agreed to provide to us the benefit of its indemnity, as well as any other third party
¢nvironmental indemnity of which it is a beneficiary. Our results of operation and our ability to make cash distributions to
our unitholders could be adversely affected if in the future ejther Columbia Gas or MarkWest Hydrocarbon fails to perform
under the indemnification provisions of which we are the beneficiary.

Our business is subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations with respect to environmental, safety and
other regulatory matters, and the violation of, or the cost of compliance with, such laws and regulations
could adversely affect our operations and cash flows available for distribution to our unitholders.

Numerous governmental agencies enforce comprehensive and stringent federal, local and state laws and regulations
on a wide range of environmental, safety and other regulatory matters. We could be adversely affected by increased costs due
to stricter pollution-control requirements or liabilities resulting from non-compliance with operating or other regulatory
permits. Joint and several strict liability may be incurred without regard to fault, or the legality of the original conduct, under
certain of the environmental laws for remediation of contaminated areas, including the Comprehensive Environmental
tesponse, Compensation and Liability Act, as amended, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended, and
analogous state laws. Private parties, including the owners of properties located near our storage, fractionation and processing
facilities or through which our pipeline systems pass, also may have the right to pursue legal actions to enforce compliance,
as well as seek damages for non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations or for personal injury or property
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damage. New, more stringent environmental laws, regulations and enforcement policies might adversely influence our
products and activities. Federal, state and local agencies also could impose additional safety requirements, any of which
could affect our profitability. In addition, we face the risk of accidental releases or spills associated with our operations.
These could result in material costs and liabilities, including those relating to claims for damages to property, natural
resources and persons. Our failure to comply with environmental or safety-related laws and regulations could result in
administrative, civil and criminal penalties, the imposition of investigatory and remedial obligations and even injunctions that
restrict or prohibit our operations. For more information regarding the environmental, safety and other regulatory matters that
could affect our business, please read Item 1. Business—Regulatory Matters, Item 1. Business—Environmental Matters, and
Item 1. Business—Pipeline Safety Regulations, each as set forth in this report.

The amount of gas we process, gather and transmit, or the crude oil we gather and transport, may be reduced if
the pipelines to which we deliver the natural gas or crude oil cannot, or will not, accept the gas or crude oil.

All of the natural gas we process, gather and transmit is delivered into pipelines for further delivery to end-users. If
these pipelines cannot, or will not, accept delivery of the gas due to downstream constraints on the pipeline, we will be forced
to limit or stop the flow of gas through our pipelines and processing systems. In addition, interruption of pipeline service
upstream of our processing facilities would limit or stop flow through our processing facilities. Likewise, if the pipelines into
which we deliver crude oil are interrupted, we will be limited in, or prevented from conducting, our crude oil transportation
operations. Any number of factors beyond our control could cause such interruptions or constraints on pipeline service,
including necessary and scheduled maintenance, or unexpected damage to the pipeline. Because our revenues and net
operating margins depend upon (1) the volumes of natural gas we process, gather and transmit, (2) the throughput of NGLs
through our transportation, fractionation and storage facilities and (3) the volume of crude oil we gather and transport, any
reduction of volumes could adversely affect our operations and cash flows available for distribution to our unitholders.

Interruptions in operations at any of our facilities may adversely affect our operations and cash flows available
for distribution te our unitholders.

Our operations depend upon the infrastructure that we have developed, including processing and fractionation
plants, storage facilities, and various means of transportation. Any significant interruption at these facilities or pipelines, or
our inability to transmit natural gas or NGLs, or transport crude oil to or from these facilities or pipelines for any reason,
would adversely affect our operations and cash flows available for distribution to our unitholders.

Operations at our facilities could be partially or completely shut down, temporarily or permanently, as the result of
circumstances not within our control, such as;

* unscheduled turnarounds or catastrophic events at our physical plants;
« labor difficulties that result in a work stoppage or slowdown; and

«  adisruption in the supply of crude oil to our crude oil pipeline, natural gas to our processing plants or gathering
pipelines, or a disruption in the supply of NGLs to our transportation pipeline and fractionation facility.

Due to our lack of asset diversification, adverse developments in our gathering, processing, transportation,
transmission, fractionation and storage businesses could reduce our operations and cash flows available for
distribution to our unitholders.

We rely exclusively on the revenues generated from our gathering, processing, transportation, transmission,
fractionation and storage businesses. An adverse development in one of these businesses would have a significantly greater
impact on our operations and cash flows available for distribution to our unitholders than if we maintained more diverse
assets. ’

We may not be able to successfully execute our business plan and may not be able to grow our business, which
could adversely affect our operations and cash flows available for distribution to our unitholders.

Our ability to successfully operate our business, generate sufficient cash to pay the quarterly cash distributions to

our unitholders, and to allow for growth, is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties. Similarly, we may not be able to
successfully expand our business through acquiring or growing our assets, because of various factors, including economic
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and competitive factors beyond our control. If we are unable to grow our business, or execute on our business plan, the
market price of the common units is likely to decline.

We are subject to operating and litigation risks that may not be covered by insurance.

Our industry is subject to numerous operating hazards and risks incidental to processing, transporting, fractionating
and storing natural gas and NGLs and to transporting and storing crude oil. These include:

¢ damage to pipelines, plants, related equipment and surrounding properties caused by floods, hurricanes, and
other natural disasters;

e inadvertent damage from construction and farm equipment;
» leakage of crude oil, natural gas, NGLs and ather hydrocarbons;
» fires and explosions; and

¢ other hazards, including those associated with high-sulfur content, or sour gas that could also result in personal
injury and loss of life, pollution and suspension of operations.

As a result, we may be a defendant in various legal proceedings and litigation arising from our operations. We may
not be able to maintain or obtain insurance of the type and amount we desire at reasonable rates. Market conditions could
cause certa.n insurance premiums and deductibles to become unavailable, or available only for reduced amounts of coverage.
For example, insurance carriers now require broad exclusions for losses due to war risk and terrorist acts. If we were to incur
a significant liability for which we were not fully insured, it could have a material adverse effect on our operations and cash
flows available for distribution to our unitholders.

As a result of damage caused by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita in the Gulf of Mexico and Gulf Coast regions in
2005, insurance costs related to oil and gas assets in these regions have increased significantly. We may be
unable to obtain insurance on our interest in Starfish at rates we consider reasonable.

We own a 50% non-operating membership interest in Starfish, whose assets are located in the Gulf of Mexico and
southwestern Louisiana. During 2005, Hurricanes Katrina and Rita caused severe and widespread damage to oil and gas
assets in the Gulf of Mexico and Gulf Coast regions. The loss to both offshore and onshore assets resulting from the
hurricanes has led to substantial insurance claims within the oil and gas industry. Insurance costs have increased within this
region as a result of these developments. We have renewed our insurance coverage relating to Starfish and mitigated a
portion of the cost increase by reducing our coverage and broadening the self-insurance element of our overall coverage. In
the future, we may be unable to obtain adequate insurance on our interest in Starfish at rates we consider reasonable and as a
result may experience losses that are not insured or that exceed the maximum limits under our insurance policies. If a
significant negative event that is not fully insured occurs with respect 1o Starfish, it could adversely affect our operations and
cash flows available for distribution to our unitholders.

Our business may suffer if any of our key senior executives or other key employees discontinues employment with
us or if we are unable to recruit and retain highly skilled staff.

Our future success depends to a large extent on the services of our key employees. Qur business depends on our
continuing ability to recruit, train and retain highly qualified employees, including accounting, business operations, finance
and other key back-office and mid-office personnel. The competition for these employees is intense, and the loss of these
zmployees could harm our business. Further, our ability to successfully integrate acquired companies depends in part on its
ability to retain key management and existing employees at the time of the acquisition.

A shortage of skilled labor may make it difficult for us to maintain labor productivity, and competitive costs could
adversely affect our operations and cash flows available for distribution to our unitholders.

Our operations require skilled and experienced laborers with proficiency in multiple tasks. In recent years, a

shortage of workers trained in various skills associated with the midstream energy business has caused us to conduct certain
operations without full staff, which decreases our productivity and increases our costs. This shortage of trained workers is the
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result of the previous generation’s experienced workers reaching the age for retirement, combined with the difficulty of
attracting new laborers to the midstream energy industry. Thus, this shortage of skilled labor could continue over an extended
period. If the shortage of experienced labor continues or worsens, it could have an adverse impact on our labor productivity
and costs and our ability to expand production in the event there is an increase in the demand for our products and services,
which could adversely affect our operations and cash flows available for distribution to our unitholders.

Terrorist attacks aimed at our facilities could adversely affect our business.

Since the September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks, the U.S. government has issued warnings that energy assets,
specifically the nation’s pipeline infrastructure, may be future targets of terrorist organizations. These developments will
subject our operations to increased risks. Any future tetrorist attack that may target our facilities, those of our customers and,
in some cases, those of other pipelines, could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Risks Related to Qur Partnership Structure

We may issue additional common units without unithelder approval, which would dilute your ownership
interests.

The General Partner, without your approval, may cause us to issue additional common units or other equity
securities of equal rank with or senior to the common units.

The issuance of additional common units or other equity securities of equal or senior rank will have the following
effects:

¢ the unitholders’ proportionate ownership interest will decrease;
e the amount of cash available for distribution on each common unit may decrease;
¢ the relative voting strength of each previously outstanding common unit may be diminished,;

e the market price of the common units may decline; and

the ratio of taxable income to distributions may increase.

Unitholders have less ability to influence management’s decisions than helders of common stock in a
corporation.

Unlike the holders of common stock in a corporation, unitholders have more limited voting rights on matters
affecting our business, and therefore a more limited ability to influence management’s decisions regarding our business.
Unitholders did not elect our General Partner, but will now have the right to elect our General Partner’s board of directors.
The amended and restated partnership agreement provides that the General Partner may not withdraw and may not be
removed at any time for any reason whatsoever. Furthermore, if any person or group other than the General Partner and its
affiliates acquires beneficial ownership of 20% or more of any class of units (without the prior approval of the General
Partner board), that person or group loses voting rights on all of its units. However, if unitholders are dissatisfied with the
performance of our General Partner, they have the right to annually elect its board of directors.

Unitholders may not have limited liability if a court finds that unitholder action constitutes control of our
business.

Under Delaware law, unitholders could be held liable for our obligations as a general partner if a court determined
that the right or the exercise of the right by unitholders as a group to approve certain transactions or amendments to the
agreement of limited partnership, or to take other action under the Partnership Agreement was considered participation in the
“control” of our business. Afier the redemption and merger, unitholders will elect the members of the General Partner board,
which may be deemed to be participation in the “control” of our business. This could subject unitholders to liability as a
general partner.
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In addition, Section 17-607 of the Delaware Revised Uniform Limited Partnership Act provides that, under some
circumstances, a unitholder may be liable to us for the amount of a distribution for a period of three years from the date of the
distribution.

If we were subjected to a material amount of additional entity-level taxation by individual states, it would reduce
our cash available for distribution to unitholders.

Changes in current state law may subject us to additional entity-level taxation by individual states. Because of
widespreac state budget deficits and other reasons, several states are evaluating ways to subject partnerships to entity-level
taxation through the imposition of state income, franchise and other forms of taxation. Imposition of any such taxes may
substantial y reduce the cash available for distribution to our unitholders. For example, the state of Texas and the state of
Michigan have both instituted income-based taxes that result in an entity level tax for the partnership. Beginning in 2008, the
Partnership will be required to pay Texas franchise tax at a maximum effective rate of 1.0% of our gross income apportioned
to Texas in the prior year. Additionally, the Michigan Business Tax, which contains two prongs, also imposes a tax on the
partnershig. The two prongs comprise a tax at the rate of 0.8% of a taxpayer’s modified gross receipts and a tax at the rate of
4.95% of the taxpayer’s business income. Each of the above mentioned rates also includes a surcharge of 21.99% resulting in
overall rates of 0.97% and 6.03%. The imposition of entity tevel taxes on us by Texas and Michigan and, if applicable, by
any other state will reduce the cash available for distribution to our unitholders. The amended and restated partnership
agreement provides that if a law is enacted or existing law is modified or interpreted in a manner that subjects us to additional
amounts of entity-level taxation, the minimum quarterly distribution amount and the target distribution amounts may be
adjusted to reflect the impact of that law on us.

Tax Risks to Existing Unitholders

A existing unitholder may be required to recognize gain as a result of the decrease in his distributive share of
our nonrecourse liabilities as a result of the Merger.

As result of the merger, the allocable shares of nonrecourse liabilities allocated to existing unitholders will be
recalculated to take into account common units issued by us in exchange for Company common stock. If an existing
unitholder zxperiences a reduction in our unitholder’s share of nonrecourse liabilities as a result of the merger, a “reducing
debt shift,” our unitholder will be deemed to have received a cash distribution equal to the amount of the reduction. A
reduction in our unitholder’s share of liabilities will result in a corresponding basis reduction in our unitholder’s common
units. A reducing debt shift and the resulting deemed cash distribution may, under certain circumstances, result in the
recognition of taxable gain by our unitholder. If the reduction in our unitholder’s share of nonrecourse liabilities and the
resulting deemed cash distribution exceeds such unitholder’s common unit basis, such unitholder would recognize gain in an
amount equal to such excess. We do not expect that any constructive cash distribution will exceed an existing unitholder’s tax
basis in owr common units,

Tax Risks Related to Owaing our Common Units

Our tax treatment depends on our status as a partnership for federal income tax purposes. If the IRS were to
treat us as a corporation for federal income tax purposes, then our cash available for distribution to
unitholders could be substantially reduced.

The anticipated after-tax benefit of an investment in the common units depends largely on our being treated as a
partnership for federal income tax purposes. We have not requested, and do not plan to request, a ruling from the IRS on this
or any other matter affecting us.

If we were treated as a corporation for federal income tax purposes, we would pay federal income tax on our income
at the corporate tax rate, which is currently a maximum of 35%, and would likely pay state income tax at varying rates.
Distributions to our unitholders would generally be taxed again as corporate distributions, and no income, gains, losses,
deductions or credits would flow through to our unitholders. Because a tax would be imposed upon us as a corporation, our
cash flows would be substantially reduced. Therefore, our treatment as a corporation would result in a material reduction in
the anticipzted cash flow and after-tax return to our unitholders, likely causing a substantial reduction in the value of the
common units.
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Current law may change, causing us to be treated as a corporation for federal income tax purposes ot otherwise
subjecting us to entity-level taxation. For example, at the federal level, legislation has been proposed that would eliminate
partnership tax treatment for certain publicly traded partnerships. Any modification to the federal income tax laws and
interpretations thereof may or may not be applied retroactively. Although such legislation would not apply to us as currently
proposed, it could be amended prior to enactment in a manner that does apply to us. We are unable to predict whether any of
these changes or other proposals will ultimately be enacted. Any such changes could negatively impact the value of an
investment in our common units.

The partnership agreement provides that if a law is enacted or existing law is modified or interpreted in a manner
that subjects us to taxation as a corporation or otherwise subjects us to entity-level taxation for federal, state or local income
tax purposes, then the minimum quarterly distribution amount and the target distribution amounts will be reduced to reflect
the impact of that law on us.

If the IRS contests the federal income tax positions we take, the market for our common units may be adversely
impacted and the cost of any IRS contest will reduce our cash available for distribution to our unitholders.

We have not requested a ruling from the IRS with respect to our treatment as a partnership for federal income tax
purposes or any other matter affecting us. The IRS may adopt positions that differ from the positions we take. It may be
necessary to resort to administrative or court proceedings to sustain some or all of the positions we take. A court may not
agree with some or all of the positions we take. Any contest with the IRS may materially and adversely impact the market for
our common units and the price at which they trade. In addition, our costs of any contest with the IRS will be borne indirectly
by our unitholders and the General Partner because the costs will reduce our cash available for distribution.

A unitholder may be required to pay taxes on his share of our income even if the unitholder does not receive any
cash distributions from us.

Because our unitholders will be treated as partners to whom we will allocate taxable income which could be
different in amount than the cash we distribute, each unitholder will be required to pay any federal income taxes and, in some
cases, state and local income taxes on his share of our taxable income even if the unitholder receives no cash distributions
from us. A unitholder may not receive cash distributions from us equal to his share of our taxable income or even equal to the
actual tax liability that results from that income.

Tax gain or loss on the disposition of our common units could be more or less than expected.

If a unitholder sells his commen units, he will recognize a gain or loss equal to the difference between the amount
realized and his tax basis in those common units. Because distributions in excess of the unitholder’s allocable share of our net
taxable income decrease the unitholder’s tax basis in his commeon units, the amount, if any, of such prior excess distributions
with respect to the common units the unitholder selis will, in effect, become taxable income to the unitholder if the unitholder
sells such common units at a price greater than his tax basis in those common units, even if the price the unitholder receives
is less than his original cost. Furthermore, a substantial portion of the amount realized, whether or not representing gain, may
be taxed as ordinary income due to potential recapture items, including depreciation recapture. In addition, because the
amount realized includes a unitholder’s share of our nonrecourse liabilities, if the unitholder sells his units, the unitholder
may incur a tax liability in excess of the amount of cash the unitholder receives from the sale.

Tax-exempt entities and non-U.S. persons face unique tax issues from owning our common units that may result
in adverse tax consequences to them.

Investment in our common units by tax-exempt entities, such as employee benefit plans and individual retirement
accounts (known as IRAs), and non-U.S. persons raises issues unique to them. For example, virtually all of our income
allocated to organizations that are exempt from federal income tax, including IRAs and other retirement plans, will be
unrelated business taxable income and will be taxable to them, Distributions to non-U.S. persons will be reduced by
withholding taxes at the highest applicable effective tax rate, and non-U.S. persons will be required to file federal tax returns
and pay tax on their share of our taxable income. If a unitholder is a tax exempt entity or a non-U.S. person, the unitholder
should consult a tax advisor before investing in our common units.
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We treat each purchaser of our common units as having the same tax benefits without regard to the actual
common units purchased. The IRS may challenge this treatment, which could adversely affect the value of
our cOmmon units.

Because we cannot match transferors and transferees of our common units and because of other reasons, we will
adopt depreciation and amortization positions that may not conform to all aspects of existing Treasury regulations. A
successful [RS challenge to those positions could adversely affect the amount of tax benefits available to our unitholders. It
also could affect the timing of these tax benefits or the amount of gain from a unitholder’s sale of our common units and
could have a negative impact on the value of our common units or result in audit adjustments to a unitholder’s tax returns.

We prorate our items of income, gain, loss and deduction between transferors and transferees of our common
units each month based upon the ownership of the common units on the first day of each month, instead of
on the basis of the date a particular common unit is transferred. The IRS may challenge this treatment,
which could change the allocation of items of income, gain, loss and deduction among our unitholders.

We prorate our items of income, gain, loss and deduction between transferors and transferees of our units each
month based upon the ownership of the units on the first day of each month, instead of on the basis of the date a particular
common unit is transferred. The use of this proration method may not be permitted under existing Treasury Regulations. If
the IRS were to challenge this method or new Treasury regulations were issued, we may be required to change the allocation
of items of income, gain, loss and deduction among our unitholders.

A unitholder whese common units are loaned to a “short seller” to cover a short sale of common units may be
considered as having disposed of those common units. If so, he would no longer be treated for tax purposes
as a partner with respect to those common units during the period of the loan and may recognize gain or loss
Jrom the disposition.

Because a unitholder whose common units are loaned to a “short seller” to cover a short sale of common units may
be consideied as having disposed of the loaned units, he may no longer be treated for tax purposes as a partner with respect to
those common units during the period of the loan to the short seller and the unitholder may recognize gain or loss from such
disposition. Moreover, during the period of the loan to the short seller, any of our income, gain, loss or deduction with respect
to those common units may not be reportable by the unitholder and any cash distributions received by the unitholder as to
those common units could be fully taxable as ordinary income. Unitholders desiring to assure their status as partners and
avoid the risk of gain recognition from a loan to a short seller are urged to modify any applicable brokerage account
agreements to prohibit their brokers from borrowing their commeon units.

We have adopted certain valuation methodologies that may result in a shift of income, gain, loss and deduction
between the General Partner and our unitholders. The IRS may challenge this treatment, which could
adversely affect the value of our common units.

When we issue additional common units or engage in certain other transactions, we will determine the fair market
value of our assets and allocate any unrealized gain or loss attributable to our assets to the capital accounts of our unitholders
and the General Partner. Qur methodology may be viewed as understating the value of our assets. In that case, there may be a
shift of income, gain, loss and deduction between certain unitholders and the General Partner, which may be unfavorable to
such unithclders. Moreover, under our valuation methods, subsequent purchasers of common units may have a greater
portion of their Internal Revenue Code Section 743(b) adjustment allocated to our tangible assets and a lesser portion
allocated tc our intangible assets. The IRS may challenge our valuation methods, or our allocation of the Section 743(b)
adjustment attributable to our tangible and intangible assets, and allocations of income, gain, loss and deduction between the
(enera! Partner and certain of our unithelders.

A successful IRS challenge to these methods or allocations could adversely affect the amount of taxable income or
loss being allocated to our unitholders. It also could affect the amount of gain from the sale of common units by our
unitholders and could have a negative impact on the value of our common units or result in audit adjustments (o the tax
returns of our unitholders without the benefit of additional deductions.
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The sale or exchange of 50% or more of our capital and profits interests during any 12-month period would
result in our termination for federal income tax purposes.

We would be considered to have terminated for federal income tax purposes if there were a sale or exchange of 50%
or more of the total interests in our capital and profits within a twelve-month period. Our termination would, among other
things, result in the closing of our taxable year for all unitholders, which would result in us filing two tax returns (and the
unitholders could receive two Schedules K-1) for one fiscal year and could result in a deferral of depreciation deductions
allowable in computing our taxable income. In the case of a unitholder reporting on a taxable year other than a fiscal year
ending December 31, the closing of our taxable year may also result in more than twelve months of our taxable income or
loss being includable in his taxable income for the year of termination. Our termination currently would not affect our
classification as a partnership for federal income tax purposes, but instead, we would be treated as a new partnership for tax
purposes. If treated as a new partnership, we would make new tax elections and could be subject to penalties if we are unable
to determine that a termination occurred.

Our unitholders will likely be subject to state and local taxes and return filing requirements in states where the
unitholders do not live as a result of investing in common units.

In addition to federal income taxes, our unitholders will likely be subject to other taxes, including foreign, state and
local taxes, unincorporated business taxes and estate, inheritance or intangible taxes that are imposed by the various
jurisdictions in which we conduct business or own property now or in the future, even if our unitholders do not live in any of
those jurisdictions. Our unitholders will likely be required to file foreign, state and local income tax returns and pay state and
local income taxes in some or all of these various jurisdictions. Further, our unitholders may be subject to penalties for failure
to comply with those requirements. We currently do business or own property in nine states, most of which impose personal
income taxes. Most of these states also impose an income tax on corporations and other entities. As we make acquisitions or
expand our business, we may own assets or conduct business in additional states that impose a personal income tax. It is our
unitholder’s responsibility to file all United States federal, foreign, state and local tax returns.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
ITEM 2. Properties

The following tables set forth certain information relating to our gas processing facilities, fractionation facility,
natural gas pipelines, NGL pipelines, and crude oil pipeline as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Gas Processing Facilities:

Year ended December 31, 2007

Design Utilization
Year of Initial Throughput  Natural Gas of Design NGL
Facility Location Construction Capacity Throughput Capacity Throughput
(Mcfid) {Mcfid) (Gal/d)
East Texas:
East Texas processing plant ............... Panola County, TX 20035 200,000 175,400 88% NA
Oklahoma:
Arapaho processing plant.........oiees Custer County, OK 2000 100,000 104,000 104% 239,800
Appalachia:
Kenova processing plant(1)............... Wayne County, WV 1996 160,000 133,200 83% NA
Boldman processing plant(l) .. .. Pike County, KY 1991 70,000 39,300 56% NA
Cobb processing plant..........cccceeveee.. . Kanawha County, WV 2005 30,000 27,700 92% NA
Kermit processing plant(1)(2)............ Mingo County, WV 2001 32,000 NA NA NA
Michigan:
Fisk processing plant............ccoconene.. Manistee County, Ml 1998 35,000 5,200 15% 10,700
Gulf Coast:
Javelina processing plant.................... Corpus Christi, TX 1989 142,000 114,500 81% 1,048,800

)] A portion of the gas processed at the Boldman plant, and all of the gas processed at Kermit plant, is further
processed at Kenova plant to recover additional NGLs.

33




ey

The Kermit processing plant is operated by a third party solely to prevent liquids from condensing in the gathering

and transmission pipelines upstream of our Kenova plant. We do not receive Kermit gas volume information but do
receive all of the liquids produced at the Kermit facility.

Fractionation Facility:

Year ended
December 31, 2007
Design Utilization
Year of Initial Throughput NGL of Design
Pipeline Location Construction Capacity Throughput Capacity
(Gal/d) (Gal/d)
Appalachia:
Siloam fractionation plant............ccovuesenren. SoUth Shore, KY 1957 600,000 452,200 75%
Natural Gus Pipelines:
Year ended
December 31, 2007
Design Utilization
Year of Initial ~ Throughput  Natural Gas of Design
_Facility Location Miles Construction Capacity Throughput Capacity
(Mef/d) (Mcf/d)
East Texas:
East Texas gathering system.........  Panola County, TX il 1990 440,000 413,700 94%
Oklahoma:
Foss Lake zathering system.......... Roger Mills and Custer County,
OK 240 1998 120,000 104,000 87%
Grimes gathering system............... Beckham, Roger Mills
Counties, OK 25 2005 25,000 12,500 50%
Woodford zathering system.......... Hughes, Pittsburg and Coal
Counties, OK 40 2006 300,000 114,000 38%
Other Southvest:
Appleby gathering system............. Nacogdoches County, TX 139 1990 85,000 58,700 69%
Other gathering systems...............  Various Various 36,500 8,700 24%
Michigan:
90-mile gas gathering pipeline...... Manistee, Mason and Oceana
Counties, M1 90 1994-1998 35,000 5,200 15%
NGL Pipelines:
Year ended
December 31, 2007
Design Utilization
Year of Initiat  Throughput NGL of Design
_Pipeline Location Miles Construction Capacity Throughput Capacity
(Gal/d) (Gal/d)
Appalachia:
Ranger to Kenova(3) .........................  Lincoln County, WV to
Wayne County, WV 40 1976 831,000 0 0%
Kenova to Siloam......oivnnieie. Wayne County, WV to South
Shore, KY 40 1957 831,000 253,500 31%
East Texas:
East Texas liquidline.........ccccrneeee.. Panola County, TX 375 2005 630,000 492,100 78%
(3) NGLs transported through the Ranger to Kenova pipeline are combined with NGLs recovered at the Kenova facility

and the combined NGL stream is transported in the Kenova to Siloam pipeline,
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Crude Oil Pipeline:

Year ended
December 31, 2007
Design Utilization of
Year of Initial Throughput NGL Design

Pipeline Location Miles Construction Capacity Throughput Capacity
(Gal/d) (Gal/d)

Michigan:

Michigan crude pipeline.................... Manistee County, Ml to
Crawford County, Ml 250 1973 60,000 14,000 23%
Title to Properties

Substantially all of our pipelines are constructed on rights-of-way granted by the owners of record of the property.
Lands over which pipeline rights-of-way have been obtained may be subject to prior liens that have not been subordinated to
the right-of-way grants. We have obtained, where determined necessary, permits, leases, license agreements and franchise
ordinances from public autherities to cross over or under, or to lay facilities in or along water courses, county roads,
municipal streets and state highways, as applicable. We also have obtained easements and license agreements from railroad
companies to cross over or under railroad properties or rights-of-way. Many of these authorizations and grants are revocable
at the election of the grantor. In some cases, property on which our pipelines were built was purchased in fee or held under
long-term leases. Qur Siloam fractionation plant and Kenova processing plant are on land that we own in fee.

Some of the leases, easements, rights-of-way, permits, licenses and franchise ordinances that were transferred to us
required the consent of the then-current landowner to transfer these rights, which in some instances was a governmental
entity. We believe that we have obtained sufficient third-party consents, permits and authorizations for the transfer of the
asscts necessary for us to operate our business. We also believe we have satisfactory title or other right to all of our material
land assets. Title to these properties is subject to encumbrances in some cases; however, we believe that none of these
burdens will materially detract from the value of these properties or from our interest in these properties, or will materially
interfere with their use in the operation of our business.

We have pledged substantially all of our assets to secure the debt of our subsidiary, MarkWest Energy Operating
Company, L.L.C. {the “Operating Company”), as discussed in Note 11 of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

We are subject to a variety of risks and disputes, and are a party to various legal proceedings in the normal course of
our business. We maintain insurance policies in amounts and with coverage and deductibles as we believe are reasonable and
prudent. However, we cannot assure either that the insurance companies will promptly honor their policy obligations or that
the coverage or levels of insurance will be adequate to protect us from all material expenses related to future claims for
property loss or business interruption to the Partnership and the Company (collectively MarkWest); or for third-party claims
of personal and property damage; or that the coverages or levels of insurance it currently has will be avatlable in the future at
economical prices. While it is not possible to predict the outcome of the legal actions with certainty, management is of the
opinion that appropriate provision and accruals for potential losses associated with all legal actions have been made in the
financial statements.

In June 2006, the Office of Pipeline Safety (“OPS™) issued a Notice of Probable Violation and Proposed Civil
Penalty (“NOPV”) (CPF No. 2-2006-5001) to both MarkWest Hydrocarbon and Equitable Production Company. The NOPV
is associated with the pipeline leak and an ensuing explosion and fire that occurred on November &, 2604 in Ivel, Kentucky
on an NGL pipeline owned by Equitable Production Company and previously leased and operated by our subsidiary,
MarkWest Energy Appalachia, LLC, The NOPV sets forth six counts of violations of applicable regulations, and a proposed
civil penalty in the aggregate amount of $1,070,000. An administrative hearing on the matter, previously set for the last week
of March, 2007, was postponed to allow the administrative record to be produced and to allow OPS an opportunity to respond
to a motion to dismiss one of the counts of violations, which involves $825,000 of the $1,070,000 proposed penalty. This
count arises out of alleged activity in 1982 and 1987, which predates MarkWest’s leasing and operation of the pipeline.
MarkWest believes it has viable defenses to the remaining counts and will vigorously defend all applicable assertions of
violations at the hearing.
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Related to the above referenced 2004 pipeline explosion and fire incident, MarkWest Hydrocarbon and the
Partnership have filed an action captioned MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc., et al. v. Liberty Mutual Ins. Co., et al. (District
ourt, Arapahoe County, Colorado, Case No. 05CV3953 filed August 12, 2005}, as removed to the U.S. District Court for
the District of Colorado, (Civil Action No. 1:05-CV-1948, on October 7, 2005) against their All-Risks Property and Business
Interruptior: insurance carriers as a result of the insurance companies’ refusal to honor their insurance coverage obligation to
pay the Partnership for certain costs related to the pipeline incident. The costs include internal costs incurred for damage to,
and loss of use of the pipeline, equipment and products; extra transportation costs incurred for transporting the liquids while
the pipeline was out of service; reduced volumes of liquids that could be processed; and the costs of complying with the OPS
Corrective Action Order (hydrostatic testing, repait/replacement and other pipeline integrity assurance measures). Following
initial discovery, MarkWest was granted leave of the Court to amend its complaint to add a bad faith claim and a claim for
punitive damages. The Partnership has not provided for a receivable for any of the ¢laims in this action because of the
uncertainty as to whether and how much it will ultimately recover under the policies. The costs associated with this claim
have been expensed as incurred and any potential recovery from the All-Risks Property and Business Interruption insurance
carriers will be treated as “other income” if and when it is received. The Defendant insurance companies and MarkWest have
cach fiied szparate summary judgment motions in the action.

With regard to our Javelina facility, MarkWest Javelina is a party with numerous other defendants to several
lawsuits brought by various plaintiffs who had residences or businesses located near the Corpus Christi industrial area, an
area which included the Javelina gas processing plant, and several petroleum, petrochemical and metal processing and
refining operations. These suits, Victor Huff v. ASARCO Incorporated, et al. (Cause No. 98-01057-F, 214" Judicial Dist. Ct.,
County of Nueces, Texas, original petition filed in March 3, 1998); Jason and Dianne Gutierrez, individually and as
representative of the estate of Sarina Galan Gutierrez (Cause No. 05-2470-A, 28" Judicial District, severed May 18, 2005,
from the Gonzales case cited above); and Esmerefilda G. Valasquez, et al. v. Occidental Chemical Corp., et al., Case No. A-
060352-C, 128" Judicial District, Orange County, Texas, original petition filed July 10, 2006; as refiled from previously
dismissed petition captioned Jesus Villarreal v. Koch Refining Co. et al., Cause No. 05-01977-F, 214" Judicial Dist. Ct.,
County of Nueces, Texas, originally filed April 27, 2005), set forth claims for wrongful death, personal injury or property
damage, harm to business operations and nuisance type claims, allegedly incurred as a result of operations and emissions
from the various industrial operations in the area or from products Defendants allegedly manufactured, processed, used, or
distributed. The actions have been and are being vigorously defended and; based on initial evaluation and consultations; it
appears at this time that these actions should not have a material adverse impact on our business.

In the ordinary course of business, we are party to various other legal actions. In the opinion of management, none
of these actions, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition,
liquidity or results of operations.

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matter was submitted to a vote of the holders of our common units during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2007.

PART 11

ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Units, Related Unitholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

Our commen units have been listed on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE™), under the symbol “MWE,” since
May 2, 2007. Our cormmon units had been traded on the American Stock Exchange (“AMEX?"), under the symbol “MWE,”
from May :4, 2002 to May 2, 2007. Prior to May 24, 2002, our equity securities were not listed on any exchange, or traded
on any public trading market.

On January 25, 2007, the board of directors of the general partner of the Partnership declared a two-for-one unit
split, which became effective February 28, 2007. For all periods presented, all references to the number of units and per unit
net income and distribution amounts included in this report have been adjusted to give the effect for the unit split.

The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices of the common units as reported by NYSE or AMEX, as
well as the amount of cash distributions paid per quarter for 2007 and 2006
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Per Per
Common  Subordinated

Quarter Ended High Low Unit Unit(1) Record Date Payment Date
December 31, 2007 $34.71 $29.55 $0.570 $— February 7, 2008 February 14, 2008
September 30, 2007 $37.25 $29.78 $0.550 $— November 8, 2007 November 14, 2007
June 30, 2007 $38.00 833.27 $0.530 $0.530 August 8, 2007 August 14, 2007
March 31, 2007 $36.45 $28.51 $0.510 $0.510 May 9, 2007 May 15,2007
December 31, 2606 . $29.95 $23.38 $0.500 $0.500 February 8, 2007 February 14, 2607
September 30, 2006. $24.75 $20.50 30.485 $0.485 November 3, 2006 November 14, 2006
June 30, 2006........vcorvrrremrecriereece $23.33 $19.75 $0.460 $0.460 August 7, 2006 August 14, 2006
March 31, 2006.........c...conmiecrirnierieririns $24.00  521.76 $0.435 $0.435 May 5, 2006 May 15, 2006
(1) On August 15, 2007, the Partnership converted its remaining 1.2 million subordinated units to common units.

As of February 15, 2008 there were 167 holders of record of our common units.
Distributions of Available Cash

Within 45 days after the end of each quarter, we will distribute all of our “Available Cash” to unitholders of record
on the applicable record date. We will make distributions of “Available Cash” to all unitholders (commen and Class A), pro
rata and we will make distributions of Hydrocarbon Available Cash (as defined in our amended and restated partnership
agreement) pro rata to common unitholders. We define “Available Cash” in our amended and restated partnership agreement,
and we generally mean, for each fiscal quarter:

s  all cash and cash equivalents on hand at the end of the quarter (excluding cash at the Company);

o less the amount of cash that the General Partner determines in its reasonable discretion is necessary or
appropriate to:

s provide for the proper conduct of our business;
s comply with applicable law, any of our debt instruments, or other agreements; or
s provide funds for distributions to unitholders for any one or more of the next four quarters;

e plus all cash and cash equivalents on hand on the date of determination of available cash for the quarter
resulting from working capital borrowings made after the end of the quarter. Working capital
borrowings are generally borrowings that are made under our revolving credit facility and in all cases
are used solely for working capital purposes or to pay distributions to partners.

Generally, Hydrocarbon Available Cash is defined as all cash and cash equivalents on hand derived from or
attributable to our ownership of, or sale or other disposition of, the shares of common stock of the Company.

Our ability to distribute available cash is contractually restricted by the terms of our credit facilities. Our credit
facilities contain covenants requiring us to maintain certain financial ratios and a minimum net worth. We are prohibited
; from making any distribution to unitholders if such distribution would cause an event of default or otherwise violate a
| covenant under our credit facilities. In addition, our credit facilities prohibit us from borrowing more than $0.375 per
outstanding unit during any consecutive 12-month period for the purpose of making distributions to unitholders. Our credit
| facilities provide that any amount so borrowed must be repaid once annually.

There is no guarantee that we will pay a minimum quarterly distribution on the common units in any quarter.
Incentive Distribution Rights
Incentive distribution rights represent the right to receive an increasing percentage of quarterly distributions of

available cash after a minimum quarterly distribution and certain target distribution levels have been achieved. All incentive
distribution rights were eliminated as a result of the merger.
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Distributions of Cash Upon Liquidation

If we dissclve in accordance with the amended and restated partnership agreement, we will sell or otherwise dispose
of our asse’s in a process called liquidation. We will first apply the proceeds of liquidation to the payment of its creditors. We
will distribute any remaining proceeds to the unitholders, in accordance with their capital account balances, as adjusted to
reflect any gain or loss upon the sale or other disposition of our assets in liquidation.

Securities Authgrized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides information, as of December 31, 2007, regarding our common units that may be issued
upon conversion of outstanding restricted units granted under our 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan to employees and directors
of our general partner and employees of its affiliates who perform services for us. For more information about this plan,
which did 1ot require approval by the Partnership’s limited partners, you should read Note 13 of the accompanying Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

Number of
Number of securities
securities to be Weighted- remaining
issued upon average exercise available for future
exercise of price of issuance under
outstanding outstanding equity
options, warrants options, warrants compensation
and rights and rights(1} plans
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders: — — —
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders:
Long-Term Incentive Plan—(restricted units).........coovcvvervnnnns 125,250 — 87,280
Long-Term Incentive Plan—{unit options}......c.c.ccccvvvccrnnnnene — — 600,000
125,250 — 687,280

(1 Restricted units are granted with no exercise price.

In connection with the Merger, the Partnership assumed the MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan
(“2006 Plan”} which converted the outstanding shares of restricted stock granted under the 2006 Plan to restricted units. The
converted 1estricted units will remain outstanding under the term of the 2006 Plan until their respective settlement dates. The
2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2008 LTIP™) was approved by the unitholders on February 21, 2008, which makes
available 2.5 million Partnership common units for issuance in the future. Refer to Note 22 of the accompanying Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

Total Return to Stockholders
(Assumes $100 Investment on 12/31/02)
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—o— MarkWest Energy Partners, LP —&—Peer Group (a) —¢— S&P 500 Index —a— Alerian MLP Index

(a)

Comprised of Crosstex Energy L.P., Atlas Pipeline Partners L.P., Martin Midstream Partners L.P., Magellan
Midstream Partners, L.P.
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth setected consolidated historical financial and operating data for MarkWest Energy
Partners. We have derived the summary selected historical financial data from our consolidated financial statements and
related notes. All earnings per share and dividend information have been updated to reflect the February 2007 two-for-one
unit split. The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the combined and consolidated financial statements,
including tae notes thereto, and Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operation in this Form 10-K.

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005(1) 2004(2) 2003(3)
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Statement of Operations:

REVENUES(AY:....r e errrmreersrersrsesererarsrssseressssnas s sssssasssssssnasarsasses $602,879 $629.911 $541,050 $319,119 $117,430
Operating 'xpenses
Purchased product COSES ........c e reeeeecevererrsarsrorsesrarensesrsvsrens 358,720 376,237 408,884 229,339 70,832
Facility ex-yenses(4).... 75,036 60,112 47,972 29,911 20,463
Selling, geaeral and admlmstmuve expenses 51,334 44,377 21,597 16,162 8,598
Depreciation 40,171 29,993 19,534 15,556 7,548
Amortization ofmtanglble BSSELS. e e reescremsrisrvenrerenes 16,672 16,047 9,656 3,640 —
Loss {gain) on disposal of propenty, plant and cqulpment 7,564 (192) (24) (29) —
Accretion of asset retirement obligations .......c.cooererrrenenen 114 102 159 13 —
IMPBIITHIEIES ..o ettt ettt s e s 356 — ~— i30 1,148
Total operating EXPEIISES cvvvrvrrererarsraressmmssasesararsssrarssarsrassrases 549,967 526,676 507,778 294,722 108,589
[ncome fTom OPErations ......ccociuecrerienrens vt smeremereemsasssareserars 52,912 103,235 33,312 24,397 8,841
Earnings (losscs) from uncensolidated affiliates 5,309 5,316 (2,153) (65) —
Interest income ... 2,887 962 367 87 14
Interest expense ... (38,946) (40,666) (22,469) (9,236) (3,087)
Amortizatin of deferred ﬁnancmg cosls and ongmal issue
discoun: (a component of interest eXpense)......ccooeevververens 2,7117) (9,094) (6,780) (5,236} (984)
Miscellane ous (expense) inCoOme .....oouvevererennne (1,002) 11,100 78 15 ) (25)
Income before income taxes....... 18,443 70,853 2,355 9,962 4,759
Income tax expense......... (1,244) (769) — - —
INELINCUIMNE 1ottt et s ses e $17,199 $70,084 $2,355 59,962 $4,759
Net income: per limited partner unit: (see e 8—Note 2}
BASIC .ovvvere crrierer s s es st et e et b bt e $0.12 $2.45 $0.01 30.66 $0.47
Dlluled . $0.12 $2.44 $0.01 $0.65 $0.47
Cash d:smhuuons declarcd per llrmtcd panner umt $2.09 50179 $1.60 $i.43 $1.16
Balance Sheet Data (at December 31):
Working capital ... erer e en et e e na st e et s et e $(19,734) $4,258 $11,944 310,547 $2,457
Property, plant and cqmpment net 823,737 550,886 492,961 280,635 184,214
Total asset; ....... 1,392,834 1,114,780 1,046,093 529,422 212,871
Total long-term debl. 552,695 526,865 601,262 225,000 126,200
Partners’ CUPItal..........oovooeieeriececer e veee e s see s e ss st e nseen 611,323 452,649 307,175 241,142 64,944
Cash Flow Duta:
Net cash flow provided by (used in):
Operating activities $149,399 $150,977 $42,090 $42,275 $21,229
Investing activities...... (312,085} (119,338) (469,308) (273,176} {112,893)
FINancing aCtVItES ....coovivvieiuirimerieiorosio i s sersiesenes 154,789 {17,342) 423,060 246,411 97,641
Other Financial Data:
Maintenance capital eXpenditures(5}.......oceevemrevrrerevemserrsersrenas $3,602 $2,291 $2,181 $1,163 $1,041
Growth caf ital expenditures(5).. ..o ormrrrirerarens s srssess et sene 308,708 75,096 68,569 29,304 1,503
Total capital expenditires ...........cceeevvvemsersremrissisneonsironss $312,310 $77,387 $70,750 $30,467 $2,944
(N We completed our investment in Starfish on March 31, 2005, and acquired Javelina (Gulf Coast) on November 1,

2005.

2) We acquired our Hobbs lateral pipeline in April 2004.
We acquired our East Texas System in late July 20604,

3) Wz acquired our Foss Lake gathering system in December 2603.
W acquired our Arapaho processing plant in December 2003.
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We acquired our Pinnacle gathering systems in late March 2003.
We acquired our Lubbock pipetine (a/k/a the Power-tex Lateral Pipeline) in Septetnber 2003.
We acquired our Michigan Crude Pipeline in December 2003.

(4) Revenues and facility expenses have been impacted by the Partnership’s commodity derivative instruments. As
discussed further in Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk contained in this Form 10-
K, volatility in any given period related to unrealized gains and losses on our derivative positions can be significant.
We ultimately expect those gains and losses to be offset when they become realized. The following table
summarizes the unrealized and realized (losses) and gains included in revenues and facility expenses for the year
ended December 31 (in thousands):

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Revenues:
Unrealized {I088) S .......coveeooereremerecsreereeeereseremse §(62,388)  $6,245 $(657) $(71) $(67)
REAHZEA 10SS e oeer oo eeeeennen {4,155) (613) (1,194) (749) {(713)
(66,543) 5,632 {1,851) (820) (780)
Facility expenses:
Unrealized gain... 12 — — — —
TOtR] (JOSS) AL evereererscereceessoesserssesesssreserrerss $(66,531)  $5.632 $(1,851)  $(820)  $(780)

(5 Maintenance capital includes expenditures to replace partially or fully depreciated assets in order to maintain the
existing operating capacity of our assets and to extend their useful lives. Growth capital includes expenditures made
to expand or increase the efficiency of the existing operating capacity of our assets. Growth capital expenditures
include expenditures that facilitate an increase in volumes within our operations, whether through construction or
acquisition.

Operating Data

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Southwest:

East Texas(1)

Gathering systems throughput (Mcfld) 413,700 378,100 321,000 259,300 NA

NGL product sales (gallons} ... 179,601,000 161,437,000 126,476,000 41,478,000 NA
Oklahoma

Foss Lake gathering systems throughput (Mef/d) ....ovevvvnviviiennens 104,000 87,500 75,800 60,900 57,000

Woodford gathering systems throughput (Mcf/d)2) 114,000 34,000 NA NA NA

Grimes gathering system throughput (Mcf/d) ... 12,500 NA NA NA NA

Arapaho NGL product sales (gallons} ..........ccovvreerorrenrccerececnnas 87,522,000 79,093,000 60,903,000 45,273,000 2,910,000
Other Southwest

Appleby pathering systems throughput (Mcf/d) ..o 58,700 34,200 33,400 27,100 23,800

Other gathering systems throughput (Mel/d).....oooocereeccene 8,700 18,300 16,500 17,000 20,500

Northeast:

Appalachia(3)

Natural gas processed for a fee (Mef/d)....ccocvcovcncinmrrncnrerrenes 200,200 203,000 197,000 203,000 202,000
NGLs fractionated for a fee (Gal/day) ....o..cooeeoennienrreeerinns 452,200 454,800 430,000 475,000 458,000
NGL product sales (ZalIONS) ... rerercrenrererererececmnesesenenrenns 43,815,100 43,271,000 41,700,000 42,105,000 40,305,000

Michigan:

Natural gas processed for a fee (Mcf/d).. 5,200 6,500 6,600 12,300 15,000
NGL product sales (gallons) ... s 3,898,600 5,643,000 5,697,000 9,818,000 11,800,000
Crude oil transported for a fee (Bblld) 14,000 14,500 14,200 14,700 15,100

Gulf Coast(4):

Natural gas processed for a fee (Meffd)....ooovvviiviccicnininienininn. 114,500 124,300 115,000 NA NA
NGLs fractionated for a fee (Bbl/day) ........cccciemcvenivnnivienveinnns 25,000 26,200 19,400 NA NA

(1) We acquired the East Texas system in late July 2004,

(2) In late 2006 we began the construction and operation of the Woodford gathering system and compression system in
a four-county region in the Arkoma Basin in eastern Oklahoma. On December 1, 2006, the Partnership began
gathering gas on that system. The 2006 volume reported is the average daily rate for the month of December.

3) Includes throughput from the Kenova, Cobb, and Boldman processing plants.

4) We acquired the Javelina system (Gulf Coast) on November 1, 2005.
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ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Qperations

Maragement’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A ") contains statements that are forward-looking and should be
read in conjunction with “Selected Consolidated Financial Data " and our consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes included eisewhere in this report. These statements are based on current expectations and assumptions
that are subject to risks and uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied in the
Jorward-looking statements as a result of a number of factors.

Overview

We are a master limited partnership whose diverse portfolio of midstream assets serves many of the most prolific
natural gas basins in the United States. The Partnership 1s primarily engaged in the gathering, processing and transmission of
natural gas; the transportation, fractionation and storage of natural gas liquids; and the gathering and trangportation of crude
oil.

Our primary business strategy is to grow sustainable cash flow and cash distributions to our unitholders. The key
elements of our strategy are to optimize existing assets and services, to expand operations through new construction, and to
target accretive and complementary acquisitions and expansion opportunities that provide attractive growth potential.

On February 21, 2008, we completed a merger by and among MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. and MWEP, L.L.C,,
whereby MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Partnership. We anticipate that, through the
elimination of the incentive distribution rights, we will reduce our cost of capital and strengthen our competitive position.
The financial statements presented include the consolidated results of operations for the Partnership for periods prior to the
merger.

We are required by our partnership agreement to distribute available cash from operating surplus each quarter to pay
the minimum quarterly distribution, The amount of cash we can distribute on our units depends principally on the amount of
cash generated from our operations.

Our distributions have increased from $0.25 per unit for the quarter ended September 30, 2002 (its first full quarter
of operation efter its initial public offering), to $0.57 per unit for the quarter ended December 31, 2007. We issued 4.8 million
cormmon units at our initial public offering in 2002, compared to 39.4 million common units outstanding on December 31,
2007.

A significant part of our business strategy includes acquiring additional businesses that will allow us to increase
distributions 1o our unitholders. We regularly consider and enter into discussions regarding potential acquisitions. These
transactions can be effected quickly, may occur at any time and may be significant in size relative to our existing assets and
operations.

In September 2006, we announced a strategic agreement with Newfield Exploration which involves the construction
and operation of a new gathering and compression system to support all Newfield operated wells in a 200-square-mile project
area situated in a four-county region in the Arkoma Basin in eastern Oklahoma. We have continued to expand our
opportunities in this area.

In O:tober 2007, we announced we would invest approximately $100 million to expand our Javelina plant, located
in Corpus Christi, Texas. The steam methane reformer facility is expected to commence delivering high-purity hydrogen in
early 2010. This new facility is expected to produce in excess of 50 million cubic feet per day of high-purity hydrogen.

In January 2008, we entered into an option agreement with Midcontinent Express Pipeline LLC (“MEP LLC”) that
provides us with a one-time right to acquire 10 percent of the equity of MEP LLC after construction is complete on the
Midcontinent Express Pipeline (“MEP”) and it is placed into service. MEP LLC is a 50/50 joint venture between Kinder
Morgan Energy Partners, L.P. and Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. The MEP, connecting Bennington, Oklahoma, and
Perryville, Louisiana, will have initial capacity of 1.4 Bef/d.
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Impact of Acquisitions on Comparability of Financial Results

In reviewing our historical results of operations, investors should be aware of the impact of our past acquisitions,
which fundamentally affect the comparability of our results of operations over the periods discussed.

Since our initial public offering, we have completed nine acquisitions for an aggregate purchase price of
$810 million, net of working capital. Six of these acquisitions occurred in 2003 and 2004 and their results are included in the
results of operations from the acquisition date.

Two acquisitions occurred in 2005 and are included in the results of operations from the acquisition date.

o The Starfish acquisition closed on March 31, 2005, for consideration of $41.7 million. Nine months of Starfish
activity is reflected in results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2005.

» The Javelina acquisition closed on November 1, 20035, for consideration of $357.0 million, ptus $41.8 million
for net working capital. As a result, only two months of activity for Javelina is reflected in the results of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2005,

One acquisition occurred 2006 and it is included in the results of operations from the acquisition date.

¢ The Santa Fe acquisition closed on December 29, 2006 for consideration of $15.0 million. As a result, activity
for Grimes gathering system is reflected in the results of operations beginning in 2007,

Our Relationship with MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc.

We were formed by MarkWest Hydrocarbon in 2002 to acquire most of its natural gas gathering and processing
assets and NGL transportation, fractionation and storage assets, MarkWest Hydrocarbon remains one of our largest
customers. We expect to continue deriving a portion of our revenues from the services we provide under our contracts with
MarkWest Hydrocarbon for the foreseeable future; however, the percentage of our revenues and net operating margins (a
non-GAAP financial measure, see Item 1. Business—Our Contracts) will likely continue to decline as our other businesses
grow. For the year ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, revenues from MarkWest Hydrocarbon accounted for 12% of
our consolidated revenues.

MarkWest Hydrocarbon was founded in 1988 as a partnership and later incorporated in Delaware. MarkWest
Hydrocarbon is an energy company primarily focused on marketing NGLs. MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s assets consist
primarily of partnership interests in the Partnership and certain processing agreements in Appalachia.

Neither we nor our General Partner have any employees. However, under a Services Agreement entered into
between our General Partner and MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc., MarkWest Hydrocarbon acts in a management capacity
rendering day-to-day operational, business and asset management, accounting, information services, personnel and related
administrative services to the Partnership. In return, the Partnership reimburses MarkWest Hydrocarbon for all documented
expenses incurred on behalf of the Partnership and which are expressly designated as reasonably necessary for the
performance of the prescribed duties and specified functions. General corporate expenses and costs that are not specifically
linked to either MarkWest Hydrocarbon or us are allocated in accordance with an approved allocation methodology which is
designed to ensure that neither entity bears a disproportionate or unfair burden of the other company’s costs and expenses,
and is reflective of respective statements of operations.

As aresult of the merger and redemption discussed further in Note 22 of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K, we will continue to have a relationship with the Company. As of
February 22, 2008, the Company and its subsidiaries, in the aggregate, owns a 31% interest in the Partnership, consisting of
22,500,000 Class A Units. The merger and redemption do not affect the Services Agreement or any other operating
contractua! arrangement.

Results of Operations

We reported net income of $17.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to net income of
$70.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Contributing factors to the $52.9 million change in net income were:
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» losses from derivative instruments increasing $72.1 million. This change resulted from a $62.4 million increase
in non-cash unrealized losses, which are recognized in revenue and facility expense and $3.5 million increase in
cash realized losses, which are recognized in revenue and facilities expense. See Item 7A. Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk for further information on the potential volatility to our unrealized
gains and losses.

s a$12.1 million decrease in miscellaneous (expense) income mainly due to the change in insurance recoveries,
net of premiums, from our equity investment in Starfish.

o 2a3$7.8 million loss primarily from the conveyance of certain property, plant and equipment, and write off of
leasehold improvements in connection with our settlement with Equitable.

s 2 5$7.0 million increase in selling, general and administrative expenses mainly related to merger expenses.

s a $36.8 million increase in operating income before items not allocated to segments due to the Woodford
gathering system expansion, the acquisition of the Grimes gathering system, increased volumes and pricing in
Other Southwest and East Texas, improved pricing offsct by declines in almost all products in Javelina, and the
receipt of a utility refund of $3.6 mitlion in Javelina from a rate case concluded in the first quarter of 2007,

e 2 $6.4 million decrease in amortization of deferred finance costs attributable to costs associated with our debt
refinancing in the third quarter of 2006.

Segment Reporting

Our six geographical segments are: East Texas, Oklahoma, Other Southwest, Gulf Coast, Appalachia and Michigan.
We capture information in this MD&A by geographical segment, except that certain items are not allocated to our business
segments because management does not consider them in its evaluation of business unit performance. The segment
information appearing in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements, Segment Information, in ltem 8 of this Form 10-K,
is presented on a basis consistent with the Partnership’s internal management reporting, in accordance with SFAS No. 131,
Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.

Year Ended December 31, 2007, Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2006

East Texas
Year ended
December 31,
2007 2006

(in thousands)

REVEIIUEC ..ot eet s et st b s e st b e se s b b e b s s e sb b s se s banans $206,250 $174,279
Operating expenses:
Purchased product COSIS ..o 113,693 91,637
Facility @XPEISES .ovuvrvvrrerscmrieecrrrreicemenenec s s ees 16,871 15,683
Depreciation ..o ieeene e s 9.607 7,783
Amortization of intangible assets .......cccooveereriin i 8,269 8,244
Accretion of asset retirement obligations ... 52 44
Total operating expenses before selling, general and

administrative SXPenses. ... ierereerrerie e eeceeecieas 148,492 123,361
Operating income before items not allocated to segments ........... $57,758 $50,888

Revenue. Revenue increased $32.0 million, or 18%, during the year ended December 31, 2007, relative to 2006.
Revenues increased as a result of 18.2 million additional NGL gallons sold and 35,600 Mcf/d increase in gathering system
throughput. In addition, the average price for all NGLs sold has increased in 2007 as compared to the average price in 2006,
This increase was partially offset by a decrease in sales of natural gas due to an October 2006 change from a keep whole
purchase to a processing contract at our Carthage facility.
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Purchased Product Costs. Purchased product costs increased $22.1 million, or 24%, during the year ended
December 31, 2007, relative to 2006. The increase is related to increased average NGL pricing and additional NGL volumes
purchased under percent of liquid contracts offset by the contract change discussed above,

Facility Expenses. Facility expenses increased $1.2 million, or 8%, during the year ended December 31, 2007,
relative to 2006. The increase is related to increased payroll costs due to expanded operations, increase leased compression
expense until rented compressors were replaced with purchased compressors and increased property tax rates.

Depreciation. Depreciation expenses increased $1.8 million, or 23%, during the year ended December 31, 2007,
relative to 2006. The change is primarily due to expansion projects during 2007 and a full year of depreciation on 2006
projects.

Oklahoma
Year ended
December 31,
2007 2006

(in thousands)

REVEIIUE. ... cvirsr et saes e e et se e e e e s e e e e e b e se s sranbeeeas $229,800 $207,510
Operating expenses:
Purchased product COStS .....oovvirerrrciriin e 153,241 170,168
Facility 8XPENSES .....coovrreeere e e 20,291 7,883
DEPreciation .......c.cvvceee e crresserenreseeessess e ssene s seesssiens 11,104 3,007
Amortization of intangible assets ...........c.covvivernnnininiierennnns 598 —
Accretion of asset retirement obligations ........eccccovveciiierennnn. 28 26
Total operating expenses before selling, general and

AdMINISIratiVe EXPENSES ...ocviviiniririsisissarsesmreesrererrrrsrersrsrerns 185,262 181,084
Operating income before items not allocated to segments ............ $44,538 326,426

Revenue. Revenue increased $22.3 million, or 11%, during the year ended December 31, 2007, relative to 2006.
This increase is related primarily te an increase in volumes from our Woodford gathering system and the acquisition of the
Grimes gathering system. The Woodford gathering system, which we continue to develop and expand, had only one month of
activity in the 2006 year. In addition, increased NGL and condensate revenue from our other gathering systems occurred due
to increased volumes and pricing but was largely offset by decreased revenue attributable to some changes from purchasing
contracts to gathering contracts.

Purchased Product Costs. Purchased product costs decreased $16.9 mitlion, or 10%, during the year ended
December 31, 2007, relative to 2006. The decrease was mainly attributable to the contractual changes described above and
was offset by gas purchases related to our Woodford gathering system, which began operation in December 2006.

Facility Expenses. Facility expenses increased $12.4 million, or 157%, during the year ended December 31, 2007,
relative to 2006, The increase was primarily due to the startup of operations for the Woodford gathering system and

acquisition of the Grimes gathering system described above.

Depreciation. Depreciation expenses increased $8.0 million, or 268%, during the year ended December 31, 2007,
relative to 2006. The change is due to the Woodford gathering system being operational for a full year in 2007.
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Other Southwest

Year ended
December 31,
2007 2006
(in thousands)
REVEIIUE . oottt re s bt e s an e s rm e e e s e e eeamenan $67,411 384,595
Operating expenses:
Purchased product COStS .....ooovririiiee e 43,954 67,349
Facility eXPenses ..ot 6,883 5,638
DePreciation ... ..o 4,493 4100
Accretion of asset retirement obligations ...........coovevvescinirinnens 2] 20
IIMPAIIMENL ..ot s 356 —

Total operating expenses before selling, general and
adminiStrative EXPenSes ..o e rrrerereecererereneereines 55,707 77,107
Operating income before items not aliocated to segments ............... $11,704 §7.488

Revenue. Revenue decreased $17.2 million, or 20%, during the year ended December 31, 2007, relative to 2006.
The decrease is principally atiributed to a late second quarter 2006 change in the contract mix at our Appleby facility, from
purchasing zontracts to gathering contracts. This decrease was partially offset by transportation volumes increasing by
approximately 24,500 Mcf/d.

Purchased Product Costs. Purchased product costs decreased $23.4 million, or 35%, during the year ended
December 1, 2007, relative to 2006. The decrease in costs is primarily a result of lower purchased volumes due to a change
in our contract mix.

Fecility Expenses. Facility expenses increased $1.2 million, or 22%, during the year ended December 31, 2007,
relative to 2006. The increase was due to higher compression and system operating costs at our Appleby facility.

Depreciation. Depreciation expense increased $0.4 million, or 10%, during the year ended December 31, 2007,
relative to 2006. The change is primarily due to the addition of the redesign and expansion of the compressor stations in our
Appleby facility.

Impairments. lmpairments increased $0.4 million during the year ended December 31, 2007, relative to 2006. The
increase was due to the deemed impairment of a system as further discussed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

Appalachia
Year ended
December 31,
2007 2006
(in thousands)
Revenues:
Unaffiliated.........ocooiiei e e s $1,924  $2,027
AfTIHAted ... e 74,981 73,636
TOA] TEVEIUE .. ceeiceeecteeteeeee ettt sst e rae e e enbaereras 76,905 75,663
Operating expenses:
Purchased product COSS .....oo.vvreivncerecrcsiniii s 44718 43,648
Facilily eXpenses .......ccuviivisieeiveverninesisenns e vres e 14,463 13,997
Deprecialion ..o e 3,410 3,573
Accretion of asset retirement obligations ........c.ooeevivveeeiieinne. 13 12
Total operating expenses before selling, general and
AdMiniStralive EXPeNSES.....iieverirreeerermeneeereereeeaeereereeeereeses 62,604 61,230
Operating income before items not allocated to segments .............. $14,301 314,433
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Revenue. Total revenue increased $1.2 million, or 2%, during the year ended December 31, 2007, relative to 2006.
Effective November 16, 2007, Appalachia conveyed its Maytown facility to Equitable. As a result, revenue recognized in
Appalachia from that point forward was recognized net as an agent whereas before, Appalachia recognized revenue gross as a
principal. This resulted in decreased revenues of approximately $8.2 million during 2007. Without this change, revenue
would have increased $9.5 million, or 13%, during the year ended December 31, 2007 relative to 2006. The increase was
related to a 0.5 million gallons increase in volumes and a $0.19 per gallon price increase at our Maytown facility.

Purchased Product Costs. Purchased product costs increased $1.1 million, or 2%, during the year ended
December 31, 2007, relative to 2006. As discussed above, purchased product costs were decreased by $8.2 million during
2007 as a result of the conveyance of its Maytown facility to Equitable. Without this change, purchased product costs would
have increased by $9.3 million, or 21%, during the year ended December 31, 2007 relative to 2006. The rise in costs is
primarily a result of volumes and prices increasing at the Maytown facility, which accounted for $7.4 million of the overall
increase. Trucking expenses associated with the shutdown of the Appalachia Liquids Pipeline System (“ALPS”) increased
purchased product costs by $1.6 million.

Michigan
Year ended
December 31,
2007 2006

(in thousands)

REVENUE ... ettt et ess e e s s ness b s eb s £11,942 $13,282
Operating expenses:
Purchased product COSES .....coooverecrierrre e ae s 3,114 3,435
Facility eXPemnses .......ocviiriinniiee e 6,068 5,721
DEPreciation ....vviviseiinriic e 4,668 5015
Total operating expenses before selling, general and

administrative eXPENSES......cocourviicirnisisinriiicr e e seseae 13,851 14,171
Operating loss before items not allocated to segments.............ccc.c.. $(1,909) 5(889)

Revenue, Revenue decreased $1.3 million, or 10%, during the year ended December 31, 2007, relative to 2006. The
change is primarily due to decreased volumes, offset by an increase in prices at our West Shore facility. In addition, a sale of
inventory in our Michigan crude pipeline did not recur in 2007.

Purchased Product Costs. Purchased product costs decreased $0.3 million, or 9%, during the year ended
December 31, 2007, relative to 2006. The decrease in costs is due to lower volumes offset by higher prices at our West Shore
facility, as described above. In addition, a sale of inventory in our Michigan crude pipeline did not recur in 2007,

Given the continuing losses and moderately positive cash flows relating to the western Michigan gathering assets,
management continues 1o consider alternatives, and we are evaluating potential impairments on these assets. Management
determined there were no impairments as of December 31, 2007.

Gulf Coast
Year ended
December 31,
2007 2006

(in thousands)

REVENUE ..ottt ettt et e eee s srassran s $77.114 $68,950
Operating expenses:
Facility Xpenses ......ccovivimiiiiiiniiniiicn et 10,471 11,190
DePreciation ...ooc et e 6,619 6,500
Amortization of intangible assets ......c..ccocociieieeeeeeee e 7,805 7,803
Total operating expenses before selling, general and

AGMINISIIALIVE CXPENSES.ovveieierrrrer e vt es s eearesesrerereras 24 895 25493
Operating income before items not allocated to segments ............... $52,219 $43,457

47




Revenue. Revenues in the Gulf Coast business unit are generated under percent-of-proceeds arrangements and are
generally reported net of purchased product costs (see Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations—Revenue Recognition in Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates). We gather and process
rzfinery off-gas on behalf of refiners, return or sell the resulting residue gas, condensate and NGLs at market prices and remit
to refiners an agreed-upon percentage of the proceeds based on an actual revenues.

Revenue increased $8.2 million, or 12%, during the year ended December 31, 2007, relative to 2006. This was
primarily attributable to the incremental sate of 0.3 million barrels of pentanes, which increased revenue by approximately
$3.0 million, The pentanes are stored as a result of their seasonality and timing of the revenue generated from the sale cannot
be predicted. The remaining increase is due to improved pricing offset by volume declines in almost all products. Inlet rates
were lower .n 2007 because of two inlet gas compressor outages in the first half of the year as well as our planned fourth
quarter turnaround.

Faczility Expenses. Facility expenses decreased $0.7 million, or 6%, during the year ended December 31, 2007,
relative to 2006. This decrease is for the most part attributable to a utility refund of $3.6 million from a rate case concluded in
the first quarter of 2007. Without the refund, facility expenses were higher by $2.9 million, mainly due to increased payroll,
costs related to our fourth quarter turnaround and compressor repairs.

Reconciliation of Segment Operating Income to Consolidated Net [ncome

The following table provides a reconciliation of segment income to our consolidated net income. The ensuing items
listed below the “Total segment operating income” line are not allocated to business segments as management does not
consider these items allocable to any individual segment: gains (losses) from derivative instruments, selling, general and
administrative expenses and depreciation of leasehold improvements at our corporate headquarters. Revenue from MarkWest
Hydrocarbon is reflected as revenue from affiliates.

Year ended
December 31,
2007 2006

(in thousands)
Total segment operating iNCOIME ..., $178,611 $141,803
Revenue derivative (loss) gain not allocated to segments ......... (66,543) 5,632
Facilities expense derivative gain not allocated to segments ... 12 _
Depreciation not allocated to segments ......coceveemimieinicieene, 270) (15)
Selling, general and administrative eXPenses .......coovvrvveieieanen. (51,334) (44,377)
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment..... (7,564) 192
Income from Operations.......ooie oo 52,912 103,235
Eamings from uncensolidated affiliates ..., 5,309 5,316
| FITESS (= 8 11101001 L= OO VRO URUOURORUP 2,887 962
IREEreSt EXPENSE ....oe et (38,946) (40,666)
Amortization of deferred finance costs .......ocoooeirrniiinciniiin (2,717)  (9,094)
Miscellaneous {€Xpense) iNCOME. ... wrreereieenicieieeeeee e {(1,002) 11,100
Income before provision for inCOME 1aX ......ooccvvivminivnininrerenieens 18,443 70,853
Provision for inCOME [aX .......cecvimriniiiiniiinisns i {1,244) {769
INELIICOMIE ..ottt st b st s sb s b $17,199  $70,084

Derivative (Loss) Gain. Loss from derivative instruments increased $72.1 million during the year ended
December 31, 2007, relative to 2006. The mark-to-market adjustments of our derivative instruments resulted in a
$68.6 million increase in unrealized losses, primarily due to a significant increase in the market price for crude oil. Crude oil
is used as a proxy hedge for NGLs (see Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk). In addition,
we recogn.zed an increase in realized losses of $3.5 million from settlements.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $7.0 million,
or 16%, during the year ended December 31, 2007, relative to 2006. We incurred $6.4 million due to merger related activities
in 2007. We expect to incur additional expenses of approximately $2.7 million before the closing of the merger. We also
incurred $2.7 million more of labor, benefits and related office expenses due to our expansion initiatives. These increases
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were offset by a $2.2 million reduction in stock-based compensation expense related primarily to the Participation Plan. In
addition, we incurred a one-time charge in 2006 to terminate the old headquarters lease of $0.8 million.

(Loss) gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment. Loss from disposal of property, plant and equipment
increased $7.8 million, during the year ended December 31, 2007, relative to 2006. The loss is primarily due to the
conveyance of the Maytown facility to Equitable and a write-off of leasehold improvements as a result of the termination of
the pipeline lease with Equitable in November 2007.

Interest Income. Interest income increased $1.9 million, during the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to
2006, primarily due to the proceeds received from a rate case concluded in the first quarter of 2007 in our Gulf Coast
Business Unit.

Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased $1.7 million, or 4%, during the year ended December 31, 2007,
relative to 2006, largely due to increased capitalization of interest related to construction in progress of $3.3 million, versus
$0.9 million in 2006. The remaining decrease in interest expense is due to lower outstanding balances under our revolving
facility and slightly lower interest rates.

Amortization of Deferred Finance Costs. The amortization related to deferred finance costs decreased $6.4 million
during the year ended December 31, 2007, relative to 2006. The decrease is attributable to costs associated with our debt
refinancing in the third quarter of 2006. Deferred finance costs are being amortized over the terms of the related obligations,
which approximates the effective interest method.

Miscelianeous (Expense) Income. Miscellaneous income decreased $12.1 million during the year ended
December 31, 2007, compared to 2006. This decrease was largely a result of a change in insurance recoveries related to our

investment in Starfish.

Year Ended December 31, 2006, Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2005

East Texas
Year ended
December 31,
2006 2005
(in thousands)
REVEIUES ..oviveveie s iecee st eeee e st eessee s saessans s b s ssaneesabesrsnssmaaenssnenss 5174279 $128,267
Operating expenses:
Purchased product costs ........ccccevvicriiniimnninii e 91,637 81,030
Facility eXpenses ........ccovevrineiciinesnie e 15,683 10,463
DEPIECIATION .....ocveveveesierererinesen s seeere s e cen e e as s bereines 7,783 4,836
Amortization of intangible assets ........ccceeviirivvenve e 8,244 8,293
Accretion of asset retirement obligations.........coevvninniinnnn 44 33
Total operating expenses before selling, general and
administrative eXPenses. ... voveererceni e 123,391 104,655
Operating income before selling, general and administrative
BXPEIISES 1uvvcrsersirsessarsessessesassessssssassssssessessesiesssnsesssssessssessssereee $50.888 $23.612

Revenues: Revenues increased $46.0 million, or 36%, during the year ended December 31, 2006, relative to 2005.
The increase was due to our Carthage gas processing plant beginning operations on January 1, 2006; the start-up of the
Blocker gathering system on March 1, 2006; and increased condensate volumes over the same period a year ago.

Purchased Product Costs: Purchased product costs increased $10.6 million, or 13%, during the year ended
December 31, 2004, relative to the comparable period in 2005, primarily due to the start-up of the Carthage gas processing
plant.

Facility Expenses: Facility expenses increased $5.2 million, or 50%, during the year ended December 31, 2006,

relative to the comparable period in 2005, primarily due to startup of the new Carthage gas processing plant and Blocker
gathering system, including the related labor and property taxes.
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Depreciation: Depreciation expense increased $2.9 million, or 61%, during the year ended December 31, 2006,
relative to the comparable period in 2005, mainly due to the new Carthage gas processing plant and Blocker gathering
system.

Oklahoma
Year ended
December 31,
2006 2005
(in thousands)
REVEIUES ...t e eeave e erenrenesserenerens $207,510 $214,043
Operating expenses:
Purchased product CoSts .....oovciviveecveenecrvrcncnesrsrivssienene. 170,168 193,787
Facility @XPENSES ..iiiviiieiniiiisisiiinisiiesss e ssessessrssesasssesassresnenns 7,883 4,927
Depreciation .......cccoovveevrierrerere e e e 3,007 2,385
Accretion of asset retirement obligations ............cccooveceeeevrerennn, 26 63
Total operating expenses before selling, general and
administrative expenses... vreereareeees 181,084 201,162
Operating income before selling, general and admmlstratlve
BEDEIISES ...eeeeerrererireeeneneneeser et ttneasasasesssssbnbnbssasasasesesesesesesnns $26,426 $12,881

Revenues: Revenues decreased $6.5 million, or 3%, during the year ended December 31, 2006, relative to the
comparable period in 2005. The decrease was due primatily due to lower natural gas prices that were partially offset by a
15% increase in gathering volumes from new well connects in 2006,

Purchased Product Cost: Purchased product costs decreased $23.6 million, or 12%, during the year ended
Diecember 3 1, 2006, relative to the comparable period in 2003, primarily as a result of lower natural gas prices.

Facility Expenses: Facility expenses increased $3.0 million, or 60%, during the year ended December 31, 2006,
relative to the comparable period in 2003, primarily due to additional compression costs and higher operating taxes.

Depreciation: Depreciation expense increased $0.6 million, or 26%, during the year ended December 31, 2006,
relative to the comparable period in 2005, related to additional capital placed in service to accommodate a growing gathering
system and new well connects.

Other Southwest
Year ended
December 31,
2006 2005
(in thousands)
REVEIIUES 1ouveutieviieteiere et satetett et e st ereaetetae et ereeabesenesesesseneaeeanearesenas $84,595 $107,712
Operating expenses:
Purchased product Costs ..., 67,349 92,602
Facility EXPRISES «....ccccoererrereieieeteueeee et 5,638 4,990
Depreciation ... 4,100 3,383
Amortization of mtanglble assuts ................................................ — 68
Accretion of asset retirement obligations ............ceeeveiveiinnnnienn 20 22
Total operating expenses before selling, general and
AdMiNiStrative BXPeNSES...cvuvsrereereereerereesesrsreesesesessesseseenens 77,107 101,065
Operating income before selling, general and administrative
EXDEIISES ..v.vvereeeeeeesssesesssenessstsss s e tststs s et et s eesbeessstetassss e sesnnsnes $7,488  $6,647

Revenues: Revenues decreased $23.1 million, or 21%, during the year ended December 31, 2006, relative to the
comparable period in 2005. The decrease is mostly attributed to a decrease in natural gas prices, and is slightly offset by an
increase in MGL volumes and prices.
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Purchased Product Costs: Purchased product costs decreased $25.3 million, or 27%, during the year ended
December 31, 2006, relative to the comparable period in 2005 primarily due to a decrease in natural gas prices.

Facility Expenses: Facility expenses increased $0.6 million, or 13%, during the year ended December 31, 2006,
relative to the comparable period in 2005. The increase was primarily a result of additional compressor maintenance costs.

Depreciation: Depreciation expense increased $0.7 million, or 21%, during the year ended December 31, 2006,
relative to the same period in 2005, due to the addition of new compressors in 2006 and late 2005.

Appalachia
Year ended
December 31,
2006 2005
(in thousands)
Revenue
Unaffitiated...........ooooreiiis et b rearessarsebataat e e reseaaean $2,027 51,686
ATTILALE ....ooeeveeverererereie v se s esseseenennensnenereees 13,036 64,922
TOALl TEVENMUES ..vecvevieiieeiseescesseesse et e tessbesaessnssrnssrsorasssnssnnostesansonss 75,663 66,608
Operating expenses:
Purchased product osts ... 43,648 38,433
Facility XPenses ... ...ccvevveririereenereneere e e e 13,997 19,360
DePreciation .. ..ooo et ee e ete et e s e 3,573 3,187
Accretion of asset retirement obligations..........cccceceeiiiinen. 12 41
Total operating expenses before selling, general and
administrative eXpenses......o.oeeeeeeemeeeceveereemeeeeemeeeneeeeeeeee. 01,230 61,023
Operating income before selling, general and administrative
EXPEIISES ..vvvevereverseserssmaesssessssessessssessesnsesansesaesensesassansesasssssesirsnes $14433 35,585

Revenues: Total revenues increased $9.1 million, or 14%, during the year ended December 31, 2006, relative to the
comparable period in 2005. The increase was primarily a result of higher prices and volumes for our Maytown NGLs in
2006. Higher gas volumes at the Kenova and Cobb plants and higher liquid volumes at the Kenova, Cobb and Boldman
plants also contributed to the increase; however, these results were offset slightly by lower gas volumes at Boldman.

Purchased Product Costs: Purchased product costs increased $5.2 million, or 14%, during the year ended
December 31, 2006, relative to the comparable period in 2005, The rise in costs is primarily a result of higher product prices.
The increase was partially offset by reduced trucking expenses amounting to $1.4 million associated with our continuing
repair of the ALPS pipeline in 2005 versus the shutdown of the ALPS pipeline in late 2006.

Facility Expenses: Facility expenses decreased $5.4 million, or 28%, during the year ended December 31, 2006,
relative to the comparable period in 2005. These expenses were higher in 2005 due to costs incurred to repair the ALPS
pipeline.

Depreciation: Depreciation expense increased $0.4 million, or 12%, during the year ended December 31, 2006,

relative to the comparable period in 2003, due to increased capitalized leasehold improvements associated with the ALPS
pipeline.
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Michigan

Year ended
December 31,
2006 2005
(in thousands)
REVEIUES ..ot s s bbb s $13,282 §12,479
Operating expenses:
Purchased product COStS ..o 3,435 3,030
Facility eXpenses .........ccoooicvciciimniccoenenessseerasessesssnesens 5,721 6,080
DEPreciation ......eueeeeecesenrerniermieenensniaererersssssnesesseseressssssnseseseesens 5015 4,665
Total operating expenses before selling, general and
administrative eXPenses. ... ssss s 14,171 13,775
Operating loss before selling, general and administrative
EXPETISES 1ovvvvreveerscreresensenserseisersarsessssrssrsreassnsssssasarssasessonsssssnsess $(889) 8(1,296)

Revenues: Revenues increased $0.8 million, or 6%, during the year ended December 31, 2006, relative to the
comparable period in 20035, principally due to an increase in product prices at our processing facility and increased processing
fees at the West Shore facility, slightly offset by decreased volumes.

Purchased Product Costs: Purchased product costs increased $0.4 million, or 13%, during the year ended
December 21, 2006, relative to the comparable period in 2005, which was a result of higher product prices at our processing

facility.

Gulf Coast
Year ended
December 31,
2006 2005
(in thousands)
REVENUES ....cooiriiiiirirricicnrrr e e ssenessesena s e res $68,950 $13,832
Operating expenses:
Facility BXPenSes ... rern e e e 11,190 2,152
Depreciation ..........ccooeeeiieeeecee et 6,500 1,078
Amortization of intangible assets ..., 7,803 1,295
Total operating expenses before selling, general and
administrative EXPEnSeS. ... .ocvviiieininirisiesiises e ssssesssns 25,493 4,525
Operating income before selling, general and administrative
EXPEIISES ..vovvvecveesserersnsasssssessssessstsessssssbssssesansssssasassrssasssstarssssas $43,457 39,307

The results of operations at Javelina are based on twelve months of activity for the year ended December 31, 2006,
compared to two months of activity beginning in November of 2003, the date of the acquisition,

Revenues: Revenues increased $55.1 million, during the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to the two
month period in 2005. The Javelina plant was able to grow revenue in 2006 despite reduced inlet gas from refineries.

Fucility Expenses: Facility expenses increased $9.0 million during the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to
the two mcnth period in 2005, because the 2006 results include a full year of operations.

Depreciation: Depreciation expense increased $5.4 million during the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to
the two month period in 20035, because the results include a full year of operations. ' '

Amortization of intangible assets: Amortization expense increased $6.5 million during the year ended December 31,
2006, compared to the two month period in 2005, because the results include a full year of amortization compared to the stub
period in 2005.
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Reconciliation of Segment Operating Income to Consolidated Net Income

Year ended
December 31,
2006 2005

(in thousands)
Total segment OPErating INCOME ...ooovriinnininnnneirrsres e $141,803  $56,736
Derivative gain (loss) not allocated to segments ............coeeeeee. 5,632 (1,851)
Depreciation not atlocated to SEgMEDLS .........cooovirrennnnrins (15) —
Selling, general and adminiStrative .......ccovvvvvreerernnneinnnens 44,377y  (21,597)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment............. 192 24
Income from Operations..........cceeeceeeriniiinsesenner e sesesnses 103,235 33,312
Eamings (losses) from unconsolidated affiliates..........ccooooeeeee 5,316 (2,153)
INEETESt INCOIMIE ..cveveieee vttt ebe e 962 367
INEETESt EXPENSE vevrrvereececeecmceesiits s ar s s rrrne g e asse s sens e (40,666)  (22,469)
Amortization of deferred finance COSLS ......oovveevreecivnreviieeninnnne (9,094) (6,780)
MiSCEllANCOUS IMCOITIE 1.viviiiieiesierriersieierrnreeeeeeeseasrmresssssssnsmeneeesans 11,100 78
Income before Texas Margin Tax ........ccocvvrmmeeeninniinenns $70,853 $2,355
Texas Margin Tax ..ot (769) —
NEEANCOIMIE .o eeeeeeeeeteeetes et e e e vreeseeseeesntesasersserssereensesssesnsassnsensesnnss $70,084 $2,355

Derivative gain (loss): Derivative gain (loss) increased $7.5 million during the year ended December 31, 2006,
compared to the corresponding period in 2005. This increase was due to the mark-to-market adjustments resulting from our
electing not to adopt hedge accounting treatment on our derivative instruments. The mark-to-market adjustments resulted in a
$6.9 million increase in unrealized gains, and a $0.6 million decrease in realized losses, when comparing 2006 to 2005
results.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense: Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $22.6 million,
or 105%, during the year ended December 31, 2006, relative to the comparable period in 2005. The increase is primarily due
to higher non-cash, equity-based compensation expense of $12.0 million, primarily due to the Partnership’s increased market
value; an increase in labor costs of $4.9 million related to increased costs for our existing employees plus the cost of
additional personnel necessary to support our growth and strategic objectives; higher insurance expense and taxes of
$2.4 million; and a one-time charge to terminate the old headquarters lease of $0.8 million.

Earnings (losses) from Unconsolidated Affiliates: Earnings (losses) from unconsolidated affiliates is primarily
related to our investment in Starfish, a joint venture with Enbridge Offshore Pipelines LLC. The Partnership accounts for our
50% interest using the equity method, and the financial results for Starfish are included as earnings from unconsolidated
affiliates. During the year ended December 31, 2006, our earnings from unconsolidated affiliates increased $7.5 million, or
347%, relative to the comparable period in 2005, The increase was primarily from resumed operations in 2006 following the
shutdown and repairs from the hurricanes in 2005.

Interest Income: Interest income increased $0.6 million, or 162%, during the year ended Decemnber 31, 2006,
relative to the comparable period in 2005, primarily due to an increase in interest rates earned on invested funds.

Interest Expense: Interest expense increased $18.2 million, or 81%, during the year ended December 31, 2006,
relative to the comparable period in 2005, primarily due to increased debt levels resulting from the financing of our 2005
acquisitions and higher interest rates.

Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs (a component of interest expense): Amortization expense increased
$2.3 million, or 34%, during the year ended December 31, 2006, relative to the comparable period in 2005, primarily due to
costs associated with our debt refinancing completed in the fourth quarter of 2005 and our debt offering in July of 2006.
Deferred financing costs are being amortized over the terms of the related obligations, which approximates the effective
interest method.

Miscellaneous Income (Expense): The Partnership recognized $11.0 million of income from insurance recoveries,
net of Starfish insurance premiums, recovered from damages that occurred as a result of Hurricane Rita.
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Texas Margin Tax: The State of Texas passed a new tax law that subjects the Partnership to an entity-level tax on
the portion of its income that is generated in Texas. We recorded a deferred tax liability of $0.8 million, related to the
Partnership 's temporary differences that are expected to reverse in future periods.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We: believe that we will continue to have adequate liquidity to fund future recurring operating and investing
activities, Cur primary cash requirements consist of normal operating expenses, capital expenditures to sustain and expand
existing operations and revenue generating expenditures, interest payments on our senior secured revolving credit facility and
Senior Notes, distributions to our unitholders and acquisitions of new assets or businesses. Short-term cash requirements,
such as operating expenses, capital expenditures to sustain existing operations and quarterly distributions to our unitholders,
are expectad to be funded through operating cash flows. Long-term cash requirements for expansion projects and acquisitions
are expected to be funded by several sources, including cash flows from operating activities, borrowings under our new
revolving credit facility and the issuance of additional equity and debt securities, as appropriate. Cash flows from operating
activities will be affected by prevailing economic conditions in our industry, as well as financial, business and other factors,
some of which are beyond our control. Our ability to complete future debt and equity offerings and the timing of any such
offerings will depend on various factors, including prevailing market conditions, interest rates, our financial condition and
our credit retings at the time. As a result of the Merger discussed in Item 1. Business, the incentive distribution rights have
been eliminated, which will substantially lower our cost of equity capital.

On February 20, 2008, MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. entered into a credit agreement (“Partnership Credit
Agreement”). It provides for a maximum lending limit of $575.0 million for a five-year term. The Partnership Credit
Agreement includes a revolving facility of $350.0 million and a $225.0 million term loan, both of which can be repaid at any
time without penalty. Under certain circumstances, the revolving facility of the Partnership Credit Agreement can be
increased from $350.0 million to $550.0 million. The credit facility is guaranteed by the Partnership and all of the
Partnership’s subsidiaries, including the Company, and is collateralized by substantially all of the Partnership’s assets and
those of its subsidiaries. The Partnership utilized borrowings under the $225.0 million term loan of the Partnership Credit
Agreement and made an intercompany loan to the Company in the amount of $225.0 million to fund, in part, the redemption
of its common stock pursuant to the Merger. In addition, borrowings under the revolving facility portion of the Partnership
Credit Agrezment were used to finance other payments under the Merger, outstanding amounts due on its old revolver, and
repay debt under the Corporation’s credit agreement. The Partnership Credit Agreement required the payment of
$10.2 million in deferred financing costs. As of February 25, 2008, the Partnership had borrowed $45.5 million under the
revolving facility portion of the Partnership Credit Agreement and approximately $258.5 million was available to be
borrowed.,

The borrowings under the credit facility bear interest at a variable interest rate, plus basis points. The variable
interest rate typically is based on the London Inter Bank Offering Rate (“LIBOR”); however, in certain borrowing
circumstances the rate would be based on the higher of a) the Federal Funds Rate plus (.5-1%, and b) a rate set by the
Partnership Credit Facility’s administrative agent, based on the U.S. prime rate. The basis points correspond to the ratio of
the Partnersaip’s Consolidated Funded Debt (as defined in the Partnership Credit Agreement) to Adjusted Consolidated
EBITDA (as defined in the Partnership Credit Agreement), ranging from 0.50% to 1.25% for Base Rate loans, and 1.50% to
2.25% for Eurodollar Rate loans. The basis points will increase by 0.50% during any period (not to exceed 270 days) where
the Partnership makes an acquisition for a purchase price in excess of $50.0 million (“Acquisition Adjustment Period”). The
Partnership ‘will incur a commitment fee on the unused portion of the credit facility at a rate between 30.0 and 50.0 basis
points based upon the ratio of consolidated senior debt (as defined in the Partnership Credit Agreement) to consolidated
EBITDA (as defined in the Partnership Credit Facility).

At December 31, 2007, the Partnership and its subsidiary, MarkWest Energy Finance Corporation, also have two
series of sentor notes outstanding, $225.0 million, at a fixed rate of 6.875% which will mature in November 2014 (the “2014
Senior Notes”} and $272.2 million, net of unamortized discount of $2.8 million at a fixed rate of 8.5% due July 15, 2016 (the
#2016 Seniar Notes™).

The indenture governing the 2014 Senior Notes and the 2016 Senjor Notes limits the activity of the Partnership and
its restricted subsidiaries. The indenture place limits on the ability of the Partnership and its restricted subsidiaries to incur
additional indebtedness; declare or pay dividends or distributions or redeem, repurchase or retire equity interests or
subordinated indebtedness; make investments; incur liens; create any consensual limitation on the ability of the Partnership’s
restricted subsidiaries to pay dividends, make loans or transfer property to the Partnership; engage in transactions with the
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Partnership’s affiliates; sell assets, including equity interests of the Partnership’s subsidiaries; make any payment on or with
respect to, or purchase, redeem, defease or otherwise acquire or retire for value any subordinated obligation or guarantor
subordination obligation (except principal and interest at maturity); and consolidate, merge or transfer assets.

The Partnership can raise debt and equity securities in the future under a shelf registration statement on Form $-3
that was fited with the SEC and became immediately effective in November 2006.

The Partnership currently has budgeted from $350.0 million to $400.0 million for growth capital expenditures in
2008 and from $5.0 million to $10.0 million of maintenance capital, Growth capital includes expenditures made to expand or
increase the efficiency of the existing operating capacity of our assets, or facilitate an increase in volumes within our
operations, whether through construction or acquisition. Maintenance capital includes expenditures to replace partially or
fully depreciated assets in order to extend their useful lives.

Cash Flow

December 31,

2007 2006
Net cash provided by operating activities...........cccceccrciiiins $149,399  $150,977
Net cash used in investing activities.........coviimrnesierccnnenns (312,085) (119,338)
" Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities................ 154,789 (17,342)

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased $1.6 million during the year ended December 31, 2007, relative
to 2006. The change resulted mainly from increased selling, general and administrative expenses (excluding non-cash
components) of $7.1 million, of which $6.4 million is related to merger costs, and additional margin calls of approximately
$19.3 million, offset by increased cash flows generated from operations and a $5.5 million refund from a rate case concluded
in the first quarter of 2007. We expect to incur an additional $2.7 million in merger costs during the first quarter of 2008.
Margin calls will be less likely to occur as the Partnership Credit Agreement limits our ability to enter into transactions with
parties that require such arrangements.

Net cash used in investing activities increased $192.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to
2006. The increase was primarily due to capital expenditures. The Partnership used $312.3 million for capital expenditures in
2007, consisting of $308.7 million for growth capital and $3.6 million for maintenance capital.

Net cash provided by financing activities increased $172.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared
to 2006. This increase was primarily due to the net proceeds of $229.5 million from our two private placements of common
units discussed below used to fund capital expenditures. In the prior years we received net proceeds of $397.6 million related
to a private placement of senior notes and proceeds from a public unit offering but the funds were primarily used to pay down
long-term debt. This increase was offset by increased distributions to unitholders of $35.0 million.

On April 9, 2007, we completed a private placement of 4.1 million unregistered common units. The units were
issued at a purchase price of $32.98 per unit. The registration statement for these common units was declared effective on
July 11, 2007. The sale of units raised net proceeds of approximately $137.7 million, including the general partner’s
contribution of $2.8 million to maintain its 2% general partner interest and after legal, accounting and other transaction
expenses.

On December 18, 2007, we completed a private placement of 2.9 miilion unregistered common units. The units were
issued at a purchase price of $31.50 per unit. The sale of units raised net proceeds of approximately $91.8 million, including
the general partner’s contribution to maintain its 2% general partner interest and after legal, accounting and other transaction
expenses.
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Total Contractual Cash Obligations
A summary of our total contractual cash obligations as of December 31, 2007, is as follows (in thousands):

Payment Due by Period

Total Due in Due in

_Type of obligation QObligation Due in 2008 2009-2010 2011-2012 Thereafter
Long-term dzbt.....cooviveeeciir v $555,500 §— $55,500 $— $500,000
Interest expense on long-term debt{1) .............. 307,080 42,777 85,554 77,687 101,062
Operating 1eases........ocoovveveeeeerceciecee e 21,172 6,251 4,573 3,725 6,623
Purchase obligations (2).......cocvecevnviennrniernnnenns 107,849 88,061 19,788 — —_
Other long-term liabilities reflected on the

Consolidated Balance Sheets—

Asset retirement obligation..............cocvcivea 1,635 -— — — 1,635

Other (3) oo 1,495 — 232 121 1,142
Total contractual cash obligations ...........ceevee. $994,731 $137,089 $165,647 $81,533 $610,462
() Assumes that our outstanding borrowings at December 31, 2007 remain outstanding until their respective maturity

dates and we incur interest expense at 7.09% on the Partnership Credit Facility revolver, 6.875% on the 2014 Senior
Notes and 8.5% on the 2016 Senior Notes.

) Represents purchase orders and contracts related to purchase of property, plant and equipment.
3 Primarily represents long-term portion of deferred revenue.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
The: Partnership does not engage in off-balance sheet financing activities.
Matters Influencing Future Results

On September 28, 2007, we announced an approximate $100.0 million expansion of the Javelina plant. This
expansion involves the installation of a steam methane reformer facility for the recovery of high purity hydrogen. This new
facility’s production is supported by a 20-year hydrogen supply agreement. Construction of the facility began in the fourth
guarter of 2007 and we expect to commence delivering high-purity hydrogen in early 2010. Once operational, the facility,
combined with the existing facilities at the Javelina plant will have the capacity to deliver 50 MMc{/d of high-purity
hydrogen.

The Partnership completed the Merger with the Company and entered into a new credit agreement on February 21,
2008, as discussed further in Note 22 of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of
this Form 10-K. The Merger is considered a downstream merger whereby the Company is viewed as the surviving
consolidated entity for accounting purposes rather than the Partnership, which is the surviving consolidated entity for legal
purposes. As such, the Merger will be accounted for in the Company’s consolidated financial statements as an acquisition of
non-control ing interest using the purchase method of accounting. Under this accounting method, the Partnership’s accounts,
including goodwill, will be adjusted to proportionately step up the book value of certain assets and liabilities. The total fair
value of the non-controlling interest to be acquired was the number of non-controlling interest units outstanding on the date
the merger ¢losed of 34.5 million valued at the then current per unit market price of the Partnership common units of $31.79.

Our future results will be impacted by the completion of the proportionate step up of the book value of certain assets
and liabilitics, Depending on the allocation, interest expense, amortization of intangibles and deferred financing costs,
depreciation expense and income tax balances could change materially in the future. The purchase price allocation is
dependent vpon certain valuations and other studies that have not progressed to a stage where there is sufficient information
to make a dzfinitive altocation. Therefore, we are unable to predict the impact of the purchase price allocation on our balance
sheet and statement of operations.

The cash and the Partnership units distributed to officers and directors of the General Partner for their Class B
membership interests in the General Partner were recorded as settlement of the share based payment liability as discussed
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further in Note 13 of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K. In
the future, our results will not include compensation for the general partner interests under the Participation Plan. For the year
ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2003, our results included compensation expense of $10.9 million, $13.5 million and
$2.0 million, respectively, related to Participation Plan.

The 2008 LTIP reserves 2.5 million common units for issuance in the future. As discussed further in Note 22 of the
accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K, on February 21, 2008,
765,000 phantom units were granted to senior executives and other key employees under the 2008 LTIP. The maximum
amount of compensation expense for the grant made on February 21, 2008 will range from $9.7 million to $24.3 million.
Forty percent (40%) of the total individual grant is based on continuing employment over the three-year vesting period and
this represents the minimum in the range. Sixty percent (60%) of the total individual grant is performance-based and is
conditional upon the achievement of designated annual financial performance goals established by the Board of Directors.
The maximum of the range assumes such conditions will be achieved. The timing of this expense cannot be estimated.

Our affiliate, MarkWest Pioneer, L.L.C. (“Pioneer”), is in a pre-filing process with the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (“FERC”) to construct a new interstate natural gas transmission pipeline. The pipeline will be named the
Arkoma Connector Pipeline, and will extend approximately 50 miles from an interconnect with MarkWest’s gathering
system in the Woodford Shale production area in southeastern Oklahoma to an interconnect with the Midcontinent Express
Pipeline in Bennington, Oklahoma.

The Arkoma Connector Pipeline will provide additional outlets for producers in the Woodford Shale as volumes
continue to increase. We recently exccuted agreements with certain producers to provide transportation capacity in excess of
500,000 Mcf/d on the Arkoma Connector Pipeline, and Pioneer will be conducting an open season, prior to submission of our
formal application to FERC, in order to gauge additional interest in available capacity.

On February 11, 2008, we agreed to acquire a 20% interest in Centrahoma Operating LLC (“Centrahoma LLC”) for
$11.6 million, with a right to acquire an additional 20% interest under certain circumstances. Closing on March 3, 2008 is
subject to conveyance of certain properties to Centrahoma LLC by the other member and the reimbursement of $0.6 million
to the Partnership related to the termination of a virtual joint venture with the other member of the Centrahoma LLC.
Centrahoma Operating LLC will own certain processing plants in the Arkoma basin. In addition, MarkWest will sign, at
closing, agreements to dedicate certain acreage in the Woodford Shale play to the Centrahoma LLC through March 1, 2018.

The loss to both offshore and onshore assets resulting from Hurricanes Katrina and Rita in 2005 has led to
substantial insurance claims within the oil and gas industry. Along with other industry participants, we have seen our
insurance costs increase substantially within this region as a result of these developments. We have mitigated a portion of the
cost increase by reducing our coverage and adding a broader self-insurance element to our overall coverage.

Seasonality

For the portion of our business that is affected by commodity prices, sales volumes also are affected by various other
factors such as fluctuating and seasonal demands for products, changes in transportation and travel patterns and variations in
weather patterns from year to year. In general, the Company stores a portion of the propane that is produced in the summer to
be sold in the winter months, The Company also stores pre-purchases in the summer of a portion of the natural gas that we
are required to replace during the winter in accordance with our Appalachian keep-whole processing agreements.

Effects of Inflation

Inflation did not have a material impact on our results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 or
2005. Although the impact of inflation has been insignificant in recent years, it is still a factor in the United States economy
and may increase the cost to acquire or replace property, plant and equipment. It may also increase the costs of labor and
supplies. To the extent permitted by competition, regulation and our existing agreements, we have and will continue to pass
along increased costs to our customers in the form of higher fees.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and labilities at the date
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of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Estimates are used in accounting for, among other items, valuing identified intangible
assets, detennining the fair value of derivative instruments, evaluating impairments of long lived assets, establishing
estimated useful lives for long-lived assets, valuing asset retirement obligations, and in determining liabilities, if any, for
legal contingencies.

The policies and estimates discussed below are considered by management to be critical to an understanding of the
Partnership”s financial statements, because their application requires the most significant judgments from management in
estimating matters for financial reporting that are inherently uncertain. See Note 2 of the accompanying Notes io the
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional information on these policies and
estimates, as well as a discussion of additional accounting policies and estimates.

Intangible Assets

The: Partnership’s intangible assets are comprised of customer contracts and relationships acquired in business
combinations, recorded under the purchase method of accounting at their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition.
Using relevent information and assumptions, management determines the fair value of acquired identifiable intangible assets.
Fair value is generally calculated as the present value of estimated future cash flows using a risk-adjusted discount rate. The
key assumptions include contract renewals, economic incentives to retain customers, historical volumes, curtent and future
capacity of the gathering system, pricing volatility, and the discount rate. Amortization of intangibles with definite lives is
calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the intangible asset. The estimated economic life is
determined by assessing the life of the assets to which the contracts and relationships relate, likelihood of renewals, the
projected reserves, competitive factors, regulatory or legal provisions, and maintenance and renewal costs.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The: Partnership evaluates its long-lived assets, including intangibles, for impairment when events or changes in
circumstanc 25 warrant such a review. A long-lived asset group is considered impaired when the estimated undiscounted cash
flows from such asset group are less than the asset group’s carrying value. In that event, a loss is recognized to the extent that
the cartying value exceeds the fair value of the long-lived asset group. Fair value is determined primarily using estimated
discounted cash flows, Management considers the volume of reserves behind the asset and future NGL product and natural
gas prices tc estimate cash flows. The amount of additional reserves developed by future drilling activity depends, in part, on
expected nawural gas prices. Projections of reserves, drilling activity and future commodity prices are inherently subjective
and contingent upon a number of variable factors, many of which are difficult to forecast. Any significant variance in any of
these assumptions or factors could materially affect future cash flows, which could result in the impairment of an asset.

For assets identified to be disposed of in the future, the carrying value of these assets is compared to the estimated
fair value, less the cost to sell, to determine if impairment is required. Until the assets are disposed of, an estimate of the fair
value is re-determined when related events or circurnstances change.

We determined that an impairment of a system had occurred during the third quarter of 2007. The fair value of the
long-lived assets was determined based on management’s opinion that the idle assets had no economic value, Therefore, an
impairment of long-lived assets of $0.4 million was recognized during year ended December 31, 2007. See Note 10 of the
accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for a description of the
impairment analysis.

Imvestment in Starfish

On March 31, 2003, the Partnership acquired its non-controlling, 50% interest in Starfish Pipeline Company, LLC
(“Starfish™). which is accounted for under the equity method. Differences between the Partnership’s investment and its
proportiona-e share of Starfish’s reported equity are amortized based upon the respective useful lives of the assets to which
the differences relate.

We believe the equity method is an appropriate means for us to recognize increases or decreases measured by
GAAP in the economic resources underlying the investments. Regular evaluation of these investments is appropriate to
cvaluate anv potential need for impairment. We use the following types of evidence of a loss in value to identify a loss in
value of an investment that is other than a temporary decline. Examples of a loss in value may be identified by:

.
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e Our belief in the ability to recover the carrying amount of the investment;

e A current fair value of an investment that is less than its carrying amount; and

e Other operational criteria that cause us to believe the investment may be worth less than otherwise accounted
for by using the equity method.

Derivative Instruments

SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (“SFAS 133”), established accounting
and reporting standards requiring that derivative instruments (including certain derivative instruments embedded in other
contracts) be recorded at fair value and included in the consolidated balance sheet as assets or liabilities. The accounting for
changes in the fair value of a derivative instrument depends on the intended use of the derivative and the resulting
designation, which is established at the inception.

To the extent derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges are effective, changes in fair value are
recognized in other comprehensive income until the underlying hedged item is recognized in earnings. Effectiveness is
evaluated by the derivative instrument’s ability to offset changes in fair value or cash flows of the underlying hedged item.
Any change in the fair value resulting from ineffectiveness is recognized immediately in earnings. Changes in the fair value
of derivative instruments designated as fair value hedges, as well as the changes in the fair value of the underlying hedged
item, are recognized currently in earnings. Any differences between the changes in the fair values of the hedged item and the
derivative instrument represent gains or losses from ineffectiveness. During 2007 and 2006, we did not designate any cash
flow or fair value hedges.

In the course of normal operations, the Partnership routinely enters into contracts such as forward physical contracts
for the sale of natural gas, propane, and other NGLs, that under SFAS 133, qualify for and are designated as a normal sales
contract. Such contracts are exempted from the fair value accounting requirements of SFAS 133 and are accounted for using
accrual accounting.

All derivative instruments other than those designated as cash flow hedges, fair value hedges or normal purchase or
sale are marked-to-market through revenue or facility expense, the same account as the item being hedged. When available,
quoted market prices or prices obtained through external sources are used to determine a contract’s fair value. For contracts
with a delivery location or duration for which quoted market prices are not available, fair value is determined based on
pricing models developed primarily from historical and expected correlations with quoted market prices. Values are adjusted
to reflect the credit risk inherent in the transaction. Changes in market prices and management estimates directly affect the
estimated fair value of these contracts. Accordingly, it is reasonably possible that such estimates may change in the near term.

We included changes in our risk management activities in cash flow from operating activities on the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows.

Revenue Recognition

The Partnership enters into revenue arrangements where it sells customer’s gas and/or NGLs and depending on the
nature of the arrangement acts as the principal or agent. Revenue from such sales is recognized gross where the Partnership
acts as the Principal, under Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 99-19, Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net
as an Agent, as the Partnership takes title to the gas and/or NGLs, has physical inventory risk and does not eam a fixed
amount. Revenue is recognized net when the Partnership earns a fixed amount and does not take ownership of the gas and/or
NGLs.

Earnings Per Unit
Except as discussed in the following paragraph, basic and diluted net income per limited partner unit is calculated by
dividing net income, after deducting amounts specially allocated to the general partner’s interests, including interests in

incentive distribution rights, by the weighted-average number of limited partner common and subordinated units outstanding
during the period.
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Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 03-06, Participating Securities and the Two-Class Method under FASB
Statement No. 128 (“EITF 03-06), addresses the computation of earnings per share by entities that have issued securities
other than common stock that contractually entitle the holder to participate in dividends and earnings of the entity. EITF 03-
06 provides that the general partner’s interest in net income is to be calculated based on the amount that would be allocated to
the general partner if all the net income for the period were distributed, and not on the basis of actual cash distributions for
the period.

Incentive Compensation Plans

The Partnership adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Paymens (“SFAS 123R™), on January 1, 2006,
using the modified prospective method. Prior to adopting SFAS 123R, the Partnership elected to measure compensation
expense for ¢quity-based employee compensation plans as prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB 257).

The Partnership issues restricted units under the MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. Long-Term Incentive Plan. A
restricted unit is a “phantom” unit that entitles the grantee to receive a common unit upon the vesting of the phantom unit or,
at the discretion of the Compensation Committee, cash equivalent to the value of a common unit. The restricted units are
treated as liability awards under SFAS 123R, and were treated as variable awards under APB 25. The Partnership applied
variable accounting under APB 25 for the plan because a phantom unit is an award to employees entitling them to increases
in the market value of the Partnership’s units subsequent to the date of grant without issuing units to the employees, similar to
a stock appreciation right. As a result, the Partnership is required to mark to market the awards at the end of each reporting
period. Compensation expense is measured for the phantom unit grants using the market price of MarkWest Encrgy Partners’
common units on the date the units are granted. The fair value of the units awarded is amortized into earnings over the period
of service, adjusted quarterly for the change in the fair value of the unvested units granted. The phantom units vest over a
stated periocl.

Vesiting is accelerated for certain employees, if specified performance measures are met. The accelerated vesting
criteria provisions are based on annualized distribution goals. If the Partnership’s distributions are at or above the goal fora
certain number of consecutive quarters, vesting of the employee’s phantom units is accelerated. The vesting of any phantom
units, however, may not occur until at least one year following the date of grant. The general partner of the Partnership may
also elect to accelerate the vesting of outstanding awards, which results in an immediate charge to operations for the
unamortizec. portion of the award.

MarkWest Hydrocarbon also entered into arrangements with certain directors and employees of the Company
referred to as the Participation Plan. Under this plan, MarkWest Hydrocarbon sold subordinated units of the Partnership or
interests in the Partnership’s general partner, under a purchase and sale agreement. Both the subordinated unit and general
partner interest transactions were considered compensatory arrangements due to the put-and-call provisions and the
associated valuation being based on a formula instead of an independent third party valuation. The subordinated units convert
to common units after a holding period. Historically, MarkWest Hydrocarbon had settled the subordinated units for cash
when individuals left the Company. The general partner interests have no definite term, but historically have been settled for
cash when the employee left the Company. Under SFAS 123R, the subordinated units and general pariner interests were
classified as liability awards. As a result, MarkWest Hydrocarbon was required to mark to market the subordinated unit and
general partner interest valuations at the end of each period. Please refer to Note 22 of the accompanying Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for further information about the termination of the
Participation Plan.

Under Topic 1-B of the codification of the Staff Accounting Bulletins, Allocation of Expenses And Related
Disclosure 'n Financial Statements of Subsidiaries, Divisions Or Lesser Business Components of Another Entiry,
compensation expense related 1o services provided by MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s employees and directors recognized under
the Participation Plan should be allocated to the Partnership. The allocation is based on the percent of time that each
employee dzvotes to the Partnership. Compensation attributable to interests that were sold to individuals who serve on both
the Partnership’s board of directors of the Partnership’s General Partner and on the board of directors of MarkWest
Hydrocarbcn is allocated equally.

These charges are included in selling, general and administrative expenses and are allocated to the general partner
pursuant to the Partnership Agreement. Assuming the compensation cost for the Long-Term Incentive Plan and the
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Participation Plan had been determined based on the fair-value methodology of SFAS 123R, the net income and eamings per
unit would have been the same as reported on the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Recent Accounting Proncuncements

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 1577). SFAS 157 clarifies
the principle that fair value should be based on the assumptions market participants would use when pricing an asset or
liability and establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the information used to develop those assumptions. SFAS 157 is
effective for the Partnership’s financial statements as of January 1, 2008. On February 6, 2008 the FASB, approved the
partial deferral of SFAS 157 for non-financial assets and liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair
value in the financial statements on a reoccurring basis (at least annually) until fiscal years beginning after November 15,
2008. The Partnership has elected to defer recognition of items including;

e Nonfinancial assets and liabilities initially measured at fair value in a business combination.

e Reporting units measured at fair value in the first and second steps of a goodwill impairment test as described in
paragraphs 19 to 21 of SFAS 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (“SFAS 1427).

e Indefinite lived intangible assets measured at fair value for impairment assessment under SFAS 142.

e Long-lived assets measured as fair value for impairment assessment under SFAS 144, Accounting Jfor
Impairment or Disposal of Long Lived Assets.

e Asset retirement obligations initially measured at fair value under SFAS 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations.

s Liabilities for exit or disposal activities initially measured at fair value under SFAS 146, Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.

For the provisions of SFAS 157 adopted, they will not have an impact on the Partnership’s financial statements.

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (“SFAS 159"), which permits an entity to measure certain financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value. The
statement’s objective is to improve financial reporting by allowing entities to mitigate volatility in reported eamnings caused
by the measurement of related assets and liabilities using different attributes, without having to apply complex hedge
accounting provisions. Under SFAS 159, entities that elect the fair value option will report unrealized gains and losses in
earnings at each subsequent reporting date. The fair value option may be elected on an instrument-by-instrument basis, with a
few exceptions, as long as it is applied to the instrument in its entirety. The fair value option election is irrevocable, unless a
new election date occurs. SFAS 159 establishes presentation and disclosure requirements to help financial statement users
understand the effect of the entity’s election on its earnings, but does not eliminate disclosure requirements of other
accounting standards. Assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value must be displayed on the face of the balance sheet.
SFAS 159 is effective for the Partnership as of January 1, 2008. The provisions of SFAS 159 will not have an impact on the
Partnership’s financial statements.

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), Business Combinations (“SFAS 141R”). This
statement replaces SFAS 141, Business Combinations. The statement provides for how the acquirer recognizes and measures
the identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed and any non-controliing interest in the acquiree. SFAS 141R provides for
how the acquirer recognizes and measures the goodwill acquired in the business combination or a gain from a bargain
purchase. The statement determines what information to disclose to enable users to be able to evaluate the nature and
financial effects of the business combination. The provisions of SFAS 141R are effective for the Partnership as of January 1,
2009 and do not allow early adoption. The Partnership is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this statement.

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51 (“SFAS 160”). This statement provides that noncontrolling interests in
subsidiaries held by parties other than the parent be identified, labeled and presented in the statement of financial position
within equity, but separate from the parent’s equity. SFAS 160 states that the amount of consolidated net income attributable
to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest be clearly identified on the consolidated statement of income. The statement
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provides for consistency regarding changes in parent ownership including when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. Any retained
noncontrolling equity investment in the former subsidiary will be initially measured at fair value. The provisions of

SFAS 160 are effective for the Partnership as of January 1, 2009 and do not allow early adoption. The Partnership is
currently evaluating the impact of adopting the statement,

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk includes the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices. We face market risk
from commodity price changes and, to a lesser extent, interest rate changes.

Coramodity Price Risk

Our primary risk management objective is to reduce downside volatility in our cash flows arising from changes in
commodity prices related to future sales of natural gas, NGLs and crude oil. Swaps and futures contracts may allow us to
reduce downside volatility in its realized margins as realized losses or gains on the derivative instruments generally are offset
by carresponding gains or losses in our sales of physical product. While we largely expect our realized derivative gains and
losses to be offset by increases or decreases in the value of our physical sales, we will experience volatility in reported
earnings due to the recording of unrealized gains and losses on our derivative positions that will have no offset. The volatility
in any given period related to unrealized gains or losses can be significant to our overall results, however, we ultimately
expect those gains and losses to be offset when they become realized. A committee, comprised of the senior management
team of our general partner, oversees all of our derivative activity.

We utilize a corbination of fixed-price forward contracts, fixed-for-floating price swaps and options on the over-
the-counter (“OTC”) market. We may also enter into futures contracts traded on the NYMEX., Swaps and futures contracts
allow us to manage volatility in our margins because corresponding losses or gains on the financial instruments are generally
offset by gaias or losses in our physical positions.

We enter into OTC swaps with financial institutions and other energy company counterparties. We conduct a
siandard credit review on counterparties and have agreements containing collateral requirements where deemed necessary.
Ve use standardized swap agreements that allow for offset of positive and negative exposures. We may be subject to margin
dzposit requirements under OTC agreements (with non-bank counterparties) and NYMEX positions that we plan to meet
with letters of credit. Such funding requirements could exceed our letter of credit availability on our credit line, If we were
unable to meet these margin calls with letters of credit, we would be forced to sell product to meet the margin calls, or to
terminate the: corresponding futures contracts. If we are forced to sell product to meet margin calls, we may have to sell
product at prices that are not advantageous,

The use of derivative instruments may expose us to the risk of financial loss in certain circumstances, including
instances when (i) NGLs do not trade at historical levels relative to crude oil, (ii) sales volumes are less than expected,
requiring market purchases to meet commitments, or (iii) our OTC counterparties fail to purchase or deliver the contracted
quantities of natural gas, NGLs or crude o1l or otherwise fail to perform. To the extent that we enter into derivative
instruments, we may be prevented from realizing the benefits of favorable price changes in the physical market. We are
similarly insulated, however, against unfavorable changes in such prices. As of February 12, 2008, we currently have hedged
approximately 80% of our long positions in 2008 and MarkWest Hydrocarbon currently has hedged approximately 68% of its
frac spread positions in 2008.

The following table provides information on our specific derivative positions at December 31, 2007, including the
weighted average prices (“WAVG”):

Volumes WAVG Floor WAVG Cap Fair Value
WTI Crude Collars (Bbl/d) {Per Bbl) (Per Bbl) (in thousands)
2008, 3,150 $67.17 £77.21 £(20,296)
2009 e 2,925 63.66 69.76 (20,376)
2010 1,514 66.52 74.71 (6,862)
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Volumes WAVG Price Fair Value
_WTI Crude Swaps (Bbl/d) (Per Bbl) (in thousands)
2008ttt a e ranrens 150 $69.76 $(1,257)
2000 errerae et satse e an e s 1,173 65.61 {8,143)

We have entered into a contract which gives us an option to fix a component of the utilities cost to an index price on
electricity at one of our plant locations. Under SFAS 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
(“SFAS 1337), the value of the derivative component of this contract is marked to market based on an index price through
facilities expense. The estimated fair value of this contract was approximately $0.! milion current liability and $0.1 million
noncurrent asset at December 31, 2007. The estimated fair value of this contract at December 31, 2006 was near zero.

The impact of our commodity derivative instruments on our financial position are summarized below (in thousands):

December 31,
2007 2006
Fair value of derivative instruments:
CUITENE ASSEL. .0 1eeveeereeeeetoseisressresssssrnrererereersesssasnseseeactssaasssass $99 %4211
INODCUITENE ASSE .0 eeeeiieiceeeeriemerteeirereemsmseesssnneeesrernseannnesssassss 82 2,759
Current Hability ....oooceviviencersic e (21,658) o1
Noncurrent Hability ......coveevennrecnciire et (35,381)  (1,362)

We entered into the following derivative positions subsequent to December 31, 2007:

Volumes WAVG Floor
WTI Crude Puts (Bbl/d) (Per Bbl}
2008 (Feb through Dec) .....cccoiiimnirimenini i 3,346 $80.00
2009 ..t ee e eas e ssas s sre s e e aenan st e s e e st ssae et s et e e e nans 2,413 80.00
2OT0 it ire st a e e e be s et a e a e sbs s a e n s an e 1,191 80.00
2011 1,818 80.00
Volumes WAVG Floor WAVG Cap
WTI Crude Collars {Bbl/d) {Per Bbl) (Per Bbl)
2001 i e s s 1,706 $80.00 $104.50
The following table provides information on MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s specific derivative positions at
December 31, 2007:
Yolumes WAYG Price Fair Value
Natural Gas Swaps (MMBtu/d) {Per MM Btu) (in thousands)
2008 ... e 18,465 $£8.38 $(2,195)
2009, s 17,561 7.98 3,440
2010 i e s 10,143 827 1,209
Volumes WAVG Price Fair Value
Propane Swaps (Gal/d) (Per Gal) (in thousands)
2008 e e 84,207 $1.13 $(13,287)
Volumes WAVYG Price Fair Value
Natural Gasoline Swaps {Gal/d) (Per Gal) (in thousands)
2008.... e e 14,292 $1.60 $(2,552)
Volumes WAVG Price Fair Value
Normal Butane Swaps (Gal/d) (Per Gal) (in thousands)
2008 ... iivsiniiessesinsesnsrenesseeseeenenens 19,745 $1.30 $(3,728)
Volumes WAVG Price Fair Value
Isobutane Swaps (Gal/d) {Per (Gal) (in thousands)
2008 ... 6,165 $1.32 $(1,186)
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Volumes WAVG Price Fair Value
WTI Crude Swaps (Bbl/d) (Per Bb]) (in thousands)
2008 e 1,368 $62.79 5(14,113)
2009..... s 3,313 66.38 - (25,124)
2000 e, 2,284 68.52 (13,429)
2011 (through Mar 31) .......oooouevenivveereeeee. 2,351 71.27 (2,725)

Mar<West Hydrocarbon has a contract with one of the largest producers in the Appalachia region which creates a
floor on the f:ac spread that can be realized on a specified volume purchased. Under SFAS 133, the value of this contract is
marked basedl on an index price through purchased product costs. At December 31, 2007, the fair value of this contract was
recorded as a current liability of $9.4 million and a noncurrent liability of $6.7 million.

The impact of MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s commodity derivative instruments on its standalone financial position are
summarized below (in thousands):

December 31,

2007 2006
Fair value of derivative instruments:
CUITENE B5S€L.e.vvviiiiiieeeciercereennr s sressinessbeaeeeeessresssessarsonboeanas $9,342 $5,727
INONCUITENE SSET..c.viiiiiiiiiieeriseerrrrsrrs ittt et sesrsessssstsieeen s 5,332 35
Current Hability ....ecooooriiiiciiiiiine e (55,768)  (7,385)
Noncurrent Hability ..........ccoviimimienieriirn e (48,670} (98)

MarkWest Hydrocarbon entered into the following derivative positions subsequent to December 31, 2007:

Volumes WAVG Price
Natural Gas Swaps (MMBt/d)  (Per MMBitu)
24 O SO RUU 14,662 $8.88
Volumes WAVG Price
WTI Crude Swaps (Bbld)  (Per Bbl)
1 I OO SO U OO U 2,447 $91.54
2012 (through Jan 31) ..ot 2,142 91.50

Management periodically estimates the effects of its hedge program and further changes in crude oil prices on the |
cash flow from operations, including MarkWest Hydrocarbon, for the year-ended December 31, 2008, |

Management’s analysis considers a hypothetical change in oil prices, derivative instruments outstanding as of
February 28, 2008, no change in natural gas prices, and production estimated through Decemnber 31, 2008.

e Ascrude oil prices moves from $90/Bb] to $80/Bbl, our operating cash flow decreases approximately
S1.5 million for every $1/Bbl decrease in crude oil prices;

s Ascrude oil prices moves from $80/Bbl to $65/Bbi, our operating cash flow decreases approximately
51.1 million for every $1/Bbl decrease in crude oil prices; and

*  Ascrude oil prices moves from $65/Bbl to $60/Bbl, our operating cash flow decreases approximately
$0.7 million for every $1/Bbl decrease in crude oil prices.

Management’s analysis also considers a hypothetical change in natural gas prices, derivative instruments
outstanding as of February 28, 2008, no change in crude oil prices, and production estimated through December 31, 2008.

* As natural gas prices increase by $1.00/MMbtu in any price range, our operating cash flow decreases
approximately $1.9 million.

We consider the stated hypotheticat change in commodity prices to be reasenable given current and historic market
performance. The sensitivity analysis presented does not consider the actions management may take to mitigate our exposure
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to changes, nor does it consider the effects that such hypothetical adverse changes may have on overall economic activity.
Actual changes in market prices may differ from hypothetical changes. The effect of the stated theoretical change represents
potential losses in our condensed consolidated financial position and results of operations.

Interest Rate

Our primary interest rate risk exposure results from the revolving portion of the partnership credit facility that has a
borrowing capacity of $250.0 million and was entered into on December 29, 2005. The debt related to this agreement bears
interest at variable rates that are tied to either the U.S. prime rate or LIBOR at the time of borrowing. We may make use of
interest rate swap agreements in the future, to adjust the ratio of fixed and floating rates in our debt portfolio.

Qutstanding at
Long-term Debt Interest Rate Lending Limit Due Date December 31, 2007
Partnership Credit Facility(1) ......... Variable $250.0 miltion December 29, 2010 $55.5 million
2014 Senior NOES.......ooooviciveriinns Fixed $225.0 million November, 2014 $225.0 million
2016 Senior Notes.......orvvreceeermecnns Fixed $275.0 million July, 2016 $275.0 million

(1) The partnership credit facility was replaced by the Partmership Credit Agreement dated February 20, 2008. See
Note 22 of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for
additional information.

Based on our overall interest rate exposure at December 31, 2007, a hypothetical increase or decrease of one
percentage point in interest rates applied to borrowings under our credit facility would change earnings by approximately
$0.6 million ever a 12-month period.
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ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ......o...coeocevecrvivvnninineeer e,
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2007 and 2006 .......oocoooeeeeevoeeeeeeee e veeeseere s res e ese s s e e st et oo
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 ........oovvvoovoveeeesea,

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital and Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006 ANA 20035......utiieeeeecececeeaer bbb eeat ettt s st i et bbb e s et semem e e R e RSk e st e s et enesemnsnseterr bR tR e rerene et ereenean

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005......cooeverevorerovennn.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.......co.ooovveeen......

All omitted schedules have been omitted because they are not required or because the required information is
contained in the financial statements or notes thereto.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors of
MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C.
Denver, Colorado

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. and subsidiaries
(the “Partnership™) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in
capital and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Partnership’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the Partnership’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the criteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated February 29, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Partnership’s inmernal control
over financial reporting.

/s DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 29, 2008
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MARKWEST ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P,
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands)

December 31,
2007 2006
ASSETS
Current assets;
Cash and cash equivalents................ $26,505 $34,402
Receivab.es, net ofa]lowances of5160 and $l 18 respccuvcly .............................................................. 110,154 86,126
Receivab es from affiliate 8,582 4,654
Inventories.. et 3,118 3,593
Fair value ofdenvatlve 1nstrumcnts ........................... 99 4,211
Oher 885218 ...iviiie e et beae 20,893 - 3,047
Total current assets ............ 169,351 136,033
Property, plint and BQUIPIMENIL......c.cvoiov. it e et st en s crstens st eas s esesasas st sanesee s sassee s srasessenssesnensas 965,234 655,749
Less: Accumulated BepreCiAION .....cc...icceuiet ettt eete et es e e eae et eneea srserra e ree st et e s e seeasebenen (141,45% (104,863)
Total property, plant and EQUIPIIENE, TIEL ......cc.cuivieerrrcre s eseeresses e sreseasrs s snessesseseeneasessessesens 823,737 550,886
Other assets:
[nvestment in Starfish................... - 58,709 64,240
[ntangibles and other assets net of accumulated amomzatlon of $45 753 and $29 080 respcctwely 326,722 344,066
Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amortization of $7,804 and $5,326, respectively ... 13,180 15,753
Fair value: of derivative instruments 82 2,759
Other FoNg-term @SSe1S.....ovvrvevrvrererisnierisrirsessssisnneses 1,043 1,043
Total cither assets ..... 399,746 427,861

$1,392,834 51,114,780

TOTAL BSSEIS.. v covreireersrreareereersisresits s raes se soameeseeseaaress e sa s e e s se et e eeassshEaesbeesaesen saesmaseesmae st s e sateansbtsaesenneesne
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Current liab lities:

ACCOUNLS PAYADIE .ot e b s e e £103,160 $86,479
Payables to affiliate .. 4,229 1,950
Accrued liabilities ....... 60,038 43,255
Fair value of denvanve mstrumems 21,658 91
Total current liabilities... 189,085 131,775
Long-term debt, net of Dngma] issue dlSCOUﬂt of $2 805 and $3 135 respecnvely 552,695 526,865
DIETEITEA TAXES.....vvi e veerverirrerrsve et e e et e et et s1eseee s e e e b e s e nseassa e s e s ase st aan s b1 ben b e seamemsemsnsseabemsasan 1,220 769
Fair value 07 derivative INSIIUMENES .....cc.cooviivieiiiricrsiseereeeeeseeeiessaes s ernsserasesbesesss s smsssnsseesssnses 35,3181 1,362
Other Jong-term D IS o veirecriictier ittt ere e ea e e st cbessesressaseatsensassns e et et st b et braseemen 3,130 1,360
Commitments and contingencies (see Note 17)
Capital;
GEMETAL LATITIET ... ttiieece ettt eo ettt eaerea et et st a et b s s ae e re et e01 ressseame s ee s ea st mrae st s memnsereaens 12,241 9,631
Limited partners:
Common unitholders (39,358 and 31,166 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2007 and
2008, FESPECHIVEIY ). e ettt e e srnn e srra s s et sae s e e b et et e sabe s eees s e R e be st re ne s enee e nenan 599,082 442 447
Subordinated unitholders {0 and 1,200 units issued and outstandmg at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
TESPECTIVELY) ..orueerteee e e e b re s bR s e R AR s — 371
Total capital ... 611,323 452,649

Total llabllmes and cap:tal $1,392 834 $1,114,780

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MARKWEST ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per unit amounts)

Year ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Revenue:
UnAffiliated PATHES .....ooveseiisciiecmstri ettt $594,441  $550,643  $478,019
ASTIHALES 1veeeeeeeieiers s eeebe s ssessme s s i s e nrens RO 74,981 73,636 64,922
Derivative (I0S5) BAIN ... cvvrriciii e {(66,543) 5,632 (1,851)

TOTAT TEVEIIUE .o oeveeeeveeeeeeeeneesseeeeeeeeeaesiasstsesssrasnssenaeeasmneenbase saba s ntssr et arrssasnsnsmsesabts 602,879 629911 541,090
Operating expenses:

Purchased Product COSES ...t s 358,720 376,237 408,884
FACIlItY EXPENSES. ...vucverececeemceeiisibstsmnsssae s es s s bbb 75,036 60,112 47,972
Selling, general and administrative EXPENSES .......ooeervnircvcierirmrrrsn st 51,334 44,377 21,597
DIEPIECIALION. ... vetvesverirarsrs e s et sas st bR 40,171 29,993 19,534
Amortization of Intangible aSSetS...... .o 16,672 16,047 9,656
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and eqUIpment ... 7,564 (192) (24)
Accretion of asset retirement obligations. ... 114 102 159
IIIPATIINEIIS ..cocuesesereeeeeeeecec s sbs et e n e asas e s s bbb e e b 356 — —
Total OPETALINZ BXPEIISES ....ccvurmrmetiirreiiriieeiss st et 549,967 526,676 507,778
INCOME frOM OPETALIONS w.cueuuiiiiiiieirianirers e tsssts bttt 52,912 103,235 33312
Other income (expense):
Earnings (losses) from unconsolidated affiliates ... 5,309 5,316 (2,153)
IEIEEEESE TTLCOIII  1avvseeereeeeeeereessseeaseeeanssssarresasssaassstssbbasssnensrrsesnessasesmsnes shb e s Rae s st s anansares 2,887 962 367
TIEEIESL EXPEIISE ...ovvoereeseresenerarsessssassisirersrassnsnsssssssb sk s bbb bbb 00 (38,946) (40,666} (22,469)
Amortization of deferred financing costs and original issue discount (a component
OF INEETESE EXPEIISE) ..eeeeemvainirierarsrs st iis sttt s b s (2,717) (9,094) {6,780)
Miscellaneous (EXPENSE) IMCOITIC .......ooiiviinrieiei sttt bbb {1,002} 11,100 78
Income before provision for iNCOME 1AX ... 18,443 70,853 2,355
Provision for iNCOME tAX EXPEIMSE ....ccoorrermetirtimnnrseseenres e st (1,244) (769) —
N LICOMIC ..o eveveereeeeeeeeeeetstsssssteseeseassasessenssseseeaeehs saoab et bs s e b ar g pa s s nE s aE et et e st snnEeararbrE st $17,199 $70,084 $2,355
Interest in net income:
GENETAL PATIIET .uocvevereecrerseece s st eb bbb bbb s $12,821 $(843) $2,113
LAMItEd PAIINETS ........ceveseneercaeeeceriserassernsinsssssa e sasses st sera s rmssasa s bas s s sisaes 54,378 $70,927 5242
Net income per limited partner unit (See Note 2):
BASIC 1ov.v1eeeeeeeereeeseeerereeeeeserer et s s s s s e asae st b e e R e RS h e ase A b bbb r e $0.12 $2.45 $0.01
DHIUERA 11 oesteteeie st esere s et as s e enese s eses b bes s e re e R e e e b eRsm e s ae e et et s e s asRs e nEnR e e s $0.12 $2.44 $0.01
Weighted-average units outstanding:
BASIC 1uvvveeeeeeeeeeeeetetesresssassbasssressbens et easesess s R e R e SRR R R R A s SR e RS b e bt b e R e nE e r et 35,496 28,966 21,790
3 1T (s (OO OO PO P U OY OO TP PP T SSP 35,657 29,098 21,858
Distributions declared per limited partner Uit .........ococoveeerimvere s $2.09 $£1.79 $1.60

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MARKWEST ENERGY PARTNERS, L..P.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Balance at Diecember 31, 2004 .......ccoooviciiivennenenn.
[ssuance of units in private placement, net of

offering costs.. .
Common units lssued for vested restncted unlls

including contribution by MarkWest

Energy GP,LLC.....cccevriieeeeeccncnie
Contributior.s by MarkWest Encrgy GP, LLC.........
Common unit registration costs..
Subordinate units converted to common umts
Participatior. Plan compensation expense

allocated from MarkWest Hydrocarbon...............
Distributions to partners
Net (J05S) IMZOME..0rerveririieriais e
Unrealized gains on commodity derivative

instrumerts accounted for as hedges. ...................
Comprehensive inCome ........oeveeeeevcvvnierernnre e

Balance at Drecember 31, 2005 ........coceviiveciinnnirnens
Common units issued for vested restricted units......
Issuance of units in public of‘fering, net of

offering costs.. “
Subordinated umtcs convened 10 common umts
Contributior.s by MarkWest Energy GP, LLC.........
Participation Plan compensation expense

allocated from MarkWest Hydrocarbon..............
Distribution: (o PAMNErS ........o.cvvevesiecevrvnrsesesenens
Net income (10ss)....ccvviniiranen.
Balance at Diecember 31, 2006
Common units issued for vested restricted units,

including contribution by MarkWest

Energy GP, LLC...
Issuance of units in pnvale offermg, net of

Offering COStS.cur e
Conversion of subordinated units ...
Common unit registration COSIS ....uueeereenrarrerensrenes
Participatior Plan compensation expense

allocated from MarkWest Hydrocarbon..............
Distributions to Parmers ... renconcnicneas
NELINCOME. oeenreieermrrrerenrernes s

Balance at Cecember 31, 2007

(in thousands)

PARTNERS’ CAPITAL Accumulated
Limited Partners Other
Common Subordinated General  Comprehensive

Units Amount Units Amount _ Partner (Loss) Income Total
15,283  §227,483 6,000 383813 $5.160 $(314) 5241,142
4,438 97,518 — —_ 1,990 — 99,508
18 432 — — 9 — 441
— — — — 404 — 404
45 — - - —_ (45)
2,400 496  (2,400) (496) — — —
— — — — 2,055 — 2,055
_— (24,866) —  (9,190) (4,943) —  (38,999)
—_ (136) — 378 2,113 — 2,355
— — — — — 314 314
2,669
22,139 300,882 3,600 (495) 6,788 — 307,175
27 637 — — — — 637
6,600 123,410 — — 2,524 — 125,934
2,400 203 (2,400) (203) — — —
_— — — —_— 276 — 276
—- — — — 13485 — 13,485
— (46,481) —  (5,862) (12,599) —  (64,942)
— 63,796 — 7,131 (843) — 70,084
31,166 442 447 1,200 571 9,631 — 452649
4] 1,281 — — 39 — 1,320
6,951 224951 — — 4,591 — 229,542
1,200 (259) (1,200) 259 — —
— 307) —_ — (6) — (313)
— — — — 10,880 — 10,880
— (72,391} —  (1,848) (25,715) —  (99,954)
— 3,360 — 1,018 12,821 — 17,199
39,358  $599,082 — $— S12241 5— %611,323

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Net income..

MARKWEST ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Adjustments to reconcale net income 10 net cash provu:led by operaimg acmmes (net of

acquisitions):
Depreciation ...

Amortization of mlanglble asscts
Amortization of deferred ﬂnanclng costs zmd ongmal issue dlscount
Accretion of asset retirement obllgalmn

Impairments....

Restricted unit compensanon cxpcnse

Participation

Equity in (earnings) loss of unconsolidated affiliates
Distributions from equity investment .. rereranar
Unrealized loss (gain) on derivative mstrumcnts
Loss {gain) on disposal of property, plant and cqulpmcnt

Loss on sale

Deferred taxes... ...,

Other...

Plan compensation eXpense ...,

of equity INVESIEE ..o

Changes in operatmg assets and 11ab1ht1e5 net of worklng capnal acqulred

Receivables...

Receivables from afﬂllatcs

Inventories ..
Other assets.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities........ooivirirne

Payables to affiliates..,
Net cash provided by operatmg activitics..

Cash flows from investing activities:

Acquisitions

Investment in Starfish ...,
Capital expenditures. .....coaniniinninnn
Proceeds from sale of equity investee........

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and cqulpmcm

Net cash Nows used in inVesting acVITIES i
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from long-term debt..

Payments of

Proceeds from pnvale placemem o[' senior notcs
Payments for debt issuance costs, deferred ﬁnancmg costs .md reglstrauon costs.
Proceeds from private placements, net ..

Proceeds from public unit offering, nel

Contribution:

Distributions to unitholders...

long-term debt ..

s by MarkWest Energy GP, LLC ..

Net cash flows provided by (used :n) ﬁnancmg activities..

Net (decrease) increase in cash .. .
Cash and cash equivalents at begmmng of ycar

Cash and cash equivalents at end of Year. ... b e

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest, net of amounts capitalized.......oooooniini s

Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Accrued property, plant and eqUIPINENE. ...iiuirimmr s et s st s

Property, plant and equipment asset retirement ObHZANON ...c.oooovvrimircce e

Deferred offering costs PAYABIE ..o

Accrued amounts due to Javelina sellers and Starfish......ooooivceieicnieir e

Accrued private placement proceeds

December 31,

2007 2006 2005
$17,199 $70,084 $2.355
40,171 29,993 19,534
16,672 16,047 9.656
2717 9,094 6.780
114 102 159
356 — -
2,080 1,686 1,076
10,880 13,485 2055
(5,309) (5.316) 2,153
10,340 — 1,849
62,376 (6.245) 657
7,564 (192) (24)
451 769 —
{215 93 (28)
{24,028) 18,912 11,216
(3.928) 3,286 (2.094)
(7 (39) (1.318)
(16,989) 3,043 (6,676)
26,176 £2,380) (1.678)
2279 (1471) (3,582)
149,399 150,977 42,090
29 (21,389) (356,917)
— {21,237) (41,688)
(312,310) (77,387) (70,750}
= 150 —
196 525 47
(312,085) (119,338) (469.308)
477,300 157,524 893,000
(451,800 {506,524 (514,000)
— 271,700 —
(338) (6,310) (11.853)
229,542 5,000 54,508
— 125,934 -
39 276 404
{99.954) (64,942) (38,999)
154,789 (17.342) 423,060
(7.897) 14,297 (4,158)
34,402 20,105 24,263
26,505 $34,402 $20,105
$39,224 $31,784 $§22,112
$16,913 510,866 $1.602
$253 $64 $561
5— S— $215
5— 5— $6.888
$— $— $5,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MARKWEST ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization

MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. (*MarkWest Energy Partners”) was formed on January 25, 2002, as a Delaware
limited partnership. The Partnership and its wholly owned subsidiary, MarkWest Energy Operating Company, L.L.C. (the
“Operating Company™), were formed to acquire, own and operate most of the assets, liabilities and operations of MarkWest
Hydrocarbon, Inc.’s Midstream Business (the “Midstream Business”). MarkWest Energy Partners is engaged in the
gathering, processing and transmission of natural gas; the transportation, fractionation and storage of natural gas liquids and
the gathering and transportation of crude oil. MarkWest Energy Partners has established a significant presence in the
Southwes: through strategic acquisitions and strong organic growth opportunities stemming from those acquisitions.
MarkWest Energy Partners is also one of the largest processors of natural gas in the Appalachian Basin, one of the country’s
oldest natural gas producing regions. Finally, MarkWest Energy Partners processes natural gas and owns a crude oil
transportation pipeline in Michigan. MarkWest Energy Partners’ principal executive office is located in Denver, Colorado.

On February 21, 2008, MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. consummated the transactions contemptated by its plan of
redemption and merger with MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. (the “Company™ or “MarkWest Hydrocarbon™) and MWEP,
L.L.C., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Partnership. A discussion of the merger and its accounting impact on the
Partnership is described in Note 22.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Easis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., and
all of its majority-owned subsidiaries {collectively, the “Partnership™), and have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). Equity investments in which the Partnership
exercises significant influence, but does not control and is not the primary beneficiary, are accounted for using the equity
method.

Cn February 28, 2007 the Partnership completed a two-for-one split of the Partnership’s common units, whereby
holders of record at the close of business on February 22, 2007 received one additional common unit for each common unit
owned on that date. For all periods presented prior to February 22, 2007, all references to the number of units and per unit net
income and distribution amounts included in this report have been adjusted to give the effect to the unit split.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Estimates affect, among other items, valuing identified intangible assets, determining the
fair value of derivative instruments, evaluating impairments of long lived assets, establishing estimated useful lives for long-
lived assets, estimating revenues and expense accruals, valuing asset retirement obligations, and in determining liabilities, if
any, for legal contingencies.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Tae Partnership considers investments in highly liquid financial instruments purchased with an original maturity of
90 days or less to be cash equivalents. Such investrnents include money market accounts.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of weighted average cost or market. Inventories consisting primarily of crude oil

and unprocessed natural gas are valued based on the cost of the raw material. Processed natural gas inventories include
material, lebor and overhead. Shipping and handling costs are included in operating expenses.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Expenditures that extend the useful lives of assets are
capitalized. Repairs, maintenance and renewals that do not extend the useful lives of the assets are expensed as incurred.
Interest costs for the construction or development of long-term assets are capitalized and amortized over the related asset’s
estimated useful life. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life or lease term. Depreciation is
provided, principally on the straight-line method, over the following estimated useful lives:

Range of

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives
BUILAINES 111t rsacrrmresssarsissesmremsmsemsesssensnenessens 20 = 23 yEAIS
Gas gathering facilities........c.cocovnecnniniiins 20 - 25 years
Gas processing plants..........ccoeeeeeieeeceeeinnan, 20 - 25 years
Fractionation and storage facilities 20 - 25 years
Natural gas pipelines 20 - 25 years
Crude oil pipelines .........ccocoeeene. 20 - 25 years
NGL transportation facilities 20 - 25 years
Equipment and other ..o e 3 - 10 years

The Partnership recognizes the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period in which the
liability is incurred, with an offsetting increase in the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. The recognition of an
asset retirement obligation requires that management make numerous estimates, assumptions and judgments regarding such
factors as the estimated probabilities, amounts and timing of settlements; the credit-adjusted risk-free rate to be used;
inflation rates, and future advances in technology. In periods subsequent to initial measurement of the liability, the Company
must recognize period-to-period changes in the liability resulting from the passage of time and revisions to either the timing
or the amount of the original estimate of undiscounted cash flows. Over time, the liability is accreted to its future value, and
the capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Upon settlement of the liability, an entity either
settles the obligation for its recorded amount or incurs a gain or loss. The Partnership adopted the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations (“FIN 477), on
January 1, 2005. FIN 47 clarified the accounting for conditional asset retirement obligations under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations (“SFAS 143”). A conditional asset
retirement obligation is an unconditional legal obligation to perform an activity in which the timing and / or method of
settlement are conditional on a future event that may or may not be within the control of the entity. FIN 47 requires an entity
to recognize a liability for a conditional asset retirement obligation if the amount can be reasonably estimated. Adopting
FIN 47 had an immaterial impact on the Partnership.

Investment in Starfish

On March 31, 2005, the Partnership acquired its non-controlling, 50% interest in Starfish Pipeline Company, LLC
(“Starfish™) for $41.7 million, which is accounted for under the equity method. Differences between the Partnership’s
investment and its proportionate share of Starfish’s reported equity are amortized based upon the respective useful lives of
the assets to which the differences relate. The Partnership’s share of Starfish’s income was $5.3 million in 2007 and 2006
compared to a loss of $2.2 million in 2005.

Management’s accounting policy requires an evaluation of operating losses, if any, and other factors that may have
occurred, that may be indicative of a decrease in value of the investment which is other than temporary, and which should be
recognized even though the decrease in value is in excess of what would otherwise be recognized by application of the equity
method. The evaluation determines if an equity method investment should be impaired and that an impairment, if any, is
fairly reflected in these financial statements.

The Partnership believes the equity method is an appropriate means for it to recognize increases or decreases
measured by GAAP in the economic resources underlying the investments. Regular evaluation of these investments is
appropriate to evaluate any potential need for impairment. It uses the following types of evidence of a loss in value to identify
a loss in value of an investment that is other than a temporary decline. Examples of a loss in value may be identified by:

e  An inability to recover the carrying amount of the investment;

73




s A current fair value of an investment that is less than its carrying amount; and

¢ Other operational criteria that cause management to believe the investment may be worth less than otherwise
accounted for by using the equity method.

Intangible Assets

The Partnership’s intangible assets are comprised of customer contracts and relationships acquired in business
combinations, recerded under the purchase method of accounting at their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition.
Using relevant information and assumptions, management determines the fair value of acquired identifiable intangible assets.
Fair value is generally calculated as the present value of estimated future cash flows using a risk-adjusted discount rate. The
key assumptions include contract renewals, economic incentives to retain customers, historical volumes, current and future
capacity of the gathering system, pricing volatility, and the discount rate. Amortization of intangibles with definite lives is
calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the intangible asset. The estimated economic life is
determined by assessing the life of the assets to which the contracts and relationships relate, likelihood of renewals, the
projected reserves, competitive factors, regulatory or legal provisions, and maintenance and renewal costs.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Partnership evaluates its long-lived assets, including intangibles, for impairment when events or changes in
circumstan:es warrant such a review. A long-lived asset group is considered impaired when the estimated undiscounted cash
flows from such asset group are less than the asset group’s carrying value. In that event, a loss is recognized to the extent that
the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the long-lived asset group. Fair value is determined primarily using estimated
discounted cash flows. Management considers the volume of reserves behind the asset and future NGL product and natural
gas prices to estimate cash flows. The amount of additional reserves developed by future drilling activity depends, in part, on
expected natural gas prices. Projections of reserves, drilling activity and future commodity prices are inherently subjective
and contingent upon a number of variable factors, many of which are difficult to forecast. Any significant variance in any of
these assumptions or factors could materially affect future cash flows, which could result in the impatrment of an asset.

Fer assets identified to be disposed of in the future, the carrying value of these assets is compared to the estimated
fair value, less the cost to sell, to determine if impairment is required. Until the assets are disposed of, an estimate of the fair
value is re-Jetermined when related eveats or circumstances change.

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs, included in Other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, are amortized over the
sstimated lives of the related obligations or, in certain circumstances, accelerated if the obligation is refinanced, using the
straight line: method which approximates the effective interest method.

Deferred income

Deferred income represents prepayments received in revenue generating contracts. In certain cases, the Partnership
received prepayments under fixed fee contracts to deliver NGLs at a future date. Deferred income is recognized as revenue
upon delivery of the product. In other cases, the Partnership received prepayments related to the construction of gathering
facilities to transport the producer’s gas from certain delivery points. Deferred income is generally recognized into revenue
over the term of the gathering contract. Deferred income is reported in Accrued Liabilities and Other Long Term Liabilities
in the accompanying Balance Sheets.

Derivative Instruments

SEAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (“SFAS 133™), established accounting
and reporting standards requiring that derivative instruments (including certain derivative instruments embedded in other
contracts) be recorded at fair value and included in the consolidated balance sheet as assets or liabilities. The accounting for
changes in “he fair value of a derivative instrument depends on the intended use of the derivative and the resulting
designation, which is established at the inception.
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To the extent derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges are effective, changes in fair value are
recognized in other comprehensive income until the underlying hedged item is recognized in eamings. Effectiveness is
evaluated by the derivative instrument’s ability to offset changes in fair value or cash flows of the underlying hedged item.
Any change in the fair value resulting from ineffectiveness is recognized immediately in earnings. Changes in the fair value
of derivative instruments designated as fair value hedges, as well as the changes in the fair value of the underlying hedged
item, are recognized currently in earnings. Any differences between the changes in the fair values of the hedged item and the
derivative instrument represent gains or losses from ineffectiveness. During 2007 and 2006, we did not designate any cash
flow or fair value hedges.

In the course of normal operations, the Partnership routinely enters into contracts such as forward physical contracts
for the sale of natural gas, propane, and other NGLs, that under SFAS 133, qualify for and are designated as a normal sales
contract. Such contracts are exempted from the fair value accounting requirements of SFAS 133 and are accounted for using
accrual accounting.

All derivative instruments other than those designated as cash flow hedges, fair value hedges or normal purchase or
sale are marked to market through revenue or facility expense, the same account as the item hedged. Changes in risk
management activities are reported in cash flow from operating activities on the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Management believes the carrying amount of financial instruments, including cash, accounts receivable, accounts
payable, and accrued expenses approximates fair value because of the short-term maturity of these instruments. Management
believes the carrying value of the Partnership’s Credit Facility (see Note 11) approximates fair value due to its variable
interest rates, The estimated fair value of the Senior Notes (see Note 11) was approximately $490.7 million and
$499.8 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, based on quoted market prices. Derivative instruments not
designated as hedges (see Note 12) are recorded at fair value, based on available market information.

Revenue Recognition

The Partnership generates the majority of its revenues from natural gas gathering, processing and transmission; NGL
transportation, fractionation and storage; and crude oil gathering and transportation. It enters into variety of contract types. In
many cases, the Partnership provides services under contracts that contain a combination of more than one of the
arrangements described below. The Partnership provides services under the following different types of arrangements (all of
which constitute midstream energy operations):

»  Fee-based arrangements—Under fee-based arrangements, the Partnership receives a fee or fees for one or more
of the following services: gathering, processing and transmission of natural gas; transportation, fractionation
and storage of NGLs; and gathering and transportation of crude oil. The revenue the Partnership earns from
these arrangements is directly related to the volume of natural gas, NGLs or crude oil that flows through the
Partnership’s systems and facilities and is not directly dependent on commodity prices.

s Percent-of-proceeds arrangements—Under percent-of-proceeds arrangements, the Partnership gathers and
processes natural gas on behalf of producers, sells the resulting residue gas, condensate and NGLs at market
prices and remits to producers an agreed-upon percentage of the proceeds based on an index price. In other
cases, instead of remitting cash payments to the producer, the Partnership wiil deliver an agreed-upon
percentage of the residue gas and NGLs to the producer and sell the volumes the Partnership keeps to third
parties at market prices.

e Percent-of-index arrangements—Under percent-of-index arrangements, the Partnership will purchase natural
gas at either (1) a percentage discount to a specified index price, (2) a specified index price less a fixed amount
or (3) a percentage discount to a specified index price less an additional fixed amount. The Partnership will then
gather and deliver the natural gas to pipelines where the Partnership will resell the natural gas at the index price,
or at a different percentage discount to the index price.

o Keep-whole arrangements—Under keep-whole arrangements, the Partnership gathers natural gas from the

producer, processes the natural gas and sells the resulting condensate and NGLs to third parties at market prices.
Because the extraction of the condensate and NGLs from the natural gas during processing reduces the Bu
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content of the natural gas, the Partnership must either purchase natural gas at market prices for return to
producers or make cash payment to the producers equal to the energy content of this natural gas.

e Settlement margin—Typically, the Partnership is allowed to retain a fixed percentage of the volume gathered to
cover the compression fuel charges and deemed-line losses. To the extent the Partnership’s gathering systems
are operated more efficiently than specified per contract allowance, the Partnership is entitled to retain the
difference for its own account.

In many cases, the Partnership provides services under contracts that contain a combination of more than one of the
arrangements described above. The terms of the Partnership’s contracts vary based on gas quality conditions, the competitive
environment when the contracts are signed and customer requirements. Under all of the arrangements, revenue is recognized
at the time the product is delivered and title is transferred. It is upon delivery and title transfer that the Partnership meets all
four revenue recognition criteria, and it is at such time that the Partnership recognizes revenue.

The Partnership’s assessment of each of the four revenue recognition critetia as they relate to its revenue producing
activities is as follows:

Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists. The Partnership’s customary practice is to enter into a written
contract, executed by both the customer and the Partnership.

Dz=livery. Delivery is deemed to have occurred at the time the product is delivered and title is transferred, or in the
case of fee-based arrangements, when the services are rendered. To the extent the Partnership retains its equity liquids as
inventory, delivery occurs when the inventory is subsequently sold and title is transferred to the third party purchaser.

The fee is fixed or determinable. The Partnership negotiates the fee for its services at the outset of its fee-based
arrangements, In these arrangements, the fees are nonrefundable. The fees are generally due within ten days of delivery or
services rendered. For other arrangements, the amount of revenue is determinable when the sale of the applicable product has
been completed upon delivery and transfer of tite. Proceeds from the sale of products are generally due in ten days.

Collectibility is reasonably assured. Collectibility is evaluated on a customer-by-customer basis. New and existing
customers are subject to a credit review process, which evaluates the customers’ financial position (e.g. cash position and
credit rating) and thetr ability to pay. If collectibility is not considered reasonably assured at the outset of an arrangement in
accordance with the Partnership’s credit review process, revenue is recognized when the fee is collected.

The Partnership enters into revenue arrangements where it sells customer’s gas and/or NGLs and depending on the
nature of the arrangement acts as the principal or agent. Revenue from such sales is recognized gross where the Partnership
acts as the Principal, under Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 99-19, Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal
versus Net as an Agent, as the Partnership takes title to the gas and/or NGLs, has physical inventory risk and does not earn a
fixed amount. Revenue is recognized net when the Partnership earns a fixed amount and does not take ownership of the gas
and/or NGLs.

Gas volumes received may be different from gas volumes delivered, resulting in gas imbalances. The Partnership
records a receivable or payable for such imbalances based upon the contractual terms of the purchase agreements, The
Partnership had an imbalance payable of $0.9 mllion at December 31, 2007 and 2006, recorded in accrued liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated Balance Sheets. The Partnership had an imbalance receivable of $1.7 million and $2.7 millien at
December 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively, recorded in other receivables in the accompanying consolidated Balance Sheets.
Revenues for the transportation of crude are based upon regulated tariff rates and the related transportation volumes and are
recognized when delivery of crude is made to the purchaser or other common carrier pipeline. As described above, changes in
the fair value of commodity derivative instruments are recognized currently in revenue.

Revenue and Expense Accruals

The Partnership routinely makes accruals based on estimates for both revenues and expenses due to the timing of
compiling billing information, receiving certain third party information and reconciling the Partnership’s records with those
of third parties. The delayed information from third parties includes, among other things, actual volumes purchased,
transported or sold, adjustments to inventory and invoices for purchases, actual natural gas and NGL deliveries and other
operating expenses. The Partnership makes accruals to reflect estimates for these items based on its internal records and
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information from third parties. Most of the estimated accruals are reversed in the following month when actual information is
received from third parties and the Partnership’s internal records have been reconciled.

Incentive Compensation Plans

The Partnership adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (“SFAS 123R”), on January 1, 2006,
using the modified prospective method. Prior to adopting SFAS 123R, the Partnership elected to measure compensation
expense for equity-based employee compensation plans as prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB 257).

The Partnership issues restricted units under the MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. Long-Term Incentive Plan. A
restricted unit is a “phantom” unit that entitles the grantee to receive a commeon unit upon the vesting of the phantom unit or,
at the discretion of the Compensation Committee, cash equivalent to the value of a common unii. The restricted units are
treated as liability awards under SFAS 123R, and were treated as variable awards under APB 25. The Partnership applied
variable accounting under APB 25 for the plan because a phantom unit is an award to employees entitling them 10 increases
in the market value of the Partnership’s units subsequent to the date of grant without issuing units to the employees, similar to
a stock appreciation right, As a result, the Partnership is required to mark to market the awards at the end of each reporting
period. Compensation expense is measured for the phantom unit grants using the market price of MarkWest Energy Partners’
common units on the date the units are granted. The fair value of the units awarded is amortized into eamnings over the period
of service, adjusted quarterly for the change in the fair value of the unvested units granted. The phantom units vest over a
stated period.

Vesting is accelerated for certain employees, if specified performance measures are met. The accelerated vesting
criteria provisions are based on annualized distribution goals. If the Partnership’s distributions are at or above the goal for a
certain number of consecutive quarters, vesting of the employee’s phantom units is accelerated. The general partner of the
Partnership may also elect to accelerate the vesting of outstanding awards, which results in an immediate charge to operations
for the unamortized portion of the award,

To satisfy common unit awards, the Partnership will issue new common units, acquire common units in the open
market, or use common units already owned by the general partner.

MarkWest Hydrocarbon entered into arrangements with certain directors and employees of the Company referred to
as the Participation Plan. Under this plan, the Company sold subordinated units of the Partnership or interests in the
Partnership’s general partner, under a purchase and sale agreement. Both the subordinated unit and generai partner interest
transactions were considered compensatory arrangements due to the put-and-call provisions and the associated valuation
being based on a formula instead of an independent third party valuation. The subordinated units converted to common units
after a holding period. Historically, the Company has settled the subordinated units for cash when individuals left the
Company. The general partner interests have no definite term, but historically have been settled for cash when the employee
left the Company. Under SFAS 123R, the subordinated units and general partner interests were classified as liability awards.
As a result, the Company was required to mark to market the subordinated unit and general partner interest valuations at the
end of each period. Please refer to Note 22 for further information about the termination of the Participation Plan.

Under Topic 1-B of the codification of the Staff Accounting Bulletins, Allocation of Expenses and Relared
Disclosure in Financial Statements of Subsidiaries, Divisions or Lesser Business Components of Another Entity, some
portion of compensation expense related to services provided by MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s emptoyees and directors
recognized under the Participation Plan should be allocated to the Partnership. The allocation is based on the percent of time
each employee devotes to the Company. Compensation attributable to interests sold to individuals who serve on both the
board of MarkWest Hydrocarbon and the Partnership’s Board of Directors of the Partnership’s General Partner is allocated
equally.

These charges are included in selling, general and administrative expenses and are allocated to the general partner
pursuant to the Partnership Agreement. Assuming the compensation cost for the Long-Term Incentive Plan and the
Participation Plan had been determined based on the fair-value methodology of SFAS 123R, the net income and earnings per
unit would have been the same as reported on the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005,
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Titcome Taxes

The Partnership is not a taxable entity for federal income tax purposes. As such, the Partnership does not directly
pay federzl income tax. The Partnership’s taxable income or loss, which may vary substantially from the net income or loss
reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, is includable in the federal income tax returns of each partner. The
aggregate difference in the basis of the Partnership’s net assets for financial and income tax purposes cannot be readily
determined as the Partnership does not have access to information about each partner’s tax attributes related to the
Partnership.

The Partnership is a taxable entity under certain state jurisdictions. The Partnership accounts for state income taxes
under the asset and liability method pursuant to SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (“SFAS 109”). Under
SFAS 109, deferred income taxes are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis and net operating loss and
credit canyforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of any tax rate
change on deferred taxes is recognized in the period that includes the enactment date of the tax rate change. Realizability of
deferred tax assets is assessed and, if not more likely than not, a valuation allowance is recorded to write down the deferred
tax assets to their net realizable value.

The Partnership adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (“FIN 48”), on
January 1, 2007. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a company’s financial
statements in accordance with SFAS 109. Specifically, the pronouncement prescribes a “more likely than not” recognition
threshold and a measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or
expected 1o be taken in a tax return. The interpretation also provides guidance on the related derecognition, classification,
interest and penalties, accounting for interim periods, disclosure and transition of uncertain tax positions. The adoption of
FIN 48 did not have a material effect on the Partnership’s financial position or results of operations.

Comprehensive Income (loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) includes net income and other comprehensive income (loss), which includes
unrealized gains and losses on commodity or interest rate derivative financial instruments accounted for as hedges.

Larnings Per Unit

Except as discussed in the following paragraph, basic and diluted net income per limited partner unit is calculated by
dividing net income, after deducting amounts specially allocated to the general partner’s interests, including interests in
incentive distribution rights, by the weighted-average number of limited partner common and subordinated units cutstanding
during the period.

EITF No. 03-06, Participating Securities and the Two-Class Method under FASB Statement No. 128, (“EITF 03-
06") addresses the computation of earnings per share by entities that have issued securities other than common stock that
contractuially entitle the holder to participate in dividends and earnings of the entity, EITF 03-06 provides that the general
partner’s interest in net income is to be calculated based on the amount that would be allocated to the general partner if all the
net incorr.e for the period were distributed, and not on the basis of actual cash distributions for the period.

"The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per limited partner unit, as adjusted for
the February 28, 2007 two-for-one unit split. The net income available to limited partners and the weighted average limited
partner units outstanding have been adjusted for instruments considered common unit equivalents in 2007, 2006 and 2005 (in
thousands, except per unit data):
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Year ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per limited partner unit:
N ATICOMMIC .ot e e e et e e sastsasss2essenaranasbaastsebasabssntsartstesatenns $17,199 $70,084 $2,355
Less:

General partner’s incentive distribution paid............ccvvmervnreinisces e (23,716) (1,301)  (4,163)
SUB-OTAL ..voviiveie i stiest st es s sans b ase st eb s na s b ers e s ab s e s s rere e e nens (6,517) 58,783 (1,808)
Plus:

Allocated depreciation expense attributable to the general partners contribution

for construction of the Cobb Gas Extraction Plant ... 106 106 —

Participation plan allocation ...........ccocoovrvvnrrvresennenes e s 10,880 13,485 2,055
Net INCOME DEIOTE GP IICTES . oot e e eere e sotms bt ss s sabsbbt bt s e sasrabasasss 4,469 72,374 247
Less:

General partner’s 2% INTEIest.........ccoovireer e e e (91) (1,447) (5
Net income available to limited partners under EITF 03-6......cccoovvviveinninniececnn $4,378 $70,927 $242
Denominator: '

Denominator for basic eamnings per limited partner unit-weighted average

number of limited pPartner UNItS. .......cccoovriicirnnieerrrees e s ecsene 35,496 28,966 21,790
Effect of dilutive securities: N
Weighted-average of restricted units outstanding..........occoveeveiiiiniceccncnicieeenne 161 132 68
Denominator for diluted earnings per limited partner unit-weighted average
number of Hmited PArtNEr UNILS........ocvviveiisisieeserinieierereroreserssesessssessssesssssees 35,657 29,098 21,858
Net income per limited partner unit:
BASIC 11ovevreeiie et se st s e sasa s e et arasaens e ne e ne et e e sreseneens $0.12 $2.45 30.01
DIIIEA e e eh s $0.12 $2.44 $0.01

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 1577). SFAS 157 clarifies
the principle that fair value should be based on the assumptions market participants would use when pricing an asset or
liability and establishes a fair value hicrarchy that prioritizes the information used to develop those assumptions. SFAS 157 is
effective for the Partnership’s financial statements as of January 1, 2008. On February 6, 2008 the FASB, approved the
partial deferral of SFAS 157 for non-financial assets and liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair
value in the financial statements on a reoccurring basis (at least annually) until fiscal years beginning after November 15,
2008. The Partnership has elected to defer recognition of items including:

s Nonfinancial assets and liabilities initially measured at fair value in a business combination.

s  Reporting units measured at fair value in the first and second steps of a goodwill impairment test as described in
paragraphs 19 to 21 of SFAS 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (“SFAS 142%).

¢ Indefinite lived intangible assets measured at fair value for impairment assessment under SFAS 142,

* Long-lived assets measured as fair value for impairment assessment under SFAS 144, Accounting for
Impairment or Disposal of Long Lived Assets.

*  Asset retirement obligations initially measured at fair value under SFAS 143,

s Liabilities for exit or disposal activities initially measured at fair value under SFAS 146 Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.

For the provisions of SFAS 157 adopted as of January 1, 2008, they will not have an impact on the Partnership’s financial
statements.
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In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabiliries (“SFAS 159™), which permits an entity to measure certain financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value. The
statement’s objective is to improve financial reporting by allowing entities to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused
by the measurement of related assets and liabilities using different attributes, without having to apply complex hedge
accounting provisions. Under SFAS 139, entities that elect the fair value option will report unrealized gains and losses in
earnings at cach subsequent reporting date. The fair value option may be elected on an instrument-by-instrument basis, with a
few exceptions, as long as it is applied to the instrument in its entirety. The fair value option election is irrevocable, unless a
new election date occurs. SFAS 159 establishes presentation and disclosure requirements to help financial statement users
understand the effect of the entity’s election on its earnings, but does not eliminate disclosure requirements of other
accounting standards. Assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value must be displayed on the face of the balance sheet,
SFAS 159 is effective for the Partnership as of January 1, 2008. The provisions of SFAS 159 will not have an impact on the
Partnership’s financial statements.

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), Business Combinations (“SFAS 141R”). This
statement replaces SFAS 141, Business Combinations. The statement provides for how the acquirer recognizes and measures
the identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. SFAS 141R provides for
how the acjuirer recognizes and measures the goodwill acquired in the business combination or a gain from a bargain
purchase. The statement determines what information to disclose to enable users to be able to evaluate the nature and
financial effects of the business combination. The provisions of SFAS 141R are effective for the Partnership as of January 1,
2009 and do not allow early adoption. The Partnership is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this statement.

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements-—an amendment of ARB No. 51 (“SFAS 160”). This statement provides that noncontrolling interests in
subsidiaries held by parties other than the parent be identified, labeled and presented in the statement of financial position
within equity, but separate from the parent’s equity. SFAS 160 states that the amount of consolidated net income attributable
to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest be clearly identified on the consolidated statement of income. The statement
provides fer consistency regarding changes in parent ownership including when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. Any retained
noncontrolling equity investment in the former subsidiary will be initially measured at fair value. The provisions of
SFAS 160 are effective for the Partnership as of January 1, 2009 and do not allow early adoption. The Partnership is
currently evaluating the impact of adopting the statement.

3 Acquisitions

During 2006 and 2005, the Partnership completed the following acquisitions. Each acquisition was accounted for
under the purchase method. The assets acquired and liabilities assumed were recorded at the estimated fair market values as
of the acquisition date. The preliminary allocation of assets and liabilities may be adjusted to reflect the final determined
amounts during a short period of time following the acquisition. The results of operations from these acquisitions are
included in our consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date.

Santa Fe Gathering Acquisition

On December 29, 2006, the Partnership purchased 100% of the ownership interest in Santa Fe Gathering, L.L.C. for
$15.0 million subject to working capital adjustments. The gathering system is located in Roger Mills and Beckham Counties,
Oklahoma. The Grimes system was constructed in May 2005 to gather from growing production fields.

Javelina Acquisition

On November 1, 2005, the Partnership acquired equity interests in Javelina Company, Javelina Pipeline Company
and Javelira Land Company, L.L.C., which were 40%, 40% and 20%, respectively, owned by subsidiaries of El Paso
Corporation, Kerr-McGee Corporation and Valero Energy Corporation. The Partnership paid consideration of $357.0 million,
plus $41.8 million for net working capital that included approximately $35.5 million in cash. The Corpus Christi, Texas, gas
processing facility treats and processes oft-gas from six local refineries, two of which are owned by Valero Energy
Corporation, twa by Koch Industries, Inc. and two by Citgo Petroleum Corporation. The Partnership and the seller negotiated
a final settlement of the acquired working capital of $41.8 million, and the final payment of $5.9 million was paid to the
sellers in May of 2006 and included in the final purchase price allocation, which was completed in the second quarter of
2006.
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Starfish Joint Venture

On March 31, 2005, the Partnership acquired a 50% non-operating membership interest in Starfish from an affiliate
of Enterprise Products Partners L.P. for $41.7 million. The Partnership financed this by borrowing $40.0 million from its
credit facility during the first quarter of 2005, Starfish is a joint venture with Enbridge Offshore Pipelines LLC, which the
Partnership accounts for using the equity method. Starfish owns the FERC-regulated Stingray natural gas pipeline, and the
unregulated Triton natural gas gathering system and West Cameron dehydration facility. All of the assets are located in the
Gulf of Mexico and southwestern Louisiana.

The following table summarizes the costs and allocations of the above acquisitions (in thousands):

2006 2005
Santa Fe Javelina

Acquisition Costs:

Cash CONSIAETAION .. ...ovvvvivieie s errvseeeeeeceee e ree e enaseeeneees $14941 $396,836
Direct acquiSIition COSES .....ceevieecievicrence e ssae 29 2,009

TOtalS: ... e $14,970 $398,845

Allocation of acquisition costs:

CUITENT BSSEIS ...vivirrevireirieririeirseessreesssassssssssasssssssssesnneesnsesssnrnss $331 §111,679
CUSLOTNET COMTACIS ... eeee et e et e eee e e e ee s e e s ee e e e s reeneeesanean 11,959 194,650
Property, plant and equipment...........ccccoevivirevereerieroorinens 3,087 162,859
INVEMIOTY et e e 11 -
Liabilities assumed ...........ccooevver v (418) (70,343)

) ¥ ) LTI $14,970 $398,845

Pro Forma Results of Operations

The following table reflects the pro forma consolidated results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2003,
as though the Javelina and Starfish acquisitions had occurred on January 1, 2005. The unaudited pro forma results of
operations for the Santa Fe acquisition has not been presented, as the acquisition is not considered significant. The results
have been prepared for comparative purposes only and may net be indicative of future results. All earnings per share
information have been updated to reflect the February 2007 unit split,

Year ended December 31,
2005
As Reported Pro Forma
(in thousands, except per

unit data)

REVEIIUC .e.vetiieieeete et ettt s st sbssse e s sssssabssessasssassobsnasanssates $541,090 $796,954
Net income (J0SS) ....cccivvieirievieecieseeeerce v benenas $2,355  $(5.492)
Net income (loss)—limited Partners .........cocococvereeeernrrernnenn. 8242  $(7,007)
Net income (loss) per share—limited partners

BaSiC. ..o s T Leereen $0.01  $(0.32)

DilUted..cveiiiiciiin i 30.01 5(0.32)
Weighted average number of outstanding common units:

BASIC . c.etreeieee e ettt et 21,790 21,790

DIULEA..c.cevoreerrirsririsrei e s sesserasseraresaesssesreserenes 21,858 21,858

4. Significant Customers and Concentration of Credit Risk

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 20035, revenues from MarkWest Hydrocarbon totaled
$75.0 million, $73.6 million and $64.9 million, representing 12% of consolidated Partnership revenues. Sales to MarkWest
Hydrocarbon are made primarily from the Appalachia segment. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Partnership had
$8.6 million and $4.7 million, respectively, of accounts receivable from MarkWest Hydrocarbon.

For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, revenues from one customer totaling $191.5 million and
$76.0 million, representing 31.8% and 12.1% of consolidated Partnership revenues, respectively. Sales to this customer are
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made primarily from the East Texas segment. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Partnership had $6.4 million and

$3.0 millien of accounts receivable from this customer, respectively.

Fur the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, revenues from one customer totaled $88.9 million and
$63.0 million, representing 14.8% and 10.0% of consolidated Partnership revenues, respectively. Sales to this customer are
made primarily from the Oklahoma segment. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Partnership had $9.5 million and

$5.2 millicn of accounts receivable from this customer, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2005, revenues from one other customer totaled $67.0 million, representing 12.4%
of consolidated Partnership revenues, respectively. Sales to this customer were made primarily from the Oklahoma segment.

As of December 31, 2005, the Partnership had $5.5 million of accounts receivable from this customer.

A. Receivables and Other Current Assets

Receivables consist of the following (in thousands):

Cither current assets consist of the following (in thousands):

Margin deposits (see Note 12).ereererreecnrnereinrernmraornnmnionns
Prepaid fuel ...,
Prepaid inSUTANCE ......cocveeiiiniimininini st senaes
Prepaid equipment rental..........ccooveiiiiiniinimnnniee e
Merger finance COSS ...
Risk management premiums ........ocoeeevvevereienrsreicnvnnnnrennnnen
Prepaid other ...

Total other CUITENE ASSELS......cvvverereeeereeerrrerreereeseeeneeeneeneveneans

6. FProperty, Plant and Equipment

Froperty, plant and equipment consist of the following (in thousands):

Gas gathering facilities..........ocovvoooeeene
(5as processing Plants.......oevecvereorcvnmrrnnererrsrs e eseseenes
Fractionation and storage facilities..........ccovvrvivivrvrerirrnnnn,
Natural gas pipelines ........c.coorvivniriennes e
Crude oil pIpelines ........coeovvrvvevirr s
NGL transportation facilities...........cocccoovvinivmernrvcnnssrnnnns
Land, building and other equipment...........cocoevenivcivcnrnnnens
Construction in Progress. .. i e

Less: accumulated depreciation...........oveveeveniniercnerorisnererane
Total property, plant and equipment .......ccccccoveveivninnnenn

" “he Partnership capitalizes interest on major projects during construction. For the years ended December 31, 2007

December 31,

2007 2006

...... $101,828 $68,692
...... 8326 17434

...... $110,154 386,126

December 31,

2007 2006
......... $19,300  $--
......... 14 1215
......... 192 391
......... 401 283
......... 857 —
......... — 1,009
......... 129 149

......... $20,893 83,047

December 31,

2007 2006

$596,627  $289,586
213,487 217,080
24,266 23,470
42,347 42,361
19,113 19,113
4,676 5,326
15,498 16,871
49,220 41,942

965,234 655,749
(141,497)  (104,863)

$823,737  $550,886

and 2006, the Partnership capitalized interest of $3.3 million and $0.9 million, respectively.
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7. [ntangible Assets

The Partnership’s intangible assets at December 31, 2007 and 2006, are comprised of customer contracts and

relationships, as follows {in thousands):

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Accumulated Accumulated
Description_ Gross Amortization Net Gross Amortization Net Useful Life
East TeXas.......ccceeeeevicieenininenne $165,379 S(28,252) $137,127  $165,379 $19,984  $145.395 20 years
Javelina...ocorvrececeneeciee 195,137 (16,903 178,234 195,137 9,096 186,041 25 years
Oklahoma...........ococovevciniennene 11,959 {598) 11,361 12,630 — 12,630 20 years
Totalt..coooreereonnean, $372,475 $(45,753) $326,722  $373,146 $29,080  $344,066

Amortization expense related to the intangible assets was $16.7 million, $16.0 million and $9.7 million for the years

ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,

respectively.

Estimated future amortization expense related to the intangible assets at December 31, 2007, is as follows (in

thousands):

Year ending December 31:

00D e e e et e et et e e st s bbb s vh e e e R R e e e e et e nren b e re e et aeemreneeneens 16,672
2 0} U PO U YU TO SR PP 16,672
71 ) OOV U UOUO U OO UV UDT 16,672
] 0] VOO POT PP TOU VT OTSUR 16,672
TRETEAIIET ... .ottt e e e rr e e s s raa e et e remr e ab s e s b s ebbn 243,362
$326,722
Accrued Liabilities
Accrued liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):
December 31,
2007 2006

Product and Operations ...........oveeeereesenesinrermnsnsinnneinss s e nsens $14,689 $8,653
Professional SETVICES ...oov oottt et et eisea s ise s sessaessaesbassarresereees 956 1,133
Taxes (other than iNCOME taX) .........cooveveeieirmenrccrmecnre s 4428 3,118
|11 T=: (=] SUTUTRTT OO OO U 13,457 13,935
Accrued property, plant and equipment ..........cocvevenerieieieeeeeenn 16,913 10,866
DEferred INCOIME. .....ccovcv it et ierrereveerereseresrssseesteseeeseembeesnssssssanareasses 1,436 167
Deferred lease obligation..........ccvvveveeeninrsiniiie it 2,235 2,344
Phantom Unit 8CCTUAL. .....c..oceeeei et ee e s e e s srsar s srvre s vasasananes 2,807 2,007
Accrued derivative settlement ... e 1,940 —
BT ceeeeeeeeeeee s esessanese s saneesees esssaamsasssatsbssesntatevrareeestnsassanrrerannn 1,177 1,032
Total accrued Habilities ...vocoovveeiieeeeeeeeere e s 560,038 $43,255
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9. Asset Retirement Obligation

"The following is a reconciliation of the changes in the asset retirement obligation from January 1, 2006 to
December 31, 2007 (in thousands):

Year ended

December 31,

2007 2006
Beginning asset retirement 0bligation ................covvvevvvvin i eeceeseincsnnnns $1,268 §1,102
Liabilities incurred ..o e 109 64
Revisions in estimated cash flows...........occcccoverciiccicca 144 —
ACCTEHON BXPBNSE ...t e e b 114 102
Ending asset retirement obligation ..........c.cocovevieviirecinienesee e $1,635 §1,268

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, there were no assets legally restricted for purposes of settling asset retirement
obligations. The asset retirement obligation has been recorded as part of other long-term liabilities in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets,

10. Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Partnership’s policy is to evaluate whether there has been a permanent impairment in the value of long-lived
assets when certain events have taken place that indicate that the remaining balance may not be recoverable. The Partnership
evaluates the carrying value of its property and equipment on at least a segment level and at lower levels where cash flows
for specific assets can be identified.

The analysis determined that a system located in the Other Southwest segment had future estimated cash inflows
estimated to be near zero because the system was shut-in for a year, and as such the carrying amounts of the assets exceeded
the estimated undiscounted cash flows. It was determined that an impairment of the system had occurred. Fair value of the
long-tived assets was determined based on management’s opinion that the idle assets had no economic value. Therefore, an
impairment of long-lived assets of $0.4 million was recognized during the year ended December 31, 2007.

11. Diebt

Liebt is summarized below (in thousands):

December 31,
2007 2006

Credit facility
Revolver facility, 7.09% and 8.75% interest, respectively, due

December 2010 ..ottt st $55,500 $30,000
Senior Notes
Senior Notes, 6.875% interest, due November 2014...........cccovuenee. 225,000 225,000
Senior Notes, 8.5% interest, net of original issue discount of

$2,805 and $3,135, respectively, due July 2016......ccccovvvviiurnnnns 272,195 271,865

Total long-term debt......c.ooovrvninioeriirrrre s $552,695 $526,865

Partnership Credit Facility

On December 29, 2005, the Operating Company, a wholly owned subsidiary of MarkWest Energy Partners L.P.,
entered into the fifth amended and restated credit agreement (“Partnership Credit Facility™), which provides for a maximum
lending limit of $615.0 million for a five-year term. The credit facility includes a revolving facility of $250.0 million and a
$365.0 million term loan. In July 2006, using proceeds from debt and equity offerings, the Partnership permanently reduced
the borrowing capacity of the term loan to $45.9 million. In October 2006 the Partnership retired the remaining $45.9 million
outstanding on the term loan using a portion of the proceeds from the 2016 senior notes (see Note 16). The credit facility is
guaranteed by the Partnership and all of the Partnership’s subsidiaries and is collateralized by substantially all of the
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Partnership’s assets and those of its subsidiaries. The borrowings under the credit facility bear interest at a variable interest
rate, plus basis points. The basis points vary based on the ratio of the Partnership’s Consolidated Debt (as defined in the
Partnership Credit Facility) to Consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the Partnership Credit Facility), ranging from 0.50% to
1.50% for Base Rate loans, and 1.50% to 2.50% for Eurodollar Rate loans. The basis points will increase by 0.50% during
any period (not to exceed 270 days) where the Partnership makes an acquisition for a purchase price in excess of

$50.0 million (“Acquisition Adjustment Period™). For the year ended December 31, 2007, the weighted average interest rate
on the outstanding borrowing under the Partnership Credit Facility was 7.09% and had no unused letters of credit.

Under the provisions of the Partnership Credit Facility, the Partnership is subject to a number of restrictions on its
business, including restrictions on its ability to grant liens on assets; make or own certain investments; enter into any swap
contracts other than in the ordinary course of business; merge, consolidate or sell assets; incur indebtedness (other than
subordinated indebtedness); make distributions on equity investments; and declare or make, directly or indirectly, any
restricted payments.

The Partnership Credit Facility also contains covenants requiring the Partniership to maintain:

e  aratio of not less than 3.00 to 1.00 of Consolidated EBITDA to consolidated interest expense for any fiscal
quarter-end;

s aratio of not more than 5.25 to 1.00 of total consolidated debt to Consolidated EBITDA for any fiscal quarter-
end; and

s aratio of not more than 3.75 to 1.00 of consolidated senior debt to Consolidated EBITDA for any fiscal quarter-
end.

Both the total debt and senior debt ratios contain adjustment clauses providing for greater flexibility during any
Acquisition Adjustment Period.

These covenants are used to calculate the available borrowing capacity on a quarterly basis. The Partnership incurs a
commitment fee on the unused portion of the credit facility at a rate between 30.0 and 50.0 basis points based upon the ratio
of Consolidated Senior Debt (as defined in the Partnership Credit Facility) to Consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the
Partnership Credit Facility). The revolver portion of the facility matures on December 29, 2010. The Partnership’s Credit
Facility also contains provisions requiring prepayments from certain Net Cash Proceeds (as defined in the Partnership Credit
Facility) received from certain triggering sales that have not been reinvested within one hundred eighty days. The Javelina
Acquisition (see Note 3) was funded through the fourth amended and restated credit agreement, which provided for a
maximum lending limit of $500.0 million for a term of one year and was comprised of a revolving facility of $100.0 million
and a $400.0 million term loan. The fourth amended and restated credit agreement had terms similar to the new credit facility.
In the fourth quarter of 2005 the Partnership completed two private placement offerings to repay a portion of the borrowed
funds. The Partnership was in compliance with all covenants as of December 31, 2007,

In October 2004 the Operating Company, coincident with the issuance of the 2014 Senior Notes discussed below,
entered into the third amended and restated credit agreement (“Old Credit Facility”), which provided for a maximum lending
limit of $200.0 million for a term of five years. The Old Credit Facility included a revolving facility of $200.0 million. The
borrowings under the Old Credit Facility carried interest at a variable rate based on one of two indices that included either
(i) LIBOR plus an applicable margin, which was fixed at a rate of 2.75% for the first two quarters following the closing of
the credit facility, or (ii) Base Rate (as defined for any day, a fluctuating rate per annum equal to the higher of (a} the Federal
Funds Rate plus '/, of 1% or (b) the rate of interest in effect for such day as publicly announced from time to time by the
administrative agent of the debt as its “prime rate”) plus an applicable margin, which margin is fixed at a rate of 2.00% for
the first two quarters following the closing of the credit facility. After that period the applicable margin adjusted quarterly
based on the ratio of funded debt to EBITDA (as defined in the credit agreement).

Subsequent to year end, the Partnership Credit Facility was replaced with a new debt agreement as further discussed
in Note 22.
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2014 Senior Notes

In October 2004 MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. and its wholly owned subsidiary, MarkWest Energy Finance
Corporation (the “Issuers”), co-issued $225.0 million in senior notes at a fixed rate of 6.875%, payable semi-annually in
arrears o1 May 1 and November |, and commencing on May 1, 2005 (the “2014 Senior Notes™). The 2014 Senior Notes
mature on November 1, 2014. The Partnership may redeem some or all of the notes at any time on or after November 1,
2009, at vertain redemption prices together with accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption. The Partnership may
redeem all of the notes at any time prior to November I, 2009, at a make-whole redemption price. In addition, prior to
November 1, 2007, the Partnership may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the notes with the proceeds
of certain equity offerings at a stated redemption price. The Partnership must offer to repurchase the notes at a specified price
if it a) sells certain assets and does not reinvest the proceeds or repay senior indebtedness, or b) experiences specific kinds of
changes in control. The notes are senior unsecured obligations equal in right of payment with ail of the Partnership’s existing
and future senior debt. The senior notes are senior in right of payment to all of the Partnership’s future subordinated debt but
effectively junior in right of payment to its secured debt to the extent of the assets securing the debt, including the
Partnership’s obligations in respect of its Partnership Credit Facility. The proceeds from these notes were used to pay down
the Partnership’s outstanding debt under its credit facility. The Issuers have no assets or operations independent of this debt
and their investments in guarantor subsidiaries. Each of the Partnership’s existing subsidiaries, other than MarkWest Energy
Finance Corporation, has guaranteed the notes jointly and severally and fully and unconditienally. The 2014 Senior Notes are
senior unsecured obligations equal in right of payment with all of the Partnership’s existing and future senior debt. These
notes are senior in right of payment to all of the Partnership’s future subordinated debt but effectively junior in right of
payment {2 its secured debt to the extent of the assets securing the debt, including the Partnership’s obligations in respect of
its Partnership Credit Facility.

The indenture governing the Partnership’s 2014 Senior Notes limits the activity of the Partnership and its restricted
subsidiarics. Limitations include the ability of the Partnership and its restricted subsidiaries to incur additional indebtedness;
declare or pay dividends or distributions, or redeem, repurchase or retire equity interests or subordinated indebtedness; make
investments; incur liens; create any consensual limitation on the ability of the Partnership’s restricted subsidiaries to pay
dividends, make loans or transfer property to the Partnership; engage in transactions with the Partnership’s affiliates; sell
assets, including equity interests of the Partnership’s subsidiaries; make any payment on or with respect to, or purchase,
redeem, defease or otherwise acquire or retire for value any subordinated obligation or guarantor subordination obligation
(except principal and interest at maturity); and consolidate, merge or transfer assets. Subject to compliance with certain
covenants, the Partnership may issue additional notes from time to time under the indenture pursuant to Rule 144A and
Regulation S under the Securities Act of 1933,

The Partnership agreed to file an exchange offer registration statement or, under certain circumstances, a shelf
registration statement, pursuant to a registration rights agreement refating to the 2014 Senior Notes. The Partnership failed to
complete the exchange offer in the time provided for in the subscription agreements (April 26, 2005) and, as a consequence,
was incurring an interest rate penalty of 0.5% annually, increasing 0.25% every 90 days thereafter up to 1%, until such time
as the exchange offer was completed. The registration statement was filed on January 17, 2006, the exchange offer was
completed on March 7, 2006, and the interest penalty ceased.

2016 Senior Notes

In July 2006 MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. and its wholly owned subsidiary, MarkWest Energy Finance
Corporation (the “Issuers™), co-issued $200 million in aggregate principal amount of 8 /2% senior notes due 2016 (the “2016
Senior Notes™) to qualified institutional buyers, The 2016 Senior Notes will mature on July 15, 2016, and interest is payable
on each July 15 and January 15, commencing January 15, 2007, In October 2006 the Partnership offered $75.0 million in
additional dizbt securities under this same indenture. The net proceeds from the private placements were approximately
$191.2 million and $74.5 million, respectively, after deducting the initial purchasers’ discounts and legal, accounting and
other transaction expenses. The Issuers used a portion of the net proceeds from the offerings to repay the term debt under the
Partnership Credit Facility. Affiliates of several of the initial purchasers, including RBC Capital Markets Corporation,

J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., and Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC, are lenders under the Partnership Credit Facility. The
Issuers have no assets or operations independent of this debt and their investments in guarantor subsidiaries. Each of the
Partnership’s existing subsidiaries, other than MarkWest Energy Finance Corporation, has guaranteed the notes jointly and
severally and fully and unconditionally. The 2016 Senior Notes are senior unsecured obligations equal in right of payment
with all of the Partnership’s existing and future senior debt. These notes are senior in right of payment to all of the
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Partnership’s future subordinated debt but effectively junior in right of payment to its secured debt to the extent of the assets
securing the debt, including the Partnership’s obligations in respect of its Partnership Credit Facility.

The indenture governing the Partnership’s 2016 Senior Notes limits the activity of the Partnership and its restricted
subsidiaries. Limitations under the indenture include the ability of the Partnership and its restricted subsidiaries to incur
additional indebtedness; declare or pay dividends or distributions, or redeem, repurchase or retire equity interests or
subordinated indebtedness; make investments; incur liens; create any consensual limitation on the ability of the Partnership’s
restricted subsidiaries to pay dividends, make loans or transfer property to the Partrership; engage in transactions with the
Partnership’s affiliates; sell assets, including equity interests of the Partnership’s subsidiaries; make any payment on or with
respect to, or purchase, redeem, defease or otherwise acquire or retire for value any subordinated obligation or guarantor
subordination obligation (except principal and interest at maturity); and consolidate, merge or transfer assets. Subject to
compliance with certain covenants, the Partnership may issue additional notes from time to time under the indenture pursuant
to Rule 144A and Regulation S under the Securities Act of 1933.

The aggregate minimum principal payments on long-term debt are as follows, as of December 31, 2007, exclusive
of any prepayments related to Excess Cash Flow (in thousands):

Year ending
December 31:

55,56(;
500,0&
$555,500
12. Derivative Financial Instruments
Commuodity Instruments

The Partnership’s primary risk management objective is to reduce downside volatility in its cash flows arising from
changes in commodity prices related to future sales of natural gas, NGLs and crude oil. Swaps and futures contracts may
allow the Partnership to reduce downside volatility in its realized margins as realized losses or gains on the derivative
instruments generally are offset by corresponding gains or losses in the Partnership’s sales of physical product. While
management largely expects realized derivative gains and losses to be offset by increases or decreases in the value of physical
sales, the Partnership will experience volatility in reported eamnings due to the recording of unrealized gains and losses on
derivative positions that will have no offset. The Partnership’s non-trading commodity derivative instruments are recorded at
fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and Statements of Operations. Accordingly, the volatility in any given period
related to unrealized gains or losses can be significant to the overall financial results of the Partnership; however,
management ultimately expects those gains and losses to be offset when they become realized. The Partnership does not have
any trading derivative financial instruments.

Because of the strong correlation between NGL prices and crude oil prices and limited liquidity in the NGL
financial market, the Partnership uses crude oil derivative instruments to manage NGL price risk. As a result of these
transactions, the Partnership has mitigated a significant portion of its expected commodity price risk with agreements
expiring at various times through the fourth quarter of 2010. The margins earned from condensate sales are directly correlated
with crude oil prices. The Partnership has a committee comprised of the senior management team that oversees all of the risk
management activity and continually monitors the risk management program and expects to continue to adjust its financial
positions as conditions warrant.

The Partnership utilizes a combination of fixed-price forward contracts, fixed-for-floating price swaps and options
available in the over-the-counter (“OTC") market, and futures contracts traded on the New York Mercantile Exchange. The
Partnership enters into OTC swaps with financial institutions and other energy company counterparties. Management
conducts a standard credit review on counterparties and has agreements containing collateral requirements where deemed
necessary. The Partnership uses standardized agreements that allow for offset of positive and negative exposures. Some of
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the agreemrents may require a margin deposit. The margin deposits have been recorded as “Other current assets” in the
accompanving Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets (see Note 5).

The use of derivative instruments may create exposure to the risk of financial loss in certain circumstances,
including instances when (i) NGLs do not trade at historical levels relative to crude oil, (1i) sales volumes are less than
expected, requiring market purchases to meet commitments, or (iii) OTC counterparties fail to purchase or deliver the
contracted quantities of natural gas, NGLs or crude oil or otherwise fail to perform. To the extent that the Partnership engages
in derivative activities, it may be prevented from realizing the benefits of favorable price changes in the physical market;
however, it may be similarly insulated against unfavorable changes in such prices.

Fair value is based on available market information for the particular derivative instrument, and incorporates the
commodity, period, volume and pricing. Where published market values are not readily available, the Partnership uses a
third-party service. The Partnership periodically compares the third party pricing to available broker quotes. The options are
recorded at fair value on the balance sheet. The impact of the Partnership’s commodity derivative instruments on financial
position are summarized below (in thousands):

December 31,

2007 2006

Fair value of derivative instruments:

Current asset........ $99 $4.211

Noncurrent asset .. 82 2,759

Current liability .....cooovvinivniene (21,658) 91)

Noncurrent Hability ......co.eeovereeinseeermscnc v sieens (35,381) (1,362)
Risk management premiums:

CCUITEIIE ASSEE oot eeeeeeee e etk eat et eae et s s aseabssabssabeshansaeeaessseranres $— $1,009

NOTCUITEINE ASSEL ..o eib et rr e s rra s e saraenses 717 717

The Partnership has recorded premium payments relating to certain derivative option contracts. The premiums
allowed the Partnership to secure specific pricing on those contracts. The payment is recorded as an asset and is amortized
through revenue as the puts expire or are exercised. The current and noncurrent risk management premiums have been
recorded as “Other assets” and “Other long-term assets,” respectively, in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The Partnership generally accounts for the impact of its commodity derivative instruments as a component of
revenue. The Partnership also has a contract allowing it to fix a component of the price of electricity at one of its plant
locations. Unrealized gains (losses) from the contract are recognized as a component of facility expenses. The impact of the
Partnership’s commodity derivative instruments included in “Revenue” and “Facility expenses” in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Operations are summarized below (in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Revenue:
Realized 1088 ...uiveureeeierererere e $(4,155y  $(613)  $(1,194)
Unrealized (loss) gain (62,388) 6,245 (657)
Derivative (1088 SaIN .....ovoiiviiiieirceeceeeeee e $(66,543) $5,632  $(1,851)

Year ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Facility expenses:
UNTEAlZEA ZAIN..ervvrvuerserereeasierces et es et $12 $—  $—
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13. Incentive Compensation Plans

Total compensation expense for share-based pay arrangements was as follows (in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
MarkWest Energy Partners
ReStricted UNILS .....cvicvvieiieiiiiiicici sttt $2,080 3$1,686 $1,076
Distribution equivalent rights.........ccccooeeeieiicieeeeee 235 198 120
MarkWest Hydrocarbon
General partner interests under Participation Plan ........... 10,880 13,463 2,038
Subordinated units under Participation Plan .................... — 22 17
Total compensation EXPense.......c.ovvuvevvvirerecarasreeninnns $13,195 $15,369 $3,251

Of the total compensation expense recognized for restricted units, $0.1 million, and $0.4 million related to the
accelerated vesting of restricted units for the years ended December 31, 2006, and 2005, respectively. The accelerated vesting
of restricted units occurs when specific distribution targets are achieved, as set forth in the individual grant agreements.

A Distribution Equivalent Right is a right, granted in tandem with a specific restricted unit, to receive an amount in
cash equal to, and at the same time as, the cash distributions made by the Partnership with respect to a unit during the period
such restricted unit is outstanding. Cash compensation expense has been recorded as either “Selling, general and
administrative expenses” or “Facility expenses” in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Compensation expense has been recorded as “Selling, general and administrative expenses” in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Operations. The expense not yet recognized as of December 31, 2007, related to unvested
restricted units was $1.6 million, with a weighted average remaining vesting period of 1.5 years. The actual compensation
expense recognized might difter for the restricted units, as they qualify as liability awards, which are affected by changes in
fair value.

MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. Long-Term Incentive Plan

The General Partner has adopted the Long Term Incentive Plan {the “LTIP”) for employees and directors of the
General Partner, as well as employees of its affiliates who perform services for the Partnership. The LTIP currently permits
the grant of awards covering an aggregate of 1.0 million common units, comprised of 0.4 million restricted units and
0.6 million unit options. The LTIP is administered by the compensation committee of the General Partner’s Board of
Directors.

Restricted Units. A restricted unit is a “phantom” unit that entitles the grantee 10 receive a common unit upon the
vesting of the phantom unit or, at the discretion of the Compensation Committee, cash equivalent to the value of a common
unit. The restricted units vest over a service period of three years, although vesting for certain awards accelerates if specific
annualized distribution goals are met.

Unit Options. The Compensation Committee has the authority to make grants of unit options under the LTIP to

employees and directors containing such terms as determined by the committee. As of December 31, 2007, the Partnership
had not issued any unit options.
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The following is a summary of restricled units granted under the LTIP:

Number of Weighted-average

units grant-date fair value
Unvested at January 1, 2005.........cooioiiis 59,000 £20.65
Granted........oveeovvevin e e 40,278 24.74
VEStEU. ..o (18,200) 18.95
FOrfeited ..o (3,350 21.25
Unvested at December 31, 2005.........ccccoecienecnennnn, 77,728 23.14
Granted....oouveivereeceeeeee et e et e 81,886 24.35
VESTEd ..o rees e e tere e eer e e (26,986) 22.25
Forfeited. ..o e ressre e (7,428) 22,75
Unvested at December 31, 2006.......cccocviiniiivrrnivrienns 125,200 24.14
Granted........covverveiersrnrersrrreeseeemeerneeee e eneeeeeeasesas 54,716 31.62
VESTE..cceiciiirc e e sene e cnereeassses e sese e oo sernene (40,912) 23.50
Forfeited .......cooovieevrircrrrc e veeceesneseessarmns e sernes (13,754) 2593
Unvested at December 31, 2007 ..o, 125,250 27.42

Year ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Weighted-average grant-date fair value of

restricted units granted for the year.................. $1,730,054 31,993,658 $996,423
Total fair value of restricted units vested / total

intrinsic value of restricted units settled for the

L S TP 1,281,046 636,713 444,550

Dwuring the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2003, the Partnership received no proceeds (other than the
contributiens by the General Partner to maintain its 2% ownership interest) for issuing restricted units. None of the restricted
units that vested in 2007, 2006, and 2005 were redeemed by the Partnership for cash. For the years ended December 31,
2007, 2005, and 2005, the Partnership issued 40,912, 26,986, and 17,000 commeon units, respectively, and an additional 500
units were acquired in the open market in 2005,

As of the Merger, the Partnership assumed the MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (“2006
Plan™) which converted the outstanding shares of restricted stock granted under the 2006 Ptan to restricted units. The
converted restricted units will remain outstanding under the term of the 2006 Plan until their respective settlement dates. The
2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan (“2008 LTIP”) was approved by the unitholders on February 21, 2008, which makes
available 2.5 million Partnership common units for issuance in the future. Refer to Note 22 for discussions of grants made
under the 2008 LTIP.

MarkWest Hydrocarbon Participation Plan

MarkWest Hydrocarbon has also entered into arrangements with certain directors and employees of the Company
referred to as the Participation Plan. Under it, the Company sells interests in the General Partner under a purchase and sale
agreement. There is no vesting period or maximum contractual term under the Participation Plan.

The interests in the General Partner are sold with certain put-and-call provisions. These require MarkWest
Hydrocarbon to buy back, or require the individuals to sell back their interest in the general partner to MarkWest
Hydrocarbon. Specifically, the employees and directors can exercise their put if (1} MarkWest Hydrocarbon or the
Partnersh:.p’s general partner undergoes a change of control; (2) additional membership interests are issued that, on a pro
forma basis, decrease the distributions to all the then-existing members; (3) any amendment, alteration or repeal of the
provisions of the general parner agreement materially and adversely affects the then-existing rights, duties, obligations or
restrictions of the employees and directors; or (4) the employee or director (i) becomes totally disabled while a director,
officer or employee of the general partner of MarkWest Hydrocarbon or of any of their affiliates, or (ii) dies, or (iii) retires as
a director, officer or employee of the general partner of MarkWest Hydrocarbon or of any of their affiliates after reaching the
age of 60 years. The employee or his estate has 120 days after the put event to exercise the put under (4) and 30 days after
notice to 2xercise under (1) through (3). MarkWest Hydrocarbon can exercise its call option if (i) the employee or director
ceases to be a director or employee of MarkWest Hydrocarbon or any of its affiliates, or (ii) if there is a change of control of
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MarkWest or of the Partnership’s general partner. For the call option based upon a termination of employment or
directorship, MarkWest Hydrocarbon has 12 months following the termination date to exercise its call option. MarkWest
Hydrocarbon has agreed to exempt the general partner interests of three present or former directors from the call option based
upon a termination of employment or directorship. Additionally, pursuant to the terms of Mr. Semple’s employment
agreement with MarkWest Hydrocarbon, all of his general partner interest has become exempt from the call option based
upon a termination of employment or directorship for reasons other than cause. For the call option based upon a change of
control of MarkWest or of the Partnership’s general partner, MarkWest Hydrocarbon has 30 days following the change of
control to exercise its call option.

As the formula used to determine the sale and buy-back price is not based on an independent third-party valuation,
coupled with the attributes of the put-and-call provisions, these transactions are considered compensatory arrangements,
similar to a stock appreciation right. Compensation expense related to general partner interests is calculated as the difference
in the formula value and the amount paid by those individuals. The formula value is the amount MarkWest Hydrocarbon
would have to pay the employees and directors to repurchase the general partner interests, and is based on the current market
value of the Partnership’s common units and the current quarterly distributions paid. On October 13, 2006, the Company
completed the repurchase of a 0.5% interest in the general partner.

Pursuant to the terms of the amended and restated Class B Membership Interest Contribution Agreement dated
October 26, 2007, all outstanding interests in the General Partner will be exchanged for a combination of common units and
cash on the date of the merger as described in Note 22. The exchange will be accounted for as a settlement of a share based
payment liability under SFAS 123R and any difference between the carrying value of the Company’s liability and the
payment will be recorded as additional compensation expense at the time of the merger.

14. Income Tax

On July 12, 2007, the State of Michigan enacted changes in its taxation scheme. As a result, the Partnership has
made the necessary adjustments to its deferred tax assets (and liabilities) in the form of a charge (or benefit) to income, as
part of its income tax provisions in the third quarter of 2007. Michigan’s new tax law replaces the single business tax with a
two-prong tax. The two prongs comprise a tax at the rate of 0.8% of a taxpayer’s modified gross receipts and a tax at the rate
0f 4.95% of the taxpayer’s business income. Each of the above mentioned rates also includes a surcharge of 21.99% resulting
in overall rates of 0.97% and 6.03%. The new law took effect on January 1, 2008 and applies to all business activity
occurring after December 31, 2007. The current single business tax will remain in effect through December 31, 2007.
Adopted on September 30, 2007, and effective January 1, 2008, Michigan House Bill 5104 creates a deduction from a
taxpayer’s pre-apportioned business income tax base equal to the total book-tax difference triggered by the enactment of the
Michigan business tax that results in a net deferred tax liability. The net impact of this change was a $0.2 million charge to
income in 2007,

The Texas margin tax law that was signed into law on May 18, 2006, causes the Partnership to be subject to an
entity-level 1ax on the portion of its income that is generated in Texas beginning with the tax year ending in 2007, The Texas
margin tax is imposed at a maximum effective rate of 1.0%. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Partnership has recorded
a deferred tax liability related to the Texas margin tax of $1.0 million and $0.8 million, respectively.

The components of the provision for income tax from continuing operations are as follows (in thousands):

Year ended

December 31,
2007 2006

Current income fax eXpense—=Stale ..........ocovvvrveerrninrmrmreesesess s, £793 §—
Deferred income tax eXpense—=State ......ovuvverveeeveerereresreienranionmnnenrereeseens 451 769
Provision fOr iMCOME TAX -.....oooooeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e reeeaeeeeeene. 51,244 8769

15. Employee Benefit Plan
All employees dedicated to, or otherwise principally supporting the Partnership are employees of MarkWest

Hydrocarbon, and substantially all of these employees are participants in MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s defined contribution
benefit plan. The employer matching contribution expense related to this plan allocated to the Partnership was $0.9 million,
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for each of the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 20035, respectively. The plan is discretionary, with annual
contributions determined by MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s Board of Directors.

16. Partners’ Capital

As of December 31, 2007, partners’ capital consists of 39,357,592 common limited partner units, representing a
98% partr.ership interest and a 2% general partner interest. MarkWest Hydrocarbon and its subsidiaries, in the aggregate,
own 2 14% interest in the Partnership consisting of 4,938,992 common limited partner units and a 2% general partner
interest. Cn August 15, 2007, the Partnership converted its remaining 1.2 million subordinated units to common units. The
conversion was made due to the achievement of specified financial tests defined in the amended and restated partnership
agreement. At December 31, 2007, there were no subordinated units outstanding.

The Partnership Agreement defines the Partnership’s ability to issue new capital, maintain capital accounts, and
distribute cash, as discussed, below.

The Partnership has the ability to issue an unlimited number of units to fund immediately accretive acquisitions. An
immediately accretive acquisition is one that, in the general partner’s good faith determination, would have resulted in an
increase to the amount of operating surplus generated by the Partnership on a per-unit basis with respect to each of the four
most recently completed quarters on & pro forma basis. During 2006 and 2005, the Partnership consummated a total of three
acquisitions, aggregating approximately $455.5 million, exclusive of working capital adjustments, certain of which were
subsequently funded partially by equity offerings.

The Partnership Agreement contains specific provisions for the allocation of net income and losses to each of the
partners for purposes of maintaining their respective partner capital accounts. Per the Partnership Agreement, compensation
expense under the Participation Plan allocated to the Partnership by MarkWest Hydrocarbon is allocated entirely to the
general partner (see Note 2).

Listributions of Available Cash

The Partnership distributed all of its Available Cash (as defined) to unitholders of record and the general partner
within 45 days after the end of each quarter. Available Cash is generally defined as all cash and cash equivalents of the
Partnership on hand at the end of each quarter, less reserves established by the general pariner for future requirements, plus
all cash fo: the quarter from working capital borrowings made after the end of the quarter. The general partner had the
discretion to establish cash reserves that are necessary or appropriate to (i) provide for the proper conduct of the Partnership’s
business; (ii) comply with applicable law, any debt instruments or other agreements; or (iii) provide funds for distributions to
unitholder; and the general partner for any one or more of the next four quarters.

Subordination Period

During the subordination period {as defined), before any distributions of available cash from operating surplus was
made on the subordinated units, the common unitholders had the right to receive distributions of available cash in an amount
equal to thz minimum quarterly distribution of $0.50 per quarter per common unit, plus any arrearages in the payment of the
minimum cuarterly distribution on the common units from prior quarters.

The subordination period ends on the first day of any quarter beginning after June 30, 2009, when certain financial
tests are mat. Additionally, a portion of the subordinated units may convert earlier inte common units on a one-for-one basis
if additional financial tests or financial goals are met. The earliest possible date by which some of the subordinated units
could be converted into common units was June 30, 2005, As a result of achieving those goals all subordinated units had
been converted to common units as of August 15, 2007. '

Distributions of Available Cash During the Subordination Period

During the subordination period, the quarterly distributions of available cash were made in the following manner:

o First, 98% to the common unitholders and 2% to the general partner, until each common unitholder has
received a minimum quarterly distribution of $0.25 plus any arrearages from prior quarters.
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e Second, 98% to the subordinated unitholders and 2% to the general partner, until each subordinated unitholder
has received a minimum quarterly distribution of $0.25 plus any arrearages from prior quarters.

o  Third, 98% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 2% to the general partner, until each unitholder has received a
distribution of $0.275 per quarter.

s Thereafter, in the manner described in “Incentive Distribution Rights” below.
Distributions of Available Cash After the Subordination Period

The Partnership will make distributions of available cash for any quarter afier the subordination period in the
following manner:

e First, 98% to all unitholders, pro rata, and 2% to the general partner until the Partnership distributes for each
outstanding unit an amount equal to the minimum quarterly distribution.

s Thereqfier, in the manner described in “Incentive Distribution Rights™ below.

Incentive Distribution Rights

Incentive distribution rights represent the right to receive an increasing percentage of quarterly distributions of
available cash after the minimum quarterly distribution and the target distribution levels, as described below, have been
achieved. The general partner currently holds the incentive distribution rights, but may transfer these rights separately from
its general partner interest, subject to restrictions in the Partnership Agreement. As discussed in Note 22, the incentive

distributions rights were exchanged for Partnership Class A Units on February 21, 2008.

If, for any quarter:

s The Partnership has distributed available cash to the common and subordinated unitholders in an amount equal
to the minimum quarterly distribution; and

¢  The Partnership has distributed available cash on outstanding commeon units in an amount necessary to
eliminate any cumulative arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution;

then, the Partnership will distribute any additional available cash for that quarter among the unithoiders and the general
partner in the manner described in the following paragraph.

The general partner is entitled to incentive distributions if the quarterly distribution amount exceeds the target levels
specified below:

Marginal Percentage

Interest in
Distributions

Total Quarterly Distribution General

Target Amount Unitholders  Partner

Minimum Quarterly Distribution .. $0.25 98% 2%
First Target Distribution................ up to $0.275 98% 2%
Second Target Distribution ........... above $0.275 up to $0.3125 85% 15%
Third Target Distribution .............. above $0.3125 up to $0.375 5% 25%
Thereafter.........c.coveeevieeiicne above $0.375 50% 50%

In each case, the amount of the target distribution set forth above is exclusive of any distributions to common
unitholders to eliminate payment of any cumulative minimum quarterly distribution. The Partnership is currently distributing
at a rate in excess of $0.375 per unit.

The quarterly cash distributions applicable to 2007, 2006 and 2005, were as follows:
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Quarter Ended Record Date Payment Date Amount Per Unit

December 31, 2007 ........ February 7, 2008 February 14, 2008 $0.570
September 30, 2007......., November 8, 2007 November 14, 2007 $0.550
June 30, 2007.................. August 8, 2007 August 14, 2007 $0.530
March 31, 2007 .............. May 9, 2007 May 15, 2007 $0.510
December 31, 2006 ........ February 8, 2007 February 14, 2007 $0.500
September 30, 2006........ November 3, 2006 November 14, 2006 $0.485
June 30, 2006.................. August 7, 2006 August 14, 2006 $0.460
March 31, 2006 .............. May 3, 2006 May 15, 2006 $0.435
December 31, 2005 ......., February 8, 2006 February 14, 2006 $0.410
September 30, 2005........ November 8, 2005 November 14, 2005 $0.410
June 30, 2005.......cce..ns August 9, 2005 August 15, 2005 $0.400
March 31, 2005 .............. May 10, 2005 May 16, 2005 $0.400

Private Placement—December 18, 2007

The Partnership completed a private placement of 2.9 million unregistered common units. The units were issued at a
purchase price of $31.50 per unit. The sale of units raised net proceeds of approximately $91.8 million, including the general
partner’s contribution of $1.8 million to maintain its 2% general partner interest and after legal, accounting and other
transaction expenses. The proceeds of this private placement were used primarily to fund capital expenditure requirements.

Private Placement—April 9, 2007

The Partnership completed a private placement of approximately 4.1 million unregistered common units. The units
were issuedl at a sales price of $32.98 per unit. The registration statement for these common units was declared effective on
July 11, 2007. The sale of units resulted in net proceeds of approximately $137.7 million, including the General Partner’s
contribution of $2.8 million to maintain its 2% interest and after legal, accounting and other transaction expenses. The net
proceeds from the offering were used to fund capital expenditure requirements.

Unit Split—February 28, 2007

On February 28, 2007 the Partnership completed a two-for-one split of the Partnership’s common units, whereby
holders of 1ecord at the close of business on February 22, 2007 received one additional common unit for each common unit
owned on that date. The unit split resulted in the issuance of 15,603,257 common units and 600,000 Subordinated units
Partnership units. For all periods presented, all references to the number of units and per unit net income and distribution
amounts included in this report have been adjusted to give the effect for the unit split.

Public Offering—July 6, 2006

The Partnership priced its offering of 6,000,000 common units at $19.875 per unit. In addition, on July 12, 2006, the
Partnership completed the sale of an additional 600,000 common units to cover over-allotments in connection with the
Common Unit Offering. The sale of units resulted in total gross proceeds of $131.2 million, and net proceeds of
approximately $125.9 million, after the underwriters® commission and legal, accounting and other transaction expenses. The
Partnership used the net proceeds from the offering, which includes a capital contribution from its general partner to maintain
its 2% general parther interest in the Partnership, to repay a portion of the outstanding indebtedness under term debt on the
Partnership Credit Facility.

Private Placement—December 28, 2005

The Partnership sold 1,149,428 common units to certain accredited investors at $21.75 per common unit, for gross
jproceeds of $25.0 million. $20 million of the proceeds were received in December 2005. The remaining $5 million was
accrued at December 31, 2005, and received in January 2006. Offering costs of $0.1 million reduced the aggregate gross
proceeds of $25.0 million to $24.9 million of net proceeds. The net proceeds of $24.9 million, and the $0.5 million
contributed by the general partner to maintain its 2% interest, resulted in total net proceeds associated with the private
placement of $25.4 million.
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Private Placement—November 11, 2005

The Partnership sold 3,288,130 common units to certain accredited investors at $22.105 per common unit, for gross
proceeds of $72.7 million, Offering costs of $0.1 million reduced the aggregate gross proceeds of $72.7 million to
$72.6 million of net proceeds. The net proceeds of $72.6 million, and the $1.5 million contributed by the general partner to
maintain its 2% interest, resulted in total net proceeds associated with the private placement of $74.1 million.

17. Commitments and Contingencies
Legal

The Partnership is subject to a variety of risks and disputes, and is a party to various legal proceedings in the normal
course of jts business. The Partnership maintains insurance policies in amounts and with coverage and deductibles as it
believes is reasonable and prudent. However, the Partnership cannot assure either that the insurance companies will promptly
honor their policy obligations or that the coverage or levels of insurance will be adequate to protect the Partnership from all
material expenses related to future claims for property loss or business interruption to the Partnership and the Company; or
for third-party claims of personal and property damage; or that the coverages or levels of insurance it currently has will be
available in the future at economical prices. While it is not possible to predict the outcome of the legal actions with certainty,
Management is of the opinion that appropriate provision and accruals for potential losses associated with all legal actions
have been made in the financial statements.

In June 2006, the Office of Pipeline Safety (“OPS”) issued a Notice of Probable Violation and Proposed Civil
Penalty (“NOPV™") {(CPF No. 2-2006-5001) to both MarkWest Hydrocarbon and Equitable Production Company. The NOPY
is associated with the pipeline leak and an ensuing explosion and fire that occurred on Novernber 8, 2004 in Ivel, Kentucky
on an NGL pipeline owned by Equitable Production Company and leased and operated by a subsidiary, MarkWest Energy
Appalachia, LLC. The NOPV sets forth six counts of violations of applicable regulations, and a proposed civil penalty in the
aggregate amount of $1,070,000. An administrative hearing on the matter, previously set for the last week of March, 2007,
was postponed to allow the administrative record to be produced and to allow OPS an opportunity to respond to a motion to
dismiss one of the counts of violations, which involves $825,000 of the $1,070,000 proposed penalty. This count arises out of
alleged activity in 1982 and 1987, which predates MarkWest’s leasing and operation of the pipeline. MarkWest believes it
has viable defenses to the remaining counts and will vigorously defend all applicable assertions of violations at the hearing.

Related to the above referenced 2004 pipeline explosion and fire incident, MarkWest Hydrocarbon and the
Partnership have filed an action captioned MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc., et al. v. Liberty Mutual Ins. Co., et al. (District
Court, Arapahoe County, Colorado, Case No. 05CV3953 filed August 12, 2005), as removed to the U.S. District Court for
the District of Colorado, (Civil Action No. 1:05-CV-1948, on October 7, 2005) against their All-Risks Property and Business
Interruption insurance carriers as a result of the insurance companies’ refusal to honor their insurance coverage obligation to
pay the Partnership for certain costs related to the pipeline incident. The costs include internal costs incurred for damage to,
and loss of use of the pipeline, equipment and products; extra transportation costs incurred for transporting the liquids while
the pipeline was out of service; reduced volumes of liquids that could be processed; and the costs of complying with the OPS
Corrective Action Order (hydrostatic testing, repair/replacement and other pipeline integrity assurance measures). Following
initial discovery, MarkWest was granted leave of the Court to amend its complaint to add a bad faith claim and a claim for
punitive damages. The Partnership has not provided for a receivable for any of the claims in this action because of the
unicertainty as to whether and how much it will ultimately recover under the policies. The costs associated with this claim
have been expensed as incurred and any potential recovery from the All-Risks Property and Business Interruption insurance
carriers will be recognized if and when it is received. The Defendant insurance companies and MarkWest have each filed
separate summary judgment motions in the action and these motions are pending with the Court.

With regard to the Partnership’s Javelina facility, MarkWest Javelina is a party with numerous other defendants to
several lawsuits brought by various plaintiffs who had residences or businesses located near the Corpus Christi industrial
area, an area which included the Javelina gas processing plant, and several petroleum, petrochemical and metal processing
and refining operations. These suits, Victor Huff v. ASARCQ Incorporated, et al. (Cause No. 98-01057-F, 214" Judicial Dist.
Ct., County of Nueces, Texas, original petition filed in March 3, 1998); Jason and Dianne Gutierrez, individually and as
representative of the estate of Sarina Galan Gutierrez (Cause No. 05-2470-A, 28" Judicial District, severed May 18, 2005,
from the Gonzales case cited above); and Esmerejilda G. Valasquez, et al. v. Occidental Chemical Corp., et al., Case No. A-
060352-C, 128™ Judicial District, Orange County, Texas, original petition filed July 10, 2006; as refiled from previously
dismissed petition captioned Jesus Villarreal v. Koch Refining Co. et al., Cause No. 05-01977-F, 214" Judicial Dist. Ct.,
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County of Nueces, Texas, originally filed April 27, 2005), set forth claims for wrongful death, personal injury or property
darnage, harm to business operations and nuisance type claims, allegedly incurred as a result of operations and emissions
from the various industrial operations in the area or from products Defendants allegedly manufactured, processed, used, or
distributec. The actions have been and are being vigorously defended and; based on initial evaluation and consultations; it
appears at this time that these actions should not have a material adverse impact on the Partnership’s financial position or
results of operations.

In the ordinary course of business, the Partnership is a party to various other legal actions. In the opinion of
Management, none of these actions, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on the
Partnershi’s financial condition, liquidity or results of operations.

Lease Obligations

The Partnership has various non-cancelable operating lease agreements expiring at various times through fiscal year
2016. Annual rent expense under these operating leases was $9.8 million, $8.0 million and $5.9 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The minimum future lease payments under these operating leases as of

December 31, 2007, are as follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 31,

2008 . et A St A st e e et e ee e teset et e et e tesesetesatsee et e e etesaetesaeereesrerene $6,251
2009 .. eae e e ettt oAt h Rt e ren e e e e e et et aeeanans 2,521
2000 iiiriiirriereerrensierereresesessaertsberaes i b er e s s b e b e s R e e b e iR e e bR s Re R RERe bR AR Re b e R Re b e R b ea b e e areberere e 2,052
20T e a4 A4 b4 4R A D e oA S A bt een e e en et e en e e e e eenenens 1,846
T OO 1,879
2013 AN theTEATIEI .. ...ttt ettt sttt et et e e e e e e e s e e eee e et e eeeeeneeseeseae eenesneanenn 6,623

$21,172

18. Helated Party Transactions

Affiliated revenues in the Consolidated Statements of Operations consist of service fees and NGL product sales,
Concurrent with the closing of the TPO, the Partnership entered into several contracts with MarkWest Hydrocarbon,
Specifically, the Partnership entered into:

s A gas-processing agreement in which MarkWest Hydrocarbon delivers to the Partnership for processing all
natural gas it receives from third-party producers. MarkWest Hydrocarbon pays the Partnership a monthly fee
based on volumes delivered.

s A transportation agreement in which MarkWest Hydrocarbon delivers most of its NGLs to the Partnership for
transportation through the pipeline to the Partnership’s Siloam fractionator. MarkWest Hydrocarbon pays the
Partnership a monthly fee based on the number of gallons delivered to the Partnership.

¢ A fractionation agreement in which MarkWest Hydrocarbon delivers all of its NGLs to the Partnership for
unloading, fractionation, loading and storage at the Partnership’s Siloam facility. MarkWest Hydrocarbon pays
the Partnership a monthiy fee based on the number of gallons delivered to us for fractionation, an annual storage
fee, and a monthly fee based on the number of gallons of NGLs unloaded.

v A natural gas liquids purchase agreement in which MarkWest Hydrocarbon receives and purchases, and the
Partnership delivers and sells, all of the NGL products the Partnership produces pursuant to the Partnership’s
gas- processing agreement with a third party. Under the terms of this agreement, MarkWest Hydrocarbon pays
the Partnership a purchase price equal to the proceeds it receives from the resale to third parties of the NGL
products. This contract also applies to any other NGL products the Partnership acquires, The Partnership retains
a percentage of the proceeds attributable to the sale of the NGL products it produces pursuant to its agreement
with a third party, and remits the balance of the proceeds to this third party.

Under the Services Agreement with MarkWest Hydrocarbon, MarkWest Hydrocarbon continues to provide
centralized corporate functions such as accounting, treasury, engineering, information technology, insurance and other
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services. The Partnership reimburses Mark West Hydrocarbon monthly for the selling, general and administrative expenses.
For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, MarkWest Hydrocarbon charged approximately $20.8 million,
$18.0 million and $10.9 million, respectively, for these expenses.

The Partnership also reimburses MarkWest Hydrocarbon for the salaries and employee benefits, such as 401(k) and
health insurance, of plant operating personnel as well as other direct operating expenses. For the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2003, these costs totaled $26.5 million, $18.1 million and $14.6 million, respectively, and are included in
facility expenses. The Parinership has no employees.

19. Segment Information

The Partnership is engaged in the gathering, processing and transmission of natural gas; the transportation,
fractionation and storage of natural gas liquids and refinery off-gas; and the gathering and transportation of crude oil. The
‘Partnership is a processor of natural gas in the northeastern and southwestern United States, processing gas from the
Appalachian Basin, one of the country’s oldest natural gas-producing regions, and from East Texas, Gulf Coast and
Michigan. The Partnership’s chief operating decision maker is the chief executive officer (“CEQ™). The CEO reviews the
Partnership’s discrete financial information on a geographic and operational basis, as the products and services are closely
related within each geographic region and business operations. Accordingly, the CEO makes operating decisions, assesses
financial performance and allocates resources on a segment basis. The Partnership’s segments are as follows:

Segment Related Legal Entity Products and services

Southwest

East Texas MarkWest Energy East Texas Gas Company, L.L.C. Gathering, processing, pipeline, fractionation
MarkWest Pipeline Company, L.L.C. and storage

Oklahoma MarkWest Western Oklahoma Gas Company, L.L.C. Gathering, processing and pipeline
MarkWest Pioneer, L.L.C.

Other MarkWest Power Tex L.L.C. Gathering and pipeline

Southwest MarkWest Pinnacle L. L.C.
MarkWest PNG Utility L. L.C.
MarkWest Texas PNG Utility L. L.C.
MarkWest Blackhawk L. L.C.
MarkWest New Mexico L. L.C.

Gulf Coast
Gulf Coast MarkWest Javelina Company, L.L.C. Gathering, processing and pipeline
MarkWest Javelina Pipeline Company, L.L.C,
MarkWest Gas Services, L.L.C.
Northeast
Appalachia MarkWest Energy Appalachia, L.L.C. Processing, pipelines, fractionation and storage
Michigan Basin Pipeline, L.L.C. Gathering, processing and crude oil
West Shore Processing Company, L.L.C. transportation
Matrex, L.L.C

MarkWest Michigan Pipeline Company, L.L.C.

The Partnership prepares business segment information in accordance with GAAP (see Note 2), except that certain
items below the “Operating Income” line are not allocated to business segments, as management does not consider them in its
evaluation of business unit performance. In addition, selling, general and administrative expenses are not allocated to
individual business segments. Management evaluates business segment performance based on operating income before
selling, general and administrative expenses. Revenues from MarkWest Hydrocarbon are reflected as revenue from Affiliates.

The table below presents information about operating income for the reported segments for the three years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands).
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Year ended December 31, 2007:

Revenue:
Unaffiliated parties.........coccvirnnne
Affiliated parties..........cccorererererncncs
Total revenue ..o eececeneee
Operating expenses:
Purchased producl COSS 1ovnaccsernas
Facility expenses ...
Depreciation .. "
Amortizat:on of lmanglble assets ......
Accretion of asset retirement
obligations .....ivniin i
IMpairmerts.......cccveerivncrcnreeeeeeeees
Operating income (loss) before
items not allocated to
SEEMICNLS ...oovorrneresrrsraeranessaneen
Capital expenditures....
Assets attributable to segmems
Investment in Starfish...
Leasehold improvements( l ) ...................
Fair value of derivative instruments.......
Total ASSets .o

(D

East Texas  Oklahoma _ Other Southwest _ Appalachia _Michigan _ Gulf Coast Total
$206,250 229,800 $67,411 $1,924 $11,942 $77,114 $594,441
— — — 74,981 — — 74,981
206,250 29,800 67411 76,905 11,942 77,114 669,422
113,693 153,241 43,954 44,718 3,114 — 358,720
16,871 20,291 6,883 14,463 6,069 10,471 75,048
9,607 11104 4,493 3410 4,668 6,619 39,901
8,269 598 — — — 7,805 16,672
52 28 21 13 — — 114
— — 356 — — — 356
$57,758 $44,538 $11,704 $14,301 $(1,909) $52,219 $178,611
$32,998  $247,430 $14,795 $2,488 $158 $14,441 $312,310
$348,670  $390,200 $33,393 $44,222 340,979 $474,008 $1,331,472
58,709
1,756
897
$1,392,834

in downtown Denver, Colorado.

Year ended December 31, 2006:

Revenue:
Unaffiliated parties.......cc.ccoccrmrvrennnes
Affiliated parties.......oooiveciiicccesrinnnes
Total REVENUE ...ccoorccirrvvrrrrirmens
Operating expenses:
Purchased product costs ...........cc..c....
Facility expenses ......... .
Depreciation ....vince s
Amortizatian of mtanglb!e assets .......
Accretion of asset retirement
obligations ... . .
Operating income (loss) before
item:i not allocated to
SERIT NS evuemereeerermererererarirns
Capital expenditures.. i
Capital expenditures not allocated to
SEEIMENTS ., ..\voevvarisemsissssseemcerrsrnsrasess

Capital expenditures........ccooceeeen.

Agssets auributable to segments ...

Investment in Starfish....vieiciccins
Fair value of derivative instruments........
Leasehold Improvements ......ceecern

Total ASSES ..o

Leasehold improvements not attributable to segments include tenant improvements for the Partnership’s office lease

East Texas  Oklahoma  Other Southwest Appalachia  Michigan  Gulf Coast Total
$174.279  §207,510 $84,595 $2,027 $13,282 $£68,950 $550,643
— — — 73,636 — — 73,636
174,279 207,510 84,595 75,663 13,282 68,950 624,279
91,637 170,168 67,349 43,648 3,435 — 376,237
15,683 7,883 5,638 13,997 5,721 11,190 60,112
7,783 3,007 4,100 3573 5,015 6,500 29978
8,244 — — — — 7,803 16,047
44 26 20 12 — — 102
$50,383 $26.426 57,488 $14,433 $(889) $43,457 $141,303
$23,508 834,114 $12,669 $2,315 $156 $2,748 $75,510
1,877
A
3331485 $12642] $72,068 $51,020 $46,383 $414,170 31,041,547
64,240
6,970
2,023
—SL114780
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Year ended December 31, 2005:

East Texas_ Oklahoma Other Southwest Appalachia Michigan Gulf Coast Total
Revenue:
Unaffiliated parties...........c...... $128,267 $214,043 $107,712 $1,686 $12,479 $13,832 $478,019
Affiliated parties...... . — — — 64,922 — — 64,922
Total Revenue .... 128,267 214,043 107,712 66,608 12,479 13,832 542,941
Operating expenses:
Purchased product costs ... 81,030 193,787 92,602 38,435 3,030 — 408,884
Fagility expenses . 10,463 4,927 4,990 19,360 6,080 2,152 47972
Depregiation ..c...c.eevveeecreisiinns 4,836 2,385 3,383 3,187 4,665 1,078 19,534
Amortization of intangible
assets.. 8,293 — 68 — — 1,295 9,656
Accretion of asset reuremem
Obligations . ......cocrvemsrreranens 33 63 22 41 — — 159
Operating income (loss) before
selling, general and
administrative eXpenses ........... 323,612 $12,881 $6,647 $5,585 $(1,296) $9,307 $56,736
Capital expenditures..........covvireeen- $46,088 $11,937 $7,765 $4,611 $251 $98 $70,750
Assets aftributable to segments ..... $324,231 $75,576 $59,178 $55,436 $50,560 $441,945 $1,006,926
Investment in Starfish.................... 19,167
Total ASSELS ..ovviniiniiivivirivirreeanes $1,046,093

The following is a reconciliation of operating income before selling, general and administrative expenses to net

income (in thousands):

TOta] SEZMBNL FEVEIUE ... ......vceerermmrmrmreacaiiissssr et ses st s s s es s b bbb s

Revenue derivative (loss) gain not allocated to segments

Total revenue..

Operating income before items not al]ocated to segments
Revenue derivative (loss) gain not allocated to segments
Facilities expense derivative gain not allocated to segments

Depreciation expense not allocated to segments... -
Selling, general and administrative expenses not allocated to segments

(Loss) gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment not allocated to

SERIMEIES L.e.eueureeteverersrsec e reeerioss e s b et e ba s s e bt s s s R s e e b O R LR R b e
INCOME frOM OPETALIONS .. ..veverereerereriirirrsirssemseeme e et et st e eb st

Earnings (losses) from unconsolidated affiliates

INterest IMCOME. ...coooiiieiiiere i ceeeaeanar e e e e e e e eeas

Interest EXPense ...oovvvveveereeiir i
Amortization of deferred financing costs

Miscellaneous (expense) iNCOME .......covrvrrmensereeermeeatissnes
Income before provision for income tax ..o
Provision fOT INCOME tAX....c.cieiieeierereesie et s st
INEE IICOMIC 11 v e vvevreeeeeeeeeeesebe st ssbaseasbas e sesssbe e s b sae s b e sr b sabeba s b e smenr e sr e nap e s emc e e bbbt e b
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Year ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
$669,422  $624,279  $542,941
(66,543) 5,632 (1,851)
$602,879  $629.911  $541,090
$178.,611  $141,803 $56,736
(66,543) 5,632 (1,851)
12 — -—
(270) (15) —
(51334) 44377y (21,597)
(7,564) 192 24
52,912 103,235 33,312
5,309 5316  (2,153)
2,887 962 367
(38,946) (40,666} (22,469)
2,717 (9,094) (6,780)
(1,002) 11,100 78
18,443 70,853 2,355
(1,244) (769) —
$17,199 $70,084 $2,355




20. Quarterly Results of Operatiens (Unaudited)
The following summarizes the Partnership’s quarterly resuits of operations (in thousands):

Three months ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2007
REVEINUE ...ttt v, $130,840 §158,558 $167,063 $146,418
Income (loss) from Operations ............ccoceverereeereccee e 11,833 16,349 33,231 (8,501)
Net income (LOSS) ..o e 4,756 8275 24,161 (19,993)
Limited partner’s share of net income (1088) .....coeevvvvvvvvveevencanan, 4,657 6,332 17,182 (23,793)
Net income: {loss) per limited partner unit:
BaSiC ettt ettt eae e erean $0.14 30.18 $0.47 $(0.64)
DIIEA ..ot $0.14 $0.17 $0.47 $(0.64)
Three months ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2006
REVENUE ..ot e e et rae e $167,766  $147,987 $176,557 $137,601
Income from Operations ..........cccvveeveeecieccrvnires e s 22,400 23,311 40,300 17,224
INEL INCOMIE vt e e bbbt 13,873 14,054 29,978 12,139
Limited partner’s share of net inCome ........oveveevievereeinecvenennnn 13,045 13,276 31,176 13,430
Net income: per limited partner unit:
BASIC 1t e e e 50.51 $0.52 $0.82 $0.41
DRIUEEd oo $0.50 $0.51 $0.82 $0.41

21 Viluation and Qualifying Accounts
Activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Balance at beginning 0f PEriod .......c.coo ittt 3118 $151 2n
Charged to COSIS ANA EXPEISES...c.oveoireeie it ettt et etrearr s e s s e ss st st esese e areeeenen 47 118 42
OHRET CHATEES( 1) oo oicceietivirer sttt e ee e s aaesr b re s s srrraesssrasansssensssssbessssresassaaesteres (5) (15D (102)
Balance at 2nd of Period ..o b 3160 3118 $151

(i) Bad debts written off (net of recoveries).
22. Subsequent Events

On January 28, 2008, MarkWest Pioneer, L.L.C., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Partnership announced that it
has submitted a pre-filing applicatton with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) to construct a new
interstate natural gas transmission pipeline. The 30-inch pipeline will be named the Arkoma Connector Pipeline (“ACP") and
will extend approximately 50 miles from an interconnect with the Partnership’s gathering system in the Woodford Shale
production area in southeastern Oklahoma to an interconnect with the Midcontinent Express Pipeline (“MEP”) in
Bennington, Oklahoma. The ACP will provide significant additional outlets for producers in the Woodford Shale as volumes
continue to rapidly increase. In addition, the Partnership executed agreements with significant Woodford producers,
including Newfield Exploration Company, to provide transportation capacity in excess of 500,000 Mcf/d on the ACP. The
Partnership plans to spend $40.0 miilion in 2008 cn developing the ACP, to be funded by operating cash flows and available
debt.

In conjunction with the transportation agreements, the Partnership and Midcontinent Express Pipeline LLC
(“MEP LL(C"} entered into an option agreement that provides the Partnership with a one-time right to acquire 10 percent of
the equity cf MEP LLC after construction is complete on the MEP and it is placed into service. MEP LLC is a 50/50 joint
venture between Kinder Morgan Energy Partners, L.P. and Energy Transfer Partners, L..P. The MEP, connecting Bennington,
Oklahoma, and Perryville, Louisiana, will have initial capacity of 1.4 Befid.
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On February 11, 2008, the Partnership agreed to acquire a 20% interest in Centrahoma Operating LLC
(“Centrahoma LLC™) for $11.6 million, with a right to acquire an additional 20% interest under certain circumstances.
Closing on March 3, 2008 is subject to conveyance of certain properties to Centrahoma LLC by the other member and the
reimbursement of $0.6 million to the Partnership related to the termination of a virtual joint venture with the other member of
the Centrahoma LLC. Centrahoma Operating LLC wili own certain processing plants in the Arkoma basin. In addition,
MarkWest will sign, at closing, agreements to dedicate certain acreage in the Woodford Shale play to the Centrahoma LLC
through March 1, 2018,

On February 20, 2008, the Partnership entered into a new credit agreement (“Partnership Credit Agreement”). The
Partnership Credit Agreement provides for a maximum lending limit of $575.0 million for a five-year term. The Partnership
Credit Agreement includes a senior secured revolving facility of $350.0 million (that under certain circumstances can be
increased to $550.0 million) and a $225.0 million term loan, both of which can be repaid at any time without penalty. The
credit facility is guaranteed by the Partnership and all of the Partnership’s subsidiaries, including the Company, and is
collateralized by substantially all of the Partnership’s assets and those of its subsidiaries. The Partnership made an
intercompany loan to the Company in the amount of $225.0 million to fund, in part, the redemption of its common stock
pursuant to the Merger and utilized borrowings under the $225.0 million term loan of the Partnership Credit Agreement. The
Company will borrow the money from the Partnership on the same terms as the Partnership is borrowing the funds pursuant
to the Partnership’s credit facilities described above, except that the Company will pay interest to the Partnership at the
Partnership’s debt cost plus 1.0%. In addition, borrowings under the revolving facility portion of Partnership Credit
Agreement were used to finance other payments under the Merger, outstanding amounts due on the Partnership Credit
Facility of $67.0 million. The Partnership Credit Agreement required the payment of $10.2 million in deferred financing
costs. As of February 25, 2008, the Partnership had borrowed $45.5 million under the revolving facility portion of
Partnership Credit Agreement and approximately $258.5 was available to be borrowed.

The borrowings under the credit facility bear interest at a variable interest rate, plus basis points. The variable
interest rate typically is based on the London Inter Bank Offering Rate (“LIBOR”); however, in certain borrowing
circumstances the rate would be based on the higher of a) the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5-1%, and b) a rate set by the
Partnership Credit Facility’s administrative agent, based on the U.S. prime rate. The basis points correspond to the ratio of
the Partnership’s Consolidated Funded Debt (as defined in the Partnership Credit Agreement) to Adjusted Consolidated
EBITDA (as defined in the Partnership Credit Agreement), ranging from 0.50% to 1.25% for Base Rate loans, and 1.50% to
2.25% for LIBOR loans. The basis points will increase by 0.50% during any period (not to exceed 270 days) where the
Partnership makes an acquisition for a purchase price in excess of $50.0 million. The Partnership will incur a commitment
fee on the unused portion of the credit facility at a rate between 30.0 and 50.0 basis points based upon the ratio of
consolidated senior debt (as defined in the Partnership Credit Agreement) to consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the
Partnership Credit Facility). As of February 25, 2008, the interest note for borrowings under the Credit Facility was LIBOR
plus 1.50%.

On February 21, 2008, the Partnership consummated the transactions contemplated by its plan of redemption and
merger with the Company and MWEP, L.L.C., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Partnership. Under the Merger, the
Company, subject to pro ration, redeemed for cash those shares of Company common stock electing to receive cash.
Immediately after the redemption, the Partnership acquired the Company through a merger of MWEP, L.L.C. with and into
the Company, pursuant to which all remaining shares of the Company’s common stock were converted into approximately
15.4 million Partnership common units. As a result of the merger, the Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Partnership. In connection with the merger, the incentive distribution rights in the Partnership, the 2% economic interest in
the Partnership of MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C. (the “General Partner”) and the Partnership common units owned by the
Company were exchanged for Partnership Class A Units. Contemporaneously with the closing of the transactions
contemplated by the Merger, the Partnership separately acquired 100% of the Class B membership interests in the General
Partner that had been held by current and former management and certain directors of the Company and the General Partner.
The Company paid to its stockholders approximately $240.5 million in cash in the redemption and the Partnership issued to
the Company’s stockholders approximatety 15.5 million Partnership common units in the merger. As a result of the merger
and redemption, the Company owns approximately 31% of the Partnership.

The Merger will be accounted for in accordance with SFAS 141, and related interpretations. The Merger is
considered a downstrearn merger whereby the Company is viewed as the surviving consolidated entity for accounting
purposes rather than the Partnership, which is the surviving consolidated entity for legal purposes. As such, the merger will
be accounted for in the Company’s consolidated financial statements as an acquisition of non-controlling interest using the
purchase method of accounting. Under this accounting method, the Partnership’s accounts, including goodwill, will be
adjusted to proportionately step up the book value of certain assets and liabilities. The total fair value of the non-controlling
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interest to be acquired was the number of non-controlling interest units outstanding on the date the merger closed valued at
the then current per unit market price of the Partnership common units. The cash and the Partnership units distributed to
officers and directors of the General Partner for their Class B membership interests in the General Partner were recorded as
settlement of the share-based payment liability.

The General Partner board approved the 2008 LTIP on October 12, 2007 and such plan was approved by the
Partnership unitholders at the meeting to approve the Merger. The 2008 LTIP reserves 2.5 million common units for issuance
for the purpose of attracting and retaining highly qualified officers, directors, key employees and other key individuals and to
motivate them to serve the general partner and to expend maximum effort to improve the business results and earnings of the
General Partner, the Partnership and their affiliates. The 2008 LTIP will be treated as an equity plan. No further awards will
be made pursuant to the long-term incentive plan currently in place. The compensation committee of the general partner
administers the 2008 LTIP and may award unrestricted units, restricted units, phantom units, distribution equivalent rights,
performance awards or any combination of the aforementioned.

On February 21, 2008, 765,000 phantom units were granted to senior executives and other key employees under the
2008 LTIP. The phantom units vest on a time-based and performance-based schedule over a three year period. Forty percent
(40%) of the total individual grant is based on continuing employment over the three-year vesting period, and sixty percent
(60%) of the total individual grant is performance-based. Vesting of the performance-based awards is conditional upon the
achievement of designated annual financial perforinance goals established by the Board of Directors, with 10% of the
performam:e-based awards reserved for vesting at the discretion the Board of Directors. The annual financial performance
goals will be based upon established targets of distributable cash flow per unit. This long-term equity incentive arrangement
also contains a recapture provision. If the annual performance targets are not achieved in year one and/or year two of the
vesting schedule, but the cumulative three year overall performance goal is achieved, the recapture provision allows for the
vesting of a reduced percentage of the year one and/or year two performance equity awards.

ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of December 31, 2007, an evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the
Partnership’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the Partnership’s disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange
Act. Based on that evaluation, the Partnership’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, concluded the Partnership’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to
be disclosed by the Partnership in reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is (a) recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms and
{(b) accumulated and communicated to the Partnership’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

C;'mnges.in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been changes in our internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2007, that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal controls over
financial reporting:

Remediation of Prior Year s Material Weaknesses in Internal Control. For the period ended December 31, 2006, as
reported o form 10K/A Item 9A, a material weakness existed related to proper contract accounting for certain technical
accounting issues such as accounting for derivatives and revenue recognition as of December 31, 2006. Specifically,
manageme:t did not have a process in place to monitor previously existing contracts in response to specific technical
accounting issues such as changes in SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, and
revenue recognition issues such as whether to record revenue gross as a principal or net as an agent.

Subsequent to December 31, 2006, management has enhanced its contract accounting review process to ensure
appropriate accounting treatment for new and previously existing contracts. Management has also completed a reevaluation
of all critical accounting memos that have a direct impact on contract accounting. In addition, management has enhanced
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existing contract accounting review checklists to ensure proper accounting analysis of significant revenue recognition and
technical accounting areas. Management has assessed the design and operational effectiveness of these described control
activities as part of its overall assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, and concluded
that this material weakness has been remediated. See Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
below for management’s conclusion on its overall assessment.

Ongoing System Implementation. 1n May 2007 the Partnership began the phased implementation of an Enterprise
Resource Planning (“ERP”) system. Implementing an ERP system involves significant changes in business processes that
management believes will provide meaningful benefits, including more standardized and efficient processes throughout the
Partnership. As a result of this implementation, some internal controls over financial reporting have been changed to address
the new environment associated with the implementation of this system. While the Partnership believes that this new system
will strengthen its intemal controls over financial reporting, there are inherent risks in implementing any new system and the
Partnership will continue to evaluate and test these control changes to ensure the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
controls over financial reporting.

Except as described above, there were no other changes in the Partnership’s internal controls over financial reporting
during the year ended December 31, 2007, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Partnership’s internal control over financial reporting.

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of the Partnership is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. The Partnership’s internal control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States of America and includes those policies and procedures that:

e pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Partnership;

e provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the Partnership are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
Partnership; and

»  provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the Partnership’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that our internal
controls will prevent or detect all errors and all fraud. A controt system, no matter how welt designed and operated, can
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a
control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative
to their costs. In addition, any evaluation of the effectiveness of controls is subject to risks that those internal controls may
become inadequate in future periods because of changes in business conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures deteriorates.

Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007. In
making this assessment, management used the criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective at the reasonable
assurance level as of December 31, 2007.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 has been audited by

Deloitte & Touche LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm. Deloitte & Touche LLP’s report is contained
herein.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors of
MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C.
Denver, Colorado

We have audited the intemnal control over financial reporting of MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. and subsidiaries
(the *“Partnership™) as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in /nternal Control—Integrated Framework issued
by the Comimittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Partnership’s management is responsible
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Partnership’s internal control over financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective in"ernal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other
procedures 1s we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the
company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain t» the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit prepzration of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; ar.d (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition cf the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
o; improper :nanagement override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected
on a timely tasis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Partnership maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in /nternal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007 of the Partnership and our
report dated February 29, 2008, expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements,

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 29, 2008
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ITEM 9B. Other Information

None.
PART III
ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
Management of MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P.

MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C., as our general partner, manages our operations and activities on our behalf. Our
general partner’s board of directors will be elected by our unitholders following the redemption and merger. Our general
partner owes a fiduciary duty to our unitholders, although such duty is limited under our Partnership Agreement. Our general
partner will be liable, as general partner, for all of our debts (to the extent not paid from our assets), except for indebtedness
or other obligations that are made specifically non-recourse to it. Whenever possible, however, our general partner intends to
incur indebtedness or other obligations that are non-recourse.

The members of the Audit Committee of the board of directors of our general partner for 2006 and 2007 were Keith
E. Bailey, Charles K. Dempster and William P. Nicoletti. The Audit Committee reviews our external financial reporting,
recommends engagement of our independent auditors and reviews procedures for internal auditing and the adequacy of our
internal accounting controls. Following the redemption and merger, the Audit Committee will be increased to four members,
who will be Keith E. Bailey (chairman), Donald C. Heppermann, William A. Kellstrom and William P. Nicoletti. Also
following the redemption and merger, four members of the board of directors of our general partner will serve on the
Compensation Committee, which oversees compensation decisions for the directors and officers of our general partner, as
well as the overall compensation plans described below under the headings “Non-Competition, Non-Solicitation and
Confidentiality Agreement and Severance Plan” and “Long-Term Incentive Plan,” which is included herein by reference. The
members of the Compensation Committees for 2006 and 2007 were Charles K. Dempster, Keith E. Bailey, and William P.
Nicoletti. Following the redemption and merger, the Compensation Committee members will be Charles K. Dempster
{chairman), Keith E. Bailey, William A. Kellstrom and Donald D. Wolf. Finally, as a result of the redemption and merger,
our general partner’s board established a Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee in accordance with the New
York Stock Exchange’s corporate governance rules. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee members are
Don Heppermann {chairman), William A. Nicoletti, and Michael L. Beatty.

Directors and Executive Officers of MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C.

The following table shows information for the directors and executive officers of MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C., our
general partner. Executive officers are appointed and directors are elected for one-year terms.

Name _Age Position with our General Partner Since

John M. FOX.ormereinciiin 67 Chairman of the Board of Directors 2002
Keith E. Bailey ......c....c...... 65 Director 2005
Michael L. Beatty .............. 60 Director 2008
Charles K. Dempster ......... 65 Director 2002
Donald C. Heppermann..... 64 Director 2002
William A. Kellstrom......... 66 Director 2002
Anne E. Mounsey ............. 41 Director 2008
William P. Nicoletti........... 62 Director 2002
Donald D. Wolf................. 64 Director 2008
Frank M. Semple................ 56 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director 2003
C. Corwin Bromley ........... 50 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary 2004
Nancy K. Buese................. 38 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer 2006
John C. Mollenkopf........... 46 Senior Vice President, Chief Operations Officer 2006
Randy S. Nickerson.......... 46 Senior Vice President, Chief Commercial Officer 2006
Andrew L. Schroeder ........ 49  Vice President, Finance and Treasurer 2003
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Directors of MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C.

Keith E. Bailey has served as a member of the Board of Directors of our general partner since January 2005.
Mr. Bailey serves as the chairman of the Board’s Audit Committee and also serves on the Board’s Compensation Commiitee.
Mr. Bailey was formerly the Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of The Williams Companies, Inc.
(“Williams”). Commencing in 1973, Mr. Bailey served in various capacities with Williams and its subsidiaries, including
President and Chairman of Williams Pipe Line, Chairman of WilTel Communications, President of Williams Natural Gas,
and Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Williams. Also, Mr. Bailey served on the Williams board of
directors from 1988 until his retirement in 2002, including eight years as Chairman, He currently serves on the boards of
directors of Apco Argentina Inc., Associated Electric & Gas Insurance Services Limited (AEGIS) and Integrys Energy
Group, Inc. Mr. Bailey holds a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering from the Missouri School of Mines and
Metallurgy.

Michael L. Beatty was elected to the Board of Directors of our general partner in February 2008 and serves on the
Beard’s Nom:nating and Corporate Governance Committee, having previously served as a member of the board of directors
of MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. since June 2005. Mr. Beatty is currently Chairman of the law firm of Beatty & Wozniak,
P.C. headquartered in Denver, Colorado, with a practice focused exclusively on energy, including oil and gas exploration,
regulatory affairs, public lands, litigation and title. A Harvard Law School graduate, Mr. Beatty began his carcer in the
energy industry as in-house counset for Colorado Interstate Gas Company, and ultimately became Executive Vice President,
General Counsel and a Director of The Coastal Corporation. He served as Chief of Staff to Colorado Governor Roy Romer
from 1993 to 1995. Mr. Bealty also currently serves on the board of directors of Denbury Resources Inc.

Charles K. Dempster has served as a member of the Board of Directors of our general partner since December
2002. Mr. Derapster serves as the chairman of the Board’s Compensation Committee. Mr. Dempster has more than 30 years
of experience in the natural gas and power industry. He held various management and executive positions with Enron
Corporation and its predecessors between 1969 and 1986, focusing on natural gas supply, transmission and distribution. From
1986 through 1992, Mr. Dempster served as President of Reliance Pipeline Company and Executive Vice President of Nicor
Oil and Gas Corporation, oil and natural gas midstream and exploration subsidiaries of Nicor Inc. in Chicago. In 1993, he
was appointed President of Aquila Energy Corporation, a wholly owned midstream, pipeline and energy-trading subsidiary of
Utilicorp, Inc. Mr. Dempster retired in 2000 as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Aquila Energy Company,
Mr. Dempster holds a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering from the University of Houston and attended graduate business
school at the University of Nebraska.

John M. Fox has served as Chairman of the Board of Directors of our general partner since its inception in May of
2002, and in the same capacity for MarkWest Hydrocarbon since its inception in April 1988. Mr. Fox also served as
President and Chief Executive Officer of our general partner and of MarkWest Hydrocarbon from their respective inception
until his retirernent as President on November 1, 2003 and his resignation as Chief Executive Officer effective December 31,
2003. Mr. Fox was a founder of Western Gas Resources, Inc. and was its Executive Vice President and Chief Operating
Ofticer from 1372 to 1986. Mr. Fox is the father of Anne E. Mounsey, a member of the Board of Directors.

Donald C. Heppermann has served as a member of the Board of Directors of our general partner since its inception
in May 2002 and of the MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s board of directors since November 2002, and serves as chairman of the
Board’s Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and serves on the Audit Committee and the Pricing Committee.
Mr. Heppermanan served as Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary of our general partner and of
MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. since October 2003 until his retirement in March 2004. Mr. Heppermann joined our general
partner and MarkWest Hydrocarbon in November 2002 as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, and served as
Senior Executive Vice President beginning in January 2003. Prior to joining MarkWest, Mr. Heppermann was a private
investor and a career executive in the energy industry with responsibilities in operations, finance, business development and
strazegic planning. From 1990 to 1997, Mr. Heppermann served as President and Chief Operating Officer for InterCoast
Energy Company, an unregulated subsidiary of Mid American Energy Company. From 1987 to 1990, Mr. Heppermann was
employed by Pinnacle West Capital Corporation, the holding company for Arizona Public Service Company, where he was
Vice President of Finance. From 1965 to 1987, Enron Corporation and its predecessors employed Mr. Heppermann in a
variety of positions, including Executive Vice President, Gas Pipeline Group.

William A. Kellstrem has served as a member of the Board of Directors of our general partner since its inception in
May 2002 and of MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s board of directors since May 2000. Mr. Kellstrom serves on the general partner
Board’s Audit Committee and also serves on the Board’s Compensation Committee. Mr, Kellstrom has held a variety of
managerial positions in the natural gas industry since 1968. They include distribution, pipelines and marketing. He held
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various management and cxecutive positions with Enron Corporation, including Executive Vice President, Pipeline
Marketing and Senior Vice President, Interstate Pipelines. [n 1989, he created and was President of Tenaska Marketing
Ventures, a gas marketing company for the Tenaska Power Group. From 1992 until 1997 he was with NorAm Energy
Corporation (since merged with Reliant Energy, Incorporated) where he was President of the Energy Marketing Company
and Senior Vice President, Corporate Development. Mr. Kellstrom retired in 1997 and is periodically engaged as a consultant
to energy companies.

Anne E. Mounsey was elected to the Board of Directors of our general partner in February 2008. Ms. Mounsey
previously served as a member of the board of directors of MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. since October 2004. From 1991 to
2003, Ms. Mounsey held various positions with MarkWest Energy and MarkWest Hydrocarbon, her most recent as Manager
of Marketing and Business Development. Ms. Mounsey is the daughter of John M. Fox, our general partner’s Chairman of
the Board of Directors.

William P. Nicoletti has served as a member of the Board of Directors of our general partner since its inception in
May 2002. Mr. Nicoletti serves on the Board’s Audit Commitiee and also serves on the Board’s Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee. Mr. Nicoletti is Managing Director of Nicoletti & Company Inc., a private banking firm formed in
1991. Previously, he was a Managing Director and head of Energy Investment Banking for PaineWebber Incorporated and
E.F Hutton & Company Inc. Mr. Nicoletti is a director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of Kestrel Heat LLC, the
general partner of Star Gas Partners, L.P. Mr. Nicoletti is a graduate of Seton Hall University and received an MBA from
Columbia University Graduate School of Business.

Frank M. Semple was appointed as President of both our general partner and MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. on
November 1, 2003. Mr. Semple also became Chief Executive Officer of both MarkWest entities on January 1, 2004.
M. Semple is a member of the Board of Directors of our general partner and of MarkWest Hydrocarbon. Prior to his service
with MarkWest, Mr. Semple served in various capacities, most recently as Chief Operating Officer of WilTel
Communications, formerly Williams Communications Group, Inc. (“WCG”) from 1997 to 2003. Prior to his tenure at WilTel
Communications, he was the Senior Vice President/General Manager of Williams Natural Gas from 1995 to 1997, Vice
President of Marketing and Vice President of Operations and Engineering for Northwest Pipeline, and Director of Product
Movements and Division Manager for Williams Pipeline during his 22-year career with The Williams Companies. During his
tenure at Williams Communications, he also served on the board of directors for PowerTel Communications and the
Competitive Telecommunications Association (Comptel). Mr. Semple holds a Mechanical Engineering degree from the
United States Naval Academy and is a professional engineer registered in the state of Kansas.

Donald D. Wolf was elected to the Board of Directors of our general partner in February 2008 and serves on the
Board’s Compensation Committee. Mr. Wolf previously served as a member of the hoard of directors of MarkWest
Hydrocarbon, Inc. since June 1999. In September 2004, Mr. Wolf joined Aspect Energy as President and Chief Executive
Officer. He is also Chief Executive Officer of Quantum Resources, LLC. Mr. Wolf served as Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and Director of Westport Resources Corporation from July 1996 until Westport’s merger with Kerr McKee
Corporation in 2004. Mr. Wolf has a diversified 40-year carcer in the oil and natural gas industry.

Executive Officers of MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C.

C. Corwin Bromley, Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary, was appointed as General Counsel of
our general partner in September 2004. Prior to joining MarkWest, Mr. Bromley served as Assistant General Counsel at
Foundation Coal Holdings, Inc. f’k/a RAG American Coal Holding, Inc. from 1999 through 2004, and as General-Managing
Attorney and Sr. Environmental Attorney at Cyprus Amax Minerals Company from 1989 to 1999. Prior to that, Mr. Bromley
was in private practice with the law firm Popham, Haik, Schnobrich & Kaufman from 1984 through 1989, Preceding his legal
career, Mr, Bromley worked as a structural/design engineer involved in several domestic and international LNG and energy
projects with the firms CBL, Inc. and Chicago Bridge & Iron Company. Mr. Bromley received his I.D. degree from the
University of Denver and his bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering from the University of Wyoming.

Nancy K. Buese, Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, was appointed Chief Financial Officer of our
general partner in October 2006. Prior to her appointment as CFO, Ms. Buese served as Chief Accounting Officer of
MarkWest since November 2005. Prior to joining MarkWest, Ms. Buese was the Chief Financial Officer for Experimental
and Applied Sciences (“EAS”) in Golden, Colorado. EAS is a wholly owned subsidiary of Abbott Laboratories. Prior to her
employment at EAS, Ms. Buese was a Vice President with TransMontaigne Inc. in Denver, Colorado. Preceding this
appointment, Ms. Buese was a Partner with Ernst & Young LLP, having spent time in the firm’s Denver, London, New York
and Washington, D.C. offices.
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John C, Mollenkopf, Senior Vice President, Chief Operations Officer, was appointed as Chief Operations Officer
of our general partner in October 2006. Prior to his appointment as COO, Mr. Mollenkopf served as Senior Vice President,
Southwest Business Unit, since January 2004 and as Vice President, Business Development since January 2003. Prior to
these positions,, he served as Vice President, Michigan Business Unit, of our general partner since its inception in May 2002
and in the same capacity with MarkWest Hydrocarbon since December 2001. Prior to that, Mr. Mollenkopf was General
Manager of tke Michigan Business Unit of MarkWest Hydrocarbon since 1997. He joined MarkWest Hydrocarbon in 1996
as Manager, Mew Projects. From 1983 to 1996, Mr. Mollenkopf worked for ARCO Oil and Gas Company, holding various
positions in process and project engineering, as well as operations supervision.

Randy S. Nickerson, Senior Vice President, Chief Commercial Officer, was appointed as Chief Commercial
Officer of our general partner in October 2006. Prior to his appointment as CCQO, Mr. Nickerson served as Senior Vice
President, Corporate Development of MarkWest since January 2003. Prior to these positions, Mr. Nickerson served as Senior
Vice President of our general partner since its inception in May 2002 and served in the same capacity with MarkWest
Hydrocarbon since December 2001, Prior to that, Mr. Nickerson served as MarkWest Hydrocarbon’s Vice President and the
General Manager of the Appalachia Business Unit since June 1997. Mr, Nickerson joined MarkWest Hydrocarbon in July
1995 as Manager, New Projects and served as General Manager of the Michigan Business Unit from June 1996 until June
1997. From 1990 to 1995, Mr. Nickerson was a Senior Project Manager and Regional Engineering Manager for Western Gas
Resources, Ine. From 1984 to 1990, Mr. Nickerson worked for Chevron USA and Meridian Qil Inc, in various process and
project engineering positions.

Andrew L. Schroeder, Vice President Finance, Treasurer and Assistant Secretary, was appointed as Vice President
and Treasurer of our genera! partner in February 2003. Prior to his appointment, he was Director of Finance/Business
Development at Crestone Energy Ventures from 2001 through 2002. Prior to that, Mr. Schroeder worked at Xcel Energy for
two years as Director of Corporate Financial Analysis. Prior to that, he spent seven years working with various energy
companies. He began his career with Touche, Ross & Co. and spent eight years in public accounting. Mr. Schroeder is a
Certified Public Accountant licensed in the state of Colorado.

Audit Committee Financial Expert

Each of the individuals serving on our Audit Committee satisfies the standards for independence of the AMEX and
the SEC as they relate to audit committees. Qur board of directors believes each of the members of the Audit Committee is
financially literate, In addition, our board of directors has determined that Mr. Bailey is financially sophisticated and qualifies
as an “audit committee financial expert” within the meaning of the regulations of the SEC.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policy

The Audit Committee pre-approves ali audit and permissible non-audit services provided by the independent
registered public accounting firm on a case-by-case basis. These services may include audit services, audit- related services,
tax services and other services, Our Chief Financial Officer is responsible for presenting the Audit Committee with an
overview of all proposed audit, audit-related, tax or other non-audit services to be performed by the independent registered
public accounting firm. The presentation must be in sufficient detail to define clearly the services to be performed. The Audit
Committee dozs not delegate its responsibilities to pre-approve services performed by the independent registered public
accounting finn to management or to an individual member of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee may, however,
from time to time delegate its authority to the Audit Committee Chairman, who reports on the independent registered public
accounting finn services approved by the Chairman at the next Audit Committee meeting.

Code of Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics that complies with SEC standards, applicable to the persons serving
as our directors, officers (including without limitation, our CEQ, CFO and Principal Operations Officers) and employees.
This includes the prompt disclosure to the SEC of a Current Report on Form 8-K of any waiver of the code for executive
officers or directors approved by the board of directors. A copy of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is available free
of charge in print to any unitholder who sends a request to the office of the Secretary of MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. at
1515 Arapahoe Street, Suite 700, Denver, Colorado 80202, The Code of Conduct and Ethics is also posted on our website,
WWW.markwes!.com.
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Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires our general partner’s directors,
executive officers, and persons who own more than 10% of any class of our equity securities registered under Section 12 of
the Exchange Act, to file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership in such securities.
SEC regulations also require directors, executive officers and greater than 10% unitholders to furnish us with copies of all
Section 16(a) reports they file.

To our knowledge, based solely on review of the copies of such reports furnished to us and written representations
that no other reports were required, we believe our directors, executive officers and greater than 10% unitholders complied
with all Section 16(a) filing requirements during the year ended December 31, 2007. We are not aware of any failures to
file a Section 16(a) form with the SEC, or any transaction that was required to be reported, but that was not reported on a
timely basis.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation

Information required to be set forth in Item 11. Executive Compensation, has been omitted and will be incorporated
herein by reference, when filed, to our Proxy Statement for our 2008 Annual Meeting of Unitholders expected to be filed no
later than April 29, 2008.
ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Unitholder Matters

Information required to be set forth in Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
and Related Unitholder Matters, has been omitted and will be incorporated herein by reference, when filed, to our Proxy
Statement for our 2008 Annual Meeting of Unitholders expected to be filed no later than April 29, 2008.
ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Information required to be set forth in Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director
Independence, has been omitted and will be incorporated herein by reference, when filed, to our Proxy Statement for our
2008 Annual Meeting of Unitholders expected to be filed no later than April 29, 2008.
ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information required to be set forth in [tem 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Expenses, has been omitted and will
be incorporated herein by reference, when filed, to our Proxy Statement for our 2008 Annual Meeting of Unitholders
expected to be filed no later than April 29, 2008,

PART IV

ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

()] Financial Statements

You should read the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for a
list of all financial statements filed as part of this report, which is incorporated herein by reference.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules
Schedule A—Significant Subsidiary Financial Staternents—Starfish Pipeline Company, LLC

All omitted schedules have been omitted because they are not required or because the required information
is contained in the financial statements or notes thereto.

Schedule A—Significant Subsidiary Financial Statements—Starfish Pipeline Company, LLC
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and Members of
Starfish Pipeline Company, LLC

In ou: opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income, of
members’ cap:tal and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Starfish Pipeline
Company, LL(C and its subsidiaries (the “Company™) at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of marerial misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

As described in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Company has significant transactions and relationships with
affiliated entities.

/sf PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Houston, Texas
February 22, 2008
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Starfish Pipeline Company, LLC
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2007 and 2006

(in thousands of dollars)

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash EQUIVAIENES ........cocviiiinimiininsieie i
Transportation receivables (NOLE 2.t e
Accrued other receivables (INOLE @) .....oo oottt s
Other receivables from related PAMTIES .......cvcviniiiiniii et
Gas imbalance and gas imbalance net under recoveries (NOte 2.
(10T =, - DTV U TY ROy POV OO PP PP P PTPPRIS TIPS
TOUAL CLITEIL ASSELS ..vvevviseeieeiieeiseeeerereenseesiesarassresaesaaes ihsihb s iRE s aasabe s ehe pER st n s b e bt s abs s E s s b n s s e ma e st e eas
Pipelines, plant and equipment, Net (NOE 5)..ucuiriiirimrmmernceeceiiiiis ittt

TOLAL ASSELS .oeeeieeeeeeriieeeseeseesssareresssarassesaneesesssnsess nsnrerssrass sranesaanersesobt s s EaaEasa AR e T e R e b E e e e e e b e s s s bnr e

Liabilities and Members’ Capital
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities ..o
Other payables 10 related PArties.......coiivivienimie e
Gas iMbalances (INOTE 2)...cococrecrieiiirni i s b
Current obligation under capital Iease ........c..ocovrrrierieec e
Total CUTEnt HADIIHIES ....c.cvvsveireeeeeece ettt ee et s e
Obligation under capital lease, 1€sS CUITENE POITION ..o oottt s
Asset retirement obligation (NOE T).....cv oo
Regulatory [ability (INOLE 7)..cociiiiiimimrminieis i s b
TOUA] HABILIEIES ......ovevevsrereeeieesieeeret e essseraes et ssavasm e e s e sb ot b s e R R a T e e rE A bbb b
MEIMDEIS™ CAPILAL.....cvieieieeicrereneneeren e tres st ab et a e b oA S LS bbb s
Total liabilities and Members’ Capital.........ococceriini e s

2007 2006
$1,504 32,846
3,920 7416
343 1,347
22 251
491 1,511
418 363
6,698 13,734
127,019 133,443
$133,717  3147,177
$2,257 $2,625
370 3,045
- 322
622 578
3,249 6,570
5,216 5,883
5,651 5,936
9,722 9,349
23,838 27,738
109,879 119,439
$133,717  §147,177

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Starfish Pipeline Company, LLC
Consolidated Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

(in thousands of dollars)

Operating revenues

TIANSPOTEALIOTI. ...ttt eeeent ettt ee st aed e e b s et s e bbb e a et et sb e et seee e r e es bbb bbb an e

Dehydration and OUhET ..ot ettt te e es e e e et s bbb e essmsassssennenees
TOLA] FEVEITABS. ..ottt et st e et e ee s e e n e saaneene

Operating expenses

Operating and MAIMENATICE .- vvriiii s irr s e s aassasrrrsssssrsssrssnssbesassresnsanesn

Administrativiz and General.........cocooovvnieieiiineri e et

Depreciation §nd amMOTHIZALION .....veeriee e nirteie e e e st seest e e e te e e sb e

Accretion and regulatory XPENSE. ... ...t aresaese s nenes
Total OPETATINE EXPEISES ..covevevirieieierieieereereere st sresis s eeesee e tesesesessesassnemase s messeta s snrate
Net operating income (1058 .......o oottt e ens s

Other income (expense)

[NLZTESE BXPRIIZE Lottt et e e ramrre s seaa sttt e et e estn e e s b aenba e e ameeese e s raressbe e s rnnesnnnes

INERTESE IMCOME......vit it ettt s et et ee s st e on

OtNET IRCOIMIE ...ttt st s b bbb st et e e e et b sseber
Total other INCOME (EXPENSES) ..ot e s et

NEEINEOME (0SS} ..uvveveeeiieceire et et em e s e saesns e smr e em e e see st st esn e s be e ne e

2007 2006 2005
$27,081  $28,736 $16,739
5,532 3342 2,604
32,613 32078 19343
9,640 12,856 11,563
1,724 1,922 1,821
8,946 7,786 6371
344 324 316
20,654 22,888 20,071
11,959 9,190 (728)
(453) (504) (536)
183 269 42
429 546 354
159 311 (140)
$12,118  $9,501  $(868)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Starfish Pipeline Company, LLC

Consolidated Statements of Members’ Capital

Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

(In thousands of dollars) MarkWest Enbridge Total
(Notel) (Note 1)

Balances at December 31, 2004............cccoov oo $36,819 $36,819 $73,638
COMUTIDULIONS - eooeeeeeeeeeee et s eeesene st ee e ss e ssbeenbesneesaeesneabeebbserear e e s e ensensrerntsantssaesrncs 1,486 1,486 2,972
DDESEEIDULIONS ..vvevveessseeeeeeeeeeeeee oo ctssstsasssersaesssarseassrrnsentarmmeaseesseeseeetsantsastssannanssanssbnarae (2,653) (2,654) (5,307
INBEIMCOMIE. .....ccuiiteiecicte e sir b e sb et see e et be st et s e e re e e r e se e e e e R e e e s s nanat e e s s es {434) (434) (868)
Balances at December 31, 2005, e 35,218 35217 70,435
CONIIIBULIONS ..o1vveeeereeseeseeeeeeeeeeaseeatesaserasntesssesssseeereestsssaabssesssasasenannessasssnsnssansssasnsss 19,751 19,752 39,503
N Bt I COTTIC 1o reeee e e eeeesatasseeeeeeesaemaeneeeansassnsaanssssanseasmeetsse st s easssasnasnnabneernresonenss 4,751 4.750 9.501
Balances at December 31, 2006...............oocooiiininenie et enin e 59.720 59,719 119,439
D ISETIULIONS <o ireeeeeseeeeeeesereee s eesorerasbaeesseessseensneeeabessbbtasabaseabesa e e ranarnessasesannesins (10,839) (10,839) (21,678)
INEL ATICOMMIC ..o eeeeeeesetetesesseeseearmeessreretssnnretesarmeaeeasmeeeeanbstessbsteessnsaensnrararssssanasssnnssssnnen 6,059 6,059 12,118
Balances at December 31, 2007 ............covvniiinnmicniceinii s e $54,940 $54,939 $109,879

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Starfish Pipeline Company, LLC
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

(in thousands of Jollars)
Cash flows from operating activities

INEE IMCOME o itiiieie e et emse s e e g e en s e e st as e s e e emeneens

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
1Depreciation and AMOMIZANON ........c.coveverrerieiirrenmiere s resssses
Accretion and regulatory EXPense...... ..ot assans
Provision for bad debts ... e

Changes in working capital

Transportation receivables. ... oo ere e
Other receivables from related parties ... ieernniris ey
(Gas imbzlance net UNder FECOVETIES......vvuvrerercraieeririeiesrsrserss e sssresaseseenens
Accrued other receivable and other assets..........ococeeveciiiincescie e
Accounts payable and acerued Habilities ...
GaS IMDBELANCES .......icviiveisisicee e e ee e et v ve et err e s e sassassassarreresrtsnes
Other payables to related PaMtIEs........ooveereceereinrerieser e erena e

Net cash provided by operating activities .......c.ccoueveerecrerneninnericiece oo

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital EXPENTITULES ......c.ecvveeeccccrre e raeres e ar e ar e ares et ar s sarasar e et asesneseaen
ACGUISHION 0 BSSBIS 11vvvvrrerrvirrirrereeeeereesieesiesessaraessstessiststessissssessssesssasssasssssnsessssseres

Net cash used in investing ACUVILIES ....coovveivireviireee e e

Cash flows from financing activities

Contribution STOM IMEMDETS. ... i ceeeeeeeectreetreeverre vt it sre e e s ee st sstes e s sasesassseoressbesaresn
DiStrDULION 10 MEIMIBETS .....eecveiceeeeieetivervirereerrecrassiresrr s esstesstasstessaesasesasesesresstasssane
Capital [€aSe DAYINENLS........coveuiririeieciiiere ettt bbb re s rerenasnin

Net czsh (used in} provided by financing activities

{Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents............ccovvvviveniniviieeceenenne

Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of YEar ..o e e e
ERA OF WAL ..ottt ev e e e v e e vt ars st e enaab e ene st s e bt ebesneens

2007 2006 2005
$12,118 $9,501 $(868)
8,946 7,786 6,371
344 324 316
— (1,422) 1,422
3,496 473 (3,520)
229 1,235 2
1,020 2,717 (3,403)
703 (1,440} (8)
(1,528) (2,708) 4,002
(322) (6,002) 3,899
(2,675) 2,623 (222)
22,331 13,087 7,991
(1,375) (27,993) (2,962)
— (22,747) —
(1,375) (50,740) (2,962)
— 39,503 1,486
(21,678) — (5,307)
(620) (578) (538)
(22,298) 38,925 (4,359)
(1,342) 1,272 670
2,846 1,574 904
$1,504 $2.846 $1,574

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Starfish Pipeline Company, LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006
1. Organization and Business

Starfish Pipeline Company, LLC (“Starfish” or the “Company”) was formed on December 8, 2000, under the
provisions of the Detaware Limited Liability Company Act. Starfish was owned 50% cach by Enterprise Products
Operating, LP (“Enterprise”) and Shell Gas Transmission, LLC (“Shell”}, an affiliate of Shell Oil Company (“SOC™). In
January 2001, Starfish acquired 100% of Stingray Pipeline Company, LLC (“Stingray”), West Cameron Dehydration, LLC
(“West Cameron™) and Triton Gathering, LLC (“Triton”, previously East Breaks Gathering Company, LLC) from Deepwater
Holdings, LLC, an affiliate of the E] Paso Corporation. The purchase price was $50,200,000, which was allocated based on
the fair value of the net assets acquired. Since the estimated fair value of the net assets was in excess of the purchase price, no
goodwill was recorded. On December 31, 2004, SOC sold its interest in Shell to Enbridge Holdings (Offshore}) L.L.C.
(“Enbridge™), an affiliate of Enbridge (U.S.) Inc. Therefore, as of December 31, 2004, SOC was no longer an affiliate.
Subsequent to the sale, Shell was renamed Enbridge Offshore (Gas Transmission) L.L.C. On March 31, 2005, with an
effective date of January 1, 2005, Enterprise sold its interest in Starfish to MarkWest Energy Partners L.P. (“MarkWest”).
Therefore, as of January 1, 2005, Enterprise was no longer an affiliate.

Stingray operates a regulated natural gas pipeline system (the “Stingray System™) engaged in the transmission of
natural gas in the Louisiana and Texas offshore areas. The Stingray System consists of (i) 361 miles of 6 to 36-inch diameter
pipeline that transports natural gas from the High Island Offshore System, or HIOS, West Cameron, East Cameron, Garden
Banks and Vermilion lease areas in the Gulf of Mexico to onshore transmission systems in Louisiana, (ii) 43 miles of 16 to
20-inch diameter pipeline connecting platforms and leases in the Garden Banks Block 191 and 72 areas to the Stingray
System, and (iii) 13 miles of 16-inch diameter pipeline connecting the GulfTerra Energy Partners L.P., formerly known as El
Paso Energy Partners L.P., platform at East Cameron Block 373 to the Stingray System at East Cameron Block 338.

West Cameron operates an unregulated natural gas dehydration facility that provides interruptible dehydration
service to offshore platform operators connected to the Stingray Systemn. The facility is located at Stingray station 701 in
Holly Beach, Louisiana.

Triton is an unregulated gathering system that includes 18 laterals, which are connected to the Stingray System, and
located in the Garden Banks, East Cameron, Vermilion, and West Cameron areas of the Gulf of Mexico. This includes the
Gunnison lateral completed in December 2003 and the West Cameron 62 Lateral purchased from El Paso in May 2006.

Starfish has no employees and receives all administrative and operating support through contractual arrangements
with affiliated companies. These services and agreements are outlined in Note 3, Related Party Transactions.

Agreements between the member companies address the allocation of income and capital contributions and
distributions amongst the respective members’ capital accounts.

The terms of the agreements include, but are not limited to, the following:

¢ No member is required to make a capital contribution unless such member votes to approve the capital
contribution;

o Ifa member does not contribute by the time required, other non-defaulting members may elect to participate in
its share of such advance in proportion to its membership interest;

 Starfish is required to distribute all available cash, as defined by the members, within thirty days of the end of
the calendar month;

o  Starfish is not required to distribute any amounts that would cause it to materially default under any debt
agreement or instrument,
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2. Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated in consalidation,

Use of Estimates and Significant Risks

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of certain assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statermnents and the related reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Such estimates and assumptions include those made in areas of FERC
regulations, fair value of financial instruments, future cash flows associated with assets, useful lives for depreciation and
potential environmental liabilities. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Management believes that the estimates
are reasonablie.

Development and production of natural gas in the service area of the pipeline and dehydration facilities are subject
to, among othe: factors, prices for natural gas and federal and state energy policy, none of which are within Starfish’s control.

Regulation

The Sringray System is an interstate pipeline subject to regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
(“FERC™). Stingray has accounting policies that conform to generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of
America, as applied to regulated enterprises and are in accordance with the accounting requirements and ratemaking practices
of the FERC.

Stingray follows the regulatory accounting principles prescribed under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS™) No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation. If Stingray discontinued the application of
SFAS No. 71, due to an increased level of competition and discounting in its market area, adjustments and reversals of
regulatory assets and liabilities would be necessary.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered to be cash
equivalents.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Allowances have been established for 1osses on accounts, which may become uncollectible. Collectibility is
reviewed regularly and the allowance is adjusted as necessary, primarily under the specific identification method. The
allowance was 30 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The Company recognized provisions for bad debts of $1,421,567 in 2005 relating to imbalance disputes with
shippers which were resolved in 2006.

Pipelines, Plant and Equipment

Pipelines, plant and equipment consist primarily of natural gas pipeline assets and related facilities that are recorded
at cost. The regulated portion of the pipeline assets includes an Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (“AFUDC™).
The rates used in the calculation of AFUDC are determined in accordance with guidelines established by FERC. The pipeline
and related facilities are depreciated on the straight-line method over 100 years. The dehydration facility is depreciated based
on a useful tife of 40 years. The laterals are depreciated based on a useful life of 10 years. Routine maintenance and repair
costs are expensed as incurred while additions, improvements and replacements are capitalized.

Leased property and equipment are capitalized, as appropriate, and the present value of the related lease payments is
recorded as a liability. Amortization of capitalized lease assets is computed on a straight-line method over the term of the

118




lease and recorded as a component of depreciation expense. Improvements to leased properties are amortized over their
useful lives or the lease period, whichever is shorter.

Starfish records depreciation using the group method of depreciation which is commonly used by pipelines, utilities
and similar entities, Under the group method, upon the disposition of property, plant and equipment, the cost less net
proceeds is typically charged to accumulated depreciation and no gain or loss on disposal is recognized. However, when a
separately identifiable group of assets, such as a stand-alone pipeline system is sold, Starfish will recognize a gain or loss in
the Consolidated Statements of Income for the difference between the cash received and the net book value of the assets sold.

Impairment of Long Lived Assets

Starfish evaluates its assets for impairment when events or circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not
be recovered. These events include market declines that are believed to be other than temporary, changes in the manner in
which Starfish intends to use a long-lived asset and adverse changes in the legal or business environment, such as adverse
actions by regulators. When an event occurs, Starfish evaluates the recoverability of its carrying value based on its long-lived
assets’ ability to generate future cash flows on an undiscounted basis. If impairment is indicated Starfish will adjust the
carrying value of assets downward.

Asset Retirement Obligations

Effective January 1, 2003, Starfish adopted SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. SFAS
No. 143, issued in June 2001, requires the recording of liabilities equal to the fair value of asset retirement obligations and
corresponding additional asset costs. The obligations included are those for which there is a legal obligation as a result of
existing or enacted law, statute or contract. Over time, the liability would be accreted to its present value, and the capitalized
cost would be depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Upon settlement of the liability, an entity would either
settle the obligation for its recorded amount or recognize a gain or loss. Starfish’s assets are under the junisdiction of the
Department of Transportation and the Minerals Management Service (“MMS”). The MMS requires the ultimate
abandonment of offshore facilities when they are no longer in use or when suspension for future utilization cannot be
justified. Stingray and Triton recorded asset retirement obligations for several of their laterals during FAS 143
implementation in 2003, Starfish did not recognize any asset retirement obligations for its remaining assets because these
were determined to be part of the main trunk-line system or laterals with long term usage potential, and due to current reserve
estimates and expanding production in the deepwater of the Gulf of Mexico, the date of abandonment could not be
reasonably estimated. FIN 47 provides specific guidance regarding when an asset retirement obligation is reasonably _
estimable including when sufficient information is available to apply an expected present value technique. The Company’s !
implementation of FIN 47 did not have a material impact effect on these financial statements.

Costs related to the retirement of the Stingray System are provided for in the rates charged to shippers, as allowed by
the FERC. The amounts charged to shippers for the costs related to the retirement of the Stingray System differ from the
period costs recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 143, and therefore, result in a difference in the timing of recognition of
period costs for financial reporting and rate-making purposes. The Company recognizes a regulatory asset or liability for
differences in the timing of recognition of the period costs associated with asset retirement obligations for financial reporting
and rate-making purposes.

Income Taxes

Starfish is treated as a tax partnership under the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, the
accompanying financial statements do not reflect a provision for income taxes since Starfish’s results of operations and
related credits and deductions will be passed through to and taken into account by its members in computing their respective
tax liabilities.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from pipeline transportation of hydrocarbons is recognized upon receipt of the hydrocarbons into the
pipeline system. Revenue from dehydration services is recognized at the time the service is performed.
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Gas [mbalances and Gas Imbalance Over (Under) Recoveries

In the course of providing transportation services to customers, Stingray may receive different quantities of gas from
shippers than the quantities delivered on behalf of those shippers. These transactions result in imbalances (gains and losses),
which are settled in-kind each month through a fuel gas and unaccounted-for gas tracking mechanism, negotiated cash-outs
between parties, or are subject to a cash-out procedure included in Stingray’s tariff. Gas imbalances represent natural gas
volumes owed to or due from Stingray’s customers. Gas imbalances and gas imbalance over (under) recoveries are valued at
an average monthly index price, which was $6.9560 per dekatherm (“*Dth™) for the month of December 2007 and $6.6100 per
Dth for the month of December 2006.

Stingray’s FERC Gas Tariff, Third Revised Volume No, 1, Section [ 1.5, states that subsequent to the end of the
twelve month hilling period ending November 30 of each year, Stingray shall compare the revenues and costs under the cash-
out procedures and shall refund, within 60 days, the gas imbalance net over recoveries to firm and interruptible transportation
customers on . pro-rata basis in accordance with the transportation revenues Stingray received during that billing period. If
the revenues received are less than the costs incurred, then Stingray shall carry forward the gas imbalance net under
recoveries and may oftset such net under recoveries against any future net over recoveries that may occur.

Environmental Costs

Starfish records environmental liabilities at their undiscounted amounts when environmental assessments indicate
thar remediation efforts are probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated. Estimates of our liabilities are based on
currently available facts, existing technology and presently enacted laws and regulations, and include estimates of associated
legal costs. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, Starfish had no liabilities recognized for environmental costs.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The rzported amounts of financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, receivables, and current liabilities
approximate fuir value because of their short maturities.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made in the prior year consolidated financial statements to conform to the 2007
financial statement presentation. These reclassifications have no impact on net income.,

3. Related Party Transactions

Starfish has no employees. Operating, maintenance and general and administrative services are provided to Starfish
under service agreements with an Enbridge affiliate in 2007, 2006, and 2005. Substantially all operating and administrative
expenses were incurred through services provided under these agreements. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively,
Starfish had atTiliate payables of $369,507 and $3,044,796, and afTiliates receivable of $22,360 and $251,378 relating to
these agreements.

4, Accrued Other Receivables
Stingray operates an on-shore separation facility and charges the owners a fee for normal operations and any direct
cost relating to repairs and maintenance of the facility. Upon request, Stingray also performs offshore repairs and

maintenance services and charges the owners for those services. Included in accrued other receivables is $343,285 and
$1,288,531 related to these activities in 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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5. Pipelines, Plant and Equipment

Pipelines, plant and equipment at December 31, 2007 and 2006, is comprised of the following:

(in thousands of dollars) 2007 2006
Regulated pipelines and eqUIPMENL.............ccviniveniivenivecceene. . 506,967 $47,585
Regulated pipeline under capital lease ..., 9,778 9,778
Unregulated pipelines and equipment ...........cccoovmvvveeeeccocecmconicnens 66,312 66,312
Dehydration fECIHHES .....ocvverivcereccerc e e 4.349 4,349
ConStruCtion IN PrOZIESS. ...ccoiviireriierirersresrs s resseseseseseeseseseesssesnss 16,004 32,865
Asset retirement cost (regulated pipelines) ......c.o.ovnviiniiniinnns 1,398 2,027
164,808 162,916
Accumulated depreciation ..........ccoevceeiriinieeis e 37,789 29,473

$127,019 $133,443

6. Capital Lease

Stingray leases a 36-inch pipeline from Natural Gas Pipeline Company of America (“NGPL”), an affiliate of Kinder
Morgan, Inc., that connects Stingray’s pipeline system to onshore Louisiana. In June 1999, the lease agreement with NGPL
was extended for an additional 14 years beginning December 1, 1999, through November 30, 2013, with an option to
purchase the asset at the expiration of the lease. Accordingly, Stingray accounts for this lease as a capital lease. The present
value of the lease payments under the capital lease is recorded as other current and noncurrent liabilities in the accompanying
balance sheet,

Future minimum lease payments under capital leases are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)
Year Ended December 31,

21 OO P VT TOTREUUR TRt 1,073
1 I PO PO 1,073
1 3 O PSPPI 1,073
TRETEATIET .. ..o et ee s ereeee s eeesssbbe s sbtas e s s bt assa s s sasasaneansnseeeensnnseessnnenerantassenens 2,056
Total Minimum lease PAYIMENES .........cuvueeriereeseriereereriersererresrsearcrseceresmessssesessessessssessesssrrscs 7,421
Less: Amount representing iMEEIESE ....vvveeercrecerie et e e (1,583)
Present value of net minimum lease payments, including current maturities of $622.......... $5,838
7. Asset Retirement Obligation

Activity related to the Company’s asset retirement obligation (**ARO”) during the year ended December 31, 2007
and 2006, is as follows:

{in thousands of dollars) 2007 2006

Balance of ARO as of JAnuary 1 .....cocvecceivieseiiinense e sesesesrens $5,936 $5,593
Liabilities incurred during period........c.oiimmmmimesrsmmninn, — 19
Revisions resulting from changes in expected cash flows..................... (629 —
ACCIELION EXPENISE ..ooeeereereerernirirereee st e s sesss s s s st s sr s s 344 324
Balance of ARO asof December 31 ... $5,651 35,936

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company recognized depreciation expense related to its
asset retirement cost (“ARC™) of $505,191, $512,500 and $223,000, respectively.
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The rate case filed by Stingray with the FERC (Docket No. RP99-166) decreased the amount the Company could
charge in their rates (“Negative Salvage™) for asset retirement obligations. Beginning in 2003, the Negative Salvage the
Company was allowed to recover was 0.25% of the total value of the Stingray System (approximately $697,000 per year).
The Company recognized regulatory expense of approximately $267,309, $248,237 and $363,000 during the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Activity related to the Company’s regulatory liability during the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, is as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2007 2006

Balance of regulatory liability as of January | ..o $9,349 39,180

Negative Salvage recovered ..o 697 697

Current period ARO accretion (Stingray’s System)........cccoovniinnanns (267) (248)

Current period ARC depreciation (Stingray’s System) ...........coecvvenene (57) _(280)

Balance of regulatory liability as of December 31 ... $9,722  $9,349
8. Regulatory Matters

Regulatory Environment

The FERC has jurisdiction over Stingray with respect to transportation of gas, rates and charges, construction of new
facilities, extension or abandonment of service facilities, accounts and records, depreciation and amortization policies and
certain other raatters.

An annual charge totaling $297,597, $226,948 and $337,079 was paid to the FERC for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively. This charge, to be recovered from customers through rates, was recorded as a regulatory asset and will be
amortized over twelve months. During 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, $244,610, $304,518 and $318,082 was recorded as
amortization expense.

9. Commitments and Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, Starfish and its subsidiaries are subject to various laws and regulations including
regulations o7 the FERC. In the opinion of management, compliance with existing laws and regulations will not materially
affect the finincial position or results of operations of Starfish.

Var:ous legal actions, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business, are pending with respect to the assets of
the Starfish. Management believes that the ultimate disposition of these actions, either individually or in aggregate, will not
have a material adverse effect on the financial position, the results of operations or cash flows of Starfish.

16. Impact of Hurricane Rita

In September 2005, Hurricane Rita (“Rita™) caused substantial damage to both onshore and offshore facilities,
resulting in loss of revenues and significant capital and maintenance expenditures. Onshore refurbishments were primarily
complete as of December 31, 2005, and the majority of offshore refurbishments were completed as of December 31, 2006.
As the Company is self insured, capital expenditures of approximately $24,218,000 and $24,051,000 and maintenance
expenditures of approximately $6,724,000 and $6,356,000 have been incurred as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
rzspectively.

I1. Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures

Cash paid for interest for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was approximately $453,000,
$495,000 and $451,000, respectively.

Necneash financing and investing activities include:

During 2007 and 2006, respectively, $0 and $19,000 of fixed asset additions were recognized due to recording of an
asset retirernent obligation.
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A revision resulting from changes in expected cash flows decreased the asset retirement obligation and asset
retirement cost by $629,148 as of December 31, 2007,

Construction in progress additions and accrued liabilities amount to approximately $1,063,000, $532,000 and 30 for
the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The members agreed on December 19, 2005 to provide capital contributions in the amount of $2,972,000. As of
December 31, 2005, a receivable in the amount of $1,486,000, was due from MarkWest. Starfish received the contribution in
January 2006.

12. Business and Credit Concentrations
For the year ended December 31, 2007, six customers accounted for approximately 56% of revenues and 11.1% of
transportation receivables. For the year ended December 31, 2006, four customers accounted for approximately 51% of

revenues and 23% of transportation receivables. For the year ended December 31, 2005, two customers accounted for
approximately 29% of revenues.

123




Exhibit Number

Description

2.1(2)

2.2(2)

2.3(3)

2.4(4)

2.5(8)

2.6(15)
2.7(16)

2.8(16)

2.9(16)
2.10(31)

3.1(1)
3.2(5)

3.3(DH
3.4(5)

3.5(1)
3.6(5)

3.712)
3.8(23)
3.9(28)
4.1(6)

4.2(6)

Purchase Agreement dated as of March 24, 2003, among PNG Corporation, Energy Spectrum Partnets LP,
MarkWest Texas GP, L.L.C., MW Texas Limited, L.L.C. and MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P.

Plan of Merger entered into as of March 28, 2003, by and among MarkWest Blackhawk L.P., MarkWest
Pinnacle L.P., MarkWest PNG Utility L.P., MarkWest Texas PNG Utility L.P., Pinnacle Natural Gas
Company, Pinnacle Pipeline Company, PNG Transmission Company, PNG Utility Company and Bright
Star Gathering, Inc.

Asset Purchase-and-Sale Agreement dated as of November 18, 2003, by and between American Central
Western Oklahoma Gas Company, L.L.C., MarkWest Western Oklahoma Gas Company, L.L.C. and
American Central Gas Technologies, Inc.

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of November 7, 2003, by and between Shell Pipeline Company, LP
and Equilon Enterprises L.L.C., dba Shell Oil Products US, and MarkWest Michigan Pipeline Company,
LLC.

Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement and addendum, thereto, dated as of July 1, 2004, by and between
American Central Eastern Texas Gas Company Limited Partnership, ACGC Gathering Company, L.L.C.
and MarkWest Energy East Texas Gas Company’s L.P.

Purchase and Sale Agreement effective as of January 1, 2005 between MarkWest Energy Partners L.P. and
Enterprise Products Operating L.P.

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of September 16, 2005, by and between El Paso Corporation, as
seller, and MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. as buyer.

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of September 16, 2005, by and between Kerr McGee Corp., KM
Investment Corp., and Javelina Holdings Corp., as joint sellers, and MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. as
buyer.

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of September 16, 2005, by and between Valero Energy Corp., and
Valero Javelina, L.P., as sellers, and MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. as buyer.

Agreement and Plan of Redemption and Merger dated September 5, 2007 by and among MarkWest
Hydrocarbon, Inc. MarkWest Energy Partners, L..P. and MWEP, L.L.C.

Certificate of Limited Partnership of MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P.

Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., dated as of
May 24, 2002.

Certificate of Formation of MarkWest Energy Operating Company, L.L.C.

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of MarkWest Energy Operating Company,
L.L.C., dated as of May 24, 2002.

Certificate of Formation of MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C.

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C., dated as of
May 24, 2002,

Amendment No. | to Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement MarkWest Energy
Partners, L.P.

Amendment No. 2 to Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement MarkWest Energy
Partners, L.P.

Amendment No. 3 to Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement MarkWest Energy
Partners, L.P.

Purchase Agreement dated as of June 13, 2003, by and among MarkWest Energy Pariners, L.P. and Tortoise
Capital Advisors, LLC as attorney-in-fact for the Purchasers.

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of June 13, 2003, by and among MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P.
and Tortoise Capital Advisors, LLC as attorney-in-fact for the Purchasers,
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Unit Purchase Agreement dated as of July 29, 2004 among MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., and MarkWest
Energy GP, L.L.C. and each of Kayne Anderson Energy Fund II, L.P., and MarkWest Energy GP,L.LC.
and each of Kayne Anderson Energy Fund [1, L.P., Kayne Anderson Capital income Partners, L.P., Kayne
Anderson MLP Fund, L.P., Kayne Anderson Capital Income Fund, LTD., Kayne Anderson Income
Partners, L.P., HFR RV Performance Master Trust, Tortoise Energy Infrastructure Corporation and
Energy Income and Growth Fund as Purchasers.

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of July 29, 2004, among MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., and each
of Kayne Anderson Energy Fund 11, L.P., Kayne Anderson Capital Income Fund, LTD., Kayne Anderson
Income Parmers, L.P., HFR RV Performance Master Trust, Tortoise Energy Infrastructure Corporation
and Energy Income and Growth Fund.

Purchase Agreement dated October 19, 2004, among MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., MarkWest Energy
Finance Corporation, the Guarantors named therein and the Initial Purchasers named therein.

Registration Rights Agreement dated October 25, 2004, among MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., MarkWest
Energy Finance Corporation, the Guarantors named therein and the Initial Purchasers named therein.

Indenture dated as of October 25, 2004, among MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., MarkWest Energy Finance
Corporation, the Guarantors named therein and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee.

Form of 6.875% Series A Senior Notes due 2014 with attached notation of Guarantees (incorporated by
Reference to Exhibits A and D of Exhibit 4.7 hereto)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of November 9, 2005
Unit Purchase Agreement, dated as of November 9, 20035
Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of December 23, 2005
Unit Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 23, 2005

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of July 6, 2006 among Mark West Energy Partners, L.P., with
MarkWest Energy Finance Corporation as the Issuers, the Guarantors named therein, and each of RBC
Capital Markets Corporation, J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC, A.G.
Edwards & Sons, Inc., Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, Fortis Securities LLC, Mizuho
International plc, Piper Jaftray & Co. and $G Americas Securities, LLC collectively as Initial Purchasers.

Indenture dated as of July 6, 2006, among MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., MarkWest Energy Finance
Corporation, as Issuers, the Guarantors named therein, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
Trustee.

Form of 8.5% Series A and Series B Senior Notes due 2016 with attached notation of Guarantees
(incorporated by Reference to Exhibits A and D of Exhibit 4.11 hereto.

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of October 20, 2006 among MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., with
MarkWest Energy Finance Corporation as the Issuers, the Guarantors named therein, and RBC Capital
Markets as the Initial Purchaser.

Unit Purchase Agreement dated April 9, 2007 by and among MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., MarkWest
Energy G.P., L.L.C., and each of Kayne Anderson MLP Investment Company, GPS Income
Fund, L.P., GPS High Yield Equittes Fund, L.P., GPS New Equity Fund, L.P., Agile Performance Fund,
L.L.C., Tortoise Energy Infrastructure Corporation, Tortoise Energy Capital Corporation, Royal Bank of
Canada, Structured Finance Americas, L.L.C., The Cushing MLP Opportunity Fund I, L.P., and ZLP
Fund, L.P. as purchasers.

Registration Rights Agreement dated April 9, 2007 by and between MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., and
each of Kayne Anderson MLP Investment Company, GPS Income Fund, L.P., GPS High Yield Equities
Fund, L.P., GPS New Equity Fund, L.P., Agile Performance Fund, L.L.C., Tortoise Energy Infrastructure
Corporation, Tortoise Energy Capital Cotporation, Royal Bank of Canada, Structured Finance Americas,
L.L.C., The Cushing MLP Opportunity Fund 1, L.P., and ZLP Fund, L.P. as purchasers.

Unit Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 18, 2007
Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of December 18, 2007
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Credit Agreement dated as of May 20, 2002, among MarkWest Energy Operating Company, L.L.C (as the
Botrower), MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. (as a Guarantor), Bank of America (as Administrative Agent),
and Lenders Party Hereto $60,000,000 Senior Credit Facility, and Banc of America Securities, L.L.C, as
sole lead arranger and book manager. )

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of December 1, 2003, among MarkWest Energy
Operating Company, L.L.C., as Borrower, MarkWest Energy Pariners, L.P., as Guarantor, Royal Bank of
Canada, as Administrative Agent, Bank One, NA, as Syndication Agent, Fortis Capital Corp., as
Documentation Agent, to the $140,000,000 Senior Credit Facility.

Contribution, Conveyance and Assumption Agreement dated as of May 24, 2002, by and among MarkWest
Energy Partners, L.P.; MarkWest Energy Operating Company, L.L.C.; MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C.;
MarkWest Michigan, Inc.; MarkWest Energy Appalachia, L.L.C.; West Shore Processing Company,
L.L.C.; Basin Pipeline, L.L.C.; and MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc.

MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. Long-Term Incentive Plan.
First Amendment to MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. Long-Term Incentive Plan.

Omnibus Agreement dated of May 24, 2002, among MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc.; MarkWest Energy GP,
L.L.C.; MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P.; and MarkWest Energy Operating Company, L.L.C.

Fractionation, Storage and Loading Agreement dated as of May 24, 2002, between MarkWest Energy
Appalachia, L.L.C. and MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc.

Gas Processing Agreement dated as of May 24, 2002, by and between MarkWest Energy Appalachia, L.L.C,
and MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc.

Pipeline Liquids Transportation Agreement dated as of May 24, 2002, by and between MarkWest Energy
Appalachia, L.L.C. and MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc.

Natural Gas Liquids Purchase Agreement dated as of May 24, 2002, by and between MarkWest Energy
Appatachia, L.L.C. and MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc.

Gas Processing Agreement (Maytown) dated as of May 28, 2002, between Equitable Production Company
and MarkWest Hydrocarbon, inc.

Amendment to Gas Processing Agreement (Maytown) dated as of March 26, 2002, between Equitable
Production Company and MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc.

Services Agreement dated January 1, 2004 between MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C. and MarkWest
Hydrocarbon, Inc.

Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of July 30, 2004 among MarkWest Energy
Operating Company, L.L.C., as Borrower, MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., as Guarantor, Royal Bank of
Canada, as Administrative Agent, Fortis Capital Corp., as Syndication Agent, Bank One, NA, as
Documentation Agent and Societe Generale, as Documentation Agent to the $315,000,000 Senior Credit
Facility.

First Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of August 20, 2004,
among MarkWest Energy Operating Company, L.L.C., as Borrower, MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., as
Guarantor, Royal Bank of Canada, as Administrative Agent, Fortis Capital Corp., as Syndication Agent,
Bank One, NA, as Documentation Agent and Societe Generale, as Documentation Agent.

Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of October 25, 2004 among MarkWest Energy
Operating Company, L.L.C., as Borrower, MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., as Guarantor, Royal Bank of
Canada, as Administrative Agent, Bank One, N.A., as Syndication Agent, Fortis Capitat Corp., as
Documentation Agent, U.S. Bank National Association, as Documentation Agent, Societe Generale, as
Documentation Agent, and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Documentation Agent, RBC Capital
Markets and }.P. Morgan Securities Inc., as Lead Arrangers and Joint Bookrunners, to the $200,000,000
Senior Credit Facility.

Executive Employment Agreement effective September 5, 2007 between MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. and
Frank Semple.
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Exhibit Number Description

10.19(19) Fourth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of November 1, 2005, among MarkWest Energy
Operating Company, L.L.C., as borrower, MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., as Guarantor, Royal Bank of
Canada, as Administrative Agent, JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Co-Syndication Agent, Fortis Capital
Corp., as Co-Syndication Agent, Societe Generale, as Co-Documentation Agent, Wachovia Bank,
National Association, as Co-Documentation Agent and RBC Capital Markets, as Sole Lead Arranger and
Bookrunner to the $100,000,000 Revolver Facility and $400,000 Term Loan,

10.20020) Fifth amended and restated credit agreement dated as of December 29, 2005, among MarkWest Energy
Operating Company, L.L.C., as Borrower, MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., as Guarantor, Royal Bank of
Canada, as Administrative Agent, Bank One, N.A., as Syndication Agent, Forties Capital Corp., as
Documentation Agent, UJ.S. Bank National Association, as Documentation Agent, Society General, as
Documentation Agent, and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Documentation Agent, RBC Capital
Markets and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., as Lead Arrangers and Joint Bookrunners, to the $615,000,000
Senior Credit Facility.

10.21(26) Office Lease Agreement, dated April 19, 2006, by and between Park Central Property LLC, the landlord, and
MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., the tenant.

10.22(14)A  Form of Executive Employment Agreement effective September 5, 2007 between MarkWest
Hydrocarbon, Inc. and Nancy K. Buese, C. Corwin Bromiey, John C. Mollenkopf and Randy S.
Nickerson.

10.23(29) Form of Indemnification Agreement between MarkWest Energy Partners, LLP and each Non-employee
Director and the following Officers of the Company: Frank Semple, President and Chief Executive
Officer; Nancy Buese, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer; Randy Nickerson, Senior Vice
President and Chief Commercial Officer; John Mollenkopf, Senior Vice President and Chief Operations
Officer; C. Corwin Bromley, Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary; David Young, Senior
Vice President of Corporate Services; Richard Ostberg, Vice President of Risk and Compliance, and
Andrew Schroeder, Vice President and Treasurer dated as of January 26, 2007.

10.24(31) Exchange Agreement dated September 5, 2007 by and among MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., MarkWest
Hydrocarbon, Inc., and Mark West Energy, GP L.L.C.

10.25(31) Voting Agreement dated September 5, 2007 by and among MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. and the Fox
Family Holders.

10.26(34)+  Hydrogen Supply Agreement dated September 28, 2007, by and between MarkWest Blackhawk, L.P. and
CITGO Refining and Chemicals Company L.P.

10.27(32) Amended and Restated Class B Membership Interest Contribution Agreement dated October 26, 2007 by and
among MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. and John M. Fox, Donald C. Heppermann, Frank M. Semple,
Nancy K. Buese, Randy S. Nickerson, John C. Mollenkopf, C. Corwin Bromley, Andrew L. Schroeder,
Jan Kindrick, Cindy Kindrick, Kevin Kubat and Art Denney as the Sellers.

10.28(33) Amended and Restated Form of Indemnification Agreement dated October 26, 2007 by and between
MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. and each non-employee director and executive officer of the General
Partner, including the following named executive officers: Frank Semple, President and Chief Executive
Officer; Nancy Buese, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer; Randy Nickerson, Senior Vice
President and Chief Commercial Officer; John Mollenkopf, Senior Vice President and Chief Operations
Officer; C. Corwin Bromley, Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary and Andrew
Schroeder, Vice President and Treasurer.

10.29%+ Gas Processing Agreement dated as of November 1, 2007, by and between MarkWest Javelina Company and
CITGO Refining and Chemicals Company, L.P.
10.30*+ Amendment to Gas Processing Agreement dated as of December 11, 2007, by and between MarkWest

Javelina Company and CITGO Refining and Chemicals Company, L.P.

10.31(35) Amended Class B Membership Interest Contribution Agreement dated as of October 26, 2007, to Agreement
and Plan of Redemption and Merger by and among the Partnership, MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. and
MWEP, L.L.C.

10.32* Omnibus Termination Agreement dated as of November 16, 2007, by and between MarkWest Energy
Appalachia, L.L.C. and Equitable Preduction Company and Equitable Gathering LLC
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Exhibit Number Description

10.33*+ Natural Gas Liquids Transportation, Fractionation, and Marketing Agreement dated as of Novemnber 16,

2007, by and between MarkWest Energy Appalachia, L.L.C. and Equitable Gathering LLC

10.34* Assignment and Bill of Sale and Assumption Agreement dated as of November 16, 2007, by and between
MarkWest Energy Appalachia, L.L.C. and Equitable Production Company and Equitable Gathering LLC

10.35%+ Second Amendment to the Gas Processing Agreement dated as of December 26, 2007, by and between
MarkWest Energy Appalachia, L.L.C. and MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc.

15.1(22) Changes in registrants certifying accountants. MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P. dismissed KPMG LLP as the
Partnership’s independent registered public accounting firm and engaged Deloitte & Touche LLP as its
new independent registered public accounting firm.

211* List of subsidiaries

23.1% Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP

23.2% Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

3.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification Pursuant to Section 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act

31.2* Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to Scction 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act

32.1%* Certification of Chief Executive Officer of the General Partner pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

32.2% Certification of Chief Financial Officer of the General Partner pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

)] Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement (No. 33-81780) on Form S-1 filed January 31, 2002.

(2) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 14, 2003.

&) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 16, 2003.

4) Incarporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 31, 2003.

(5) Incarporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 7, 2002.

(6) Inccrporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 19, 2003.

(7 Inccrporated by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 15, 2004,

() Inccrporated by reference to the Current Report on form 8-K/A filed September 13, 2004,

9) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 20, 2004.

(10} Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 25, 2004,

(11) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 29, 2004,

{12) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 6, 2005.

(13) Incorporated by reference to the Quarterly Report of MarkWest Hydrocarbon, Inc. on Form 10-Q filed
November 13, 1997.

(14) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 11, 2007.

(15) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 6, 2005.

(16) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 21, 2005.
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(17
(18)
(19)
(20)
(1)
(22)
(23)
@4)
25)
26)
@7
(28)
29)
(30)
3D
32)
(33)
(34)
(35)
(36)

Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form $-K filed November 16, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed December 29, 2005.
Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 7, 2005.
Incorperated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 5, 2006.
Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 1, 2004,
Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 23, 2005,
Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 15, 2005.
Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 7, 2006.
Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 24, 2006.
Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 25, 2006.
Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 1, 2006.
Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 31, 2007.
Incorporated by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 7, 2007.
Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed Apnil 11, 2007.
Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 6, 2007.
Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 13, 2007,
Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 1, 2007.
Incorporated by reference to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed November 8, 2007.
Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 13, 2007.
Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 19, 2007.
Application has been made to the Securities and Exchange Commission for confidential treatment of certain
provisions of these exhibits. Omitted material for which confidential treatment has been requested and has been filed
separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Filed herewith.

Identifies cach management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

The following exhibits are filed as part of this report: See Item 15(a)(2) above.

The following financial statement schedules are filed as part of this report: None required.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly
caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P.
(Registrant)

By: MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C,,

Its  General Partner

Date: February 29, 2008 By: /s/ FRANK M. SEMPLE

Frank M. Semple
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities with MarkWest Energy GP, L.L.C., the General Partner of
MarkWest Enzrgy Partners, L.P., the Registrant, and on the dates indicated.

Date: February 2%, 2008 By: /s/ FRANK M. SEMPLE

Frank M. Semple
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 29, 2008 By: /s/ NANCY K. BUESE

Nancy K. Buese
Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer})

Daie; Februarv 29, 2008 By: /s/ JOUN M. Fox

John M. Fox
Chairman of the Board and Director

Dare: February 29, 2008 By: /s/ KEITH E. BAILEY

Keith E. Bailey
Director

Date: February 29, 2008 /s/ MICHAEL L. BEATTY

Michael L. Beatty
Director

Date: February 29, 2008 By: /s/ CHARLES K. DEMPSTER

Charles K. Dempster
Director

Date: February 29, 2008 By: /s/ DONALD C. HEPPERMANN

Donald C. Heppermann
Director

Date: February 29, 2008 By: /s/ WILLIAM A. KELLSTROM

William A. Kellstrom
Director
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Date: February 29, 2008 /s/ ANNE E. MOUNSEY

Anne E. Mounsey
Director

Date: February 29, 2008 By: /s/ WILLIAM P. NICOLETTI

William P. Nicoletti
Director

Date: February 29, 2008 /s/ DONALD D. WOLF

Donald D. Wolf
Director
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CORE PRINCIPLES

MarkWest believes every employee is important to the
company and its success, and we are committed to build a
culture based on trust, accountability, safety and tcamwork.

MarkWest is focused on delivering best-of-class service.
MarkWest will seek true understanding of our customers’
requirements and will strive to provide solutions exceeding
their expectations.

MarkWest will aim for innovative concepts in all that we do,
and the company will support and encourage the search for

innovation at all levels. Creation of substantial value will be

the primary criteria for any new endeavor.

MarkWest secks a fair profit and will maintain a strong
balance sheet and appropriate expense controls through
continuous process improvements.

MarkWest’s reputation rests on our ability to act with
honesty, integrity, and trustworthiness. To that end, we have
adopted and communicated our Code of Conduct & Ethics
as the cornerstone of our business,

END |

MARKWEST

Energy Partners, L.P.

MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P.
1515 Arapahoe Street

Tower 2, Suite 700

Denver, Colorado 80202-2126
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